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Important Notice

The Board and the Supervisory Committee of the Company and its Directors, Supervisors and senior management
warrant that the contents of this interim report are true, accurate and complete without false representations,
misleading statements or material omissions, and they severally and jointly accept legal responsibility for the above
warranty.

Directors of the Company attended the sixth meeting of the third session of the Board convened on 30 August
2019. 6 out of 7 eligible Directors attended the meeting. Ren Xudong, a Director, did not attend the meeting due to
other business engagements and authorized Chan Ka Keung Peter, a Director, in writing to attend the meeting and
exercise the voting right on his behalf upon consideration of the resolutions.

Name of the Reason for the absence Name of the
Position of the absent Director absent Director of the Director appointee

Due to other business
Independent Director Ren Xudong engagements Chan Ka Keung Peter

The interim financial statement of the Company for the first half of 2019 has been reviewed by Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu LLP, but has not been audited. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu CPA LLP issued a review report of unqualified
opinion report to the Company.

Guo Wenging, the Chairman and legal representative of the Company, Zou Hongying, the Vice President and Chief
Accountant of the Company, and Fan Wanzhu, the Head of the Financial Planning Department have declared that
they warrant the truthfulness, accuracy and completeness of the financial report contained in this interim report.

Statement for the risks involved in the forward-looking statements

The forward-looking statements contained in this report regarding the Company’s future plans and others do not
constitute any substantive commitment to investors and investors are reminded of investment risks.

Is there any misappropriation of non-operating funds by the Controlling Shareholder and its related parties
No

Is there any external guarantee made in violation of the required decision-making procedures

No

Warning of major risks

1. International and domestic macroeconomic trends

All business operations of the Company are affected by the international and domestic macroeconomic
environment. Macroeconomic trends inside or outside China may have an impact on various business
segments of the Company, including procurement, production and sale, thereby causing fluctuations in the
Company’s operating performance. The Company’s operating income is mainly derived from the domestic
market. Since the beginning of this year, in the context of complicated and tough domestic macroeconomic
climate, economic operation has remained stable as a whole under the strong leadership of the CPC Central
Committee, but is still subject to great downward pressure. Its business operations may perform differently
in various domestic economic cycles.

2. Changes in the policies of the industries in which the Company was involved and the demands of its
domestic and overseas markets

The Company’s engineering contracting, property development and equipment manufacturing businesses
were all influenced by the policies of the industry. In recent years, the adjustments to the business fields and
the regional market layout of the Company have been guided, to a certain extent, by the restructuring and
upgrade of the steel and iron industry pushed forward by the PRC’s implementation of Made in China 2025,
a nation strengthening strategy focusing on manufacturing industries, and implementation of region-specific
regulatory policies and category-specific guidance on the property industry, periodic fluctuations of the
industries and changes in the operating situation of upstream and downstream enterprises of the industries,
and thereby influencing the Company’s internal structure and hence influencing the Company’s financial
position.

Others

Unless otherwise specified, all the amounts in this report are denominated in RMB.
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Definitions

In this report, unless the context otherwise requires, the following expressions have the meanings as follows:

“Company” or “MCC” Metallurgical Corporation of China Ltd.*

“State Council” the State Council of the People’s Republic of China

“SASAC” the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of the State
Council

“CSRC” the China Securities Regulatory Commission

“SSE” the Shanghai Stock Exchange

“Shanghai Listing Rules” or the Rules Governing the Listing of Stocks on the Shanghai Stock Exchange

“A Share Listing Rules”
“Hong Kong Stock Exchange” The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

“Hong Kong Listing Rules” or “H the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong

Share Listing Rules” Limited
“Controlling Shareholder” or China Metallurgical Group Corporation
“CMGC”
“China Minmetals” China Minmetals Corporation
“Shareholders’ Meeting” the shareholders’ meeting of Metallurgical Corporation of China Ltd.*
“Shareholder(s)” holder(s) of share(s) of the Company
“Board” the board of Directors of Metallurgical Corporation of China Ltd.*
“Director(s)” the director(s) of the Company, including all executive, non-executive and

Independent Non-executive Directors

“Independent Director” or a Director who is independent of the Shareholders of the Company and is not an
“Independent Non-executive employee of the Company, has no material business connections or professional
Director” connections with the Company or its management and is responsible for exercising

independent judgment over the Company’s affairs

“Supervisory Committee” the Supervisory Committee of Metallurgical Corporation of China Ltd.*
“Supervisor(s)” the supervisor(s) of the Company
“Articles of Association” the articles of association of Metallurgical Corporation of China Ltd.*
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Definitions

“Reporting Period” from 1 January 2019 to 30 June 2019

“A Share(s)” the domestic shares with a nominal value of RMB1.00 each in the ordinary share
capital of the Company, which are listed on the SSE and traded in RMB

“H Share(s)” the overseas listed foreign invested shares with a nominal value of RMB1.00 each in
the ordinary share capital of the Company, which are listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange and subscribed and traded in Hong Kong dollars

“Model Code” the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in
Appendix 10 to the Hong Kong Listing Rules

“connected person(s)” connected party/parties under A Share Listing Rules and connected person(s) under
the H Share Listing Rules

“Renminbi” or “RMB” Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

“HKS$” Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong, PRC

“Usb” United States dollars, the lawful currency of the United States

“SFO” or “Securities and Futures the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as
Ordinance” amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

“Corporate Governance Code” the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report set out in

Appendix 14 of the Hong Kong Listing Rules
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Chairman’s Statement

Dear Shareholders:

It is not an easy task to start and maintain an enterprise, and results are achieved only by hard work. In the first half of the year,
MCC adhered steadfastly to the strategic positioning of “being the national team for metallurgical construction, the main force for
fundamental construction, the forerunner of the emerging industries, and long-term adherence to pursuing the path for development
with advanced technologies and high quality”. The Company ensured its steady growth towards proper and clear directions while
endeavouring to advance in its development. Results of our operation have yet again broken another record and reached a new
height during the “Mid-term”.

During the Reporting Period, the operating revenue amounted to RMB159.017 billion, representing a year-on-year growth of
26.09%. Total profit was RMB4.882 billion, increasing by 4.69% year on year, of which net profit attributable to Shareholders
of the Company recorded RMB3.157 billion, increasing by 8.59% year on year; newly signed contracts amounted to RMB381.5
billion, representing a year-on-year increase of 20.49%. Quality of the contracts continued to improve, the newly signed individual
contracts with value of more than RMB500 million reached RMB206.611 billion, accounting for 56.37% of all newly-signed projects.
The Company has made new achievements in scientific and technological innovation, resulting in emerging in major innovation
results. One national enterprise technology center has been approved and the number of science and technology platforms with
national level has increased to 25; A total of 3,072 patent applications were filed in the first half of the year, of which 1,828 are
newly authorized patents, accumulating 26,600 effective patents as at the end of the Reporting Period, further improving the
quality of its patents. Following the lead in winning the first prize of the 2018 National Science and Technology Progress Award, the
Company has passed five preliminary evaluations for and completed public announcement of the National Science and Technology
Awards with two leading and three participating nominations. MCC has shown steady growth trend for substantial development.

New eras foster new ideas, and new ideas bring forth new development. High quality development has become a fundamental
requirement for the Company’s current and future developments, and the route MCC must take in order to survive and thrive. In
the face of increased instability and uncertainty around the globe, as well as the shortfall in sustainability of economic growth,
downward pressure on the China’s economy intensified. In the process of high quality “upgrading”, we will further increase our
sense of crisis, grasp the long-term trend, be adapted to turn peril into safety, and perfect our trade. We will adhere unfalteringly to
supply-side structural reform, forge “Five in One”— industry competitiveness, innovation competitiveness, market competitiveness,
management competitiveness and talent competitiveness high-quality supporting system of development, reinventing new
advantages and reigniting new kinetic energy, realize a “better MCC” for steady growth and longstanding prosperity.

— Forge high-quality development of industry competitiveness. We will stand our ground in forging the world’s top “national
team” for metallurgical construction, adamantly aimed at the top technology, speed up core technology replacement, thus
realizing advancement of core technologies to remain at the top of the market; aiming resolutely at system control. MCC will
push ahead with optimization by industry chain consolidation advantages, so as to retain its irreplaceable role in the industry.
We are well-positioned to achieve sustainable growth through business model innovation and re-kindling of our business.
We will focus on “differentiation, specialization, brand extensions” development strategy, persistently forge “the main force
for fundamental construction and the forerunner of the emerging industries”, accelerate to become a world-class city, and a
provider of systematic solutions for industrial development as well as full-life-cycle services for engineering projects.

— Create innovative competitiveness with high quality development. We will adhere to the market orientation, connect
scientific research projects with the market demand, examine and create benefits in the market, adhere to the principle of
technological productization and industrialization of products, and develop, productize and industrialize a batch of products;
We will continue to strengthen our synergistic development by fully integrating our resource deployment and fully utilize the
comparative advantage of central enterprises in tackling major events, and continue to optimize the system of technological
innovation and stimulate innovation and vitality.

— Forge market competitiveness with high quality development. We will consolidate, reinforce, raise and disentangle
domestic markets, adhere to “Herd sheep on the grassland and catch fish at the fishing grounds”, thoroughly penetrate and
strengthen existing markets, fill up vacant areas, cultivate the local market, materialize upgrading of the market structure and
free up the potential of growth for the sub-enterprises. Resolve into, reconcile, recompense overseas shortcomings, resolutely
break away from reliance, substantialize and strengthen two platform companies; persist in maintaining stability, constantly
improve standardization and refinement of the management of overseas businesses; adhere to excellence, deepen the focus
on cultivating key areas, comprehensively sort out customer resources, strengthen the management of project lifecycle and
ensure solid and sound operation for overseas businesses.

— Forge administrative competitiveness with high quality development. We will restlessly take over the construction of
project management and control platform, highlight and strengthen high efficiency of project management. We will give good
performance first, to cut cost, increase profit and secure bids. Second, administer the operation and secure profits. Third,
strengthen clearance and seek results; We will restlessly take over the enhancement of management effectiveness, forge a
coordinated and highly effective management mechanism, establish a customer-oriented operating mechanism, construct a
shared-value operating system, and implement highly efficient and high-quality management and control systems to ensure
high-quality strategic and tactical results.

— Forge talent competitiveness with high quality development. We will adhere great importance to forging a talent team
with optimized structure, reasonable ladder, excellent quality, ardent love for the enterprise and devotion. We will reinforce
the construction of MCC’s talent team, ensure “one stability”, and continue to maintain the allocation of human resources
in nineteen business units of the eight major sections of the “National Team”; Achieve “three optimizations” on academic
framework, professional title framework and knowledge framework; and focus on the formulation of the “Five Teams” of high-
level MCC talents, MCC technological research and development talents, high-skilled MCC talents, MCC project management
talents and MCC international talents.

There are no boundaries for aspirations. We will always unyieldingly adhere to the strategy of “focusing on the core business in
building a better MCC” and the enterprise spirit of “Make progress every day, and do not slacken the pace”, with concerted efforts
we will carry forward the cause towards the goal of high-tech, high quality and sustainable development ahead, and strive to create
new and greater value for the country, the shareholders, the society and our employees!



Company Profile and Major Financial Indicators

MCC was jointly established by China Metallurgical Group Corporation and Baosteel Group Corporation on 1 December
2008 and was listed on the main board of the SSE and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange on 21 September 2009 and 24
September 2009, respectively.

MCC is one of the largest comprehensive groups of engineering and construction in the PRC and the world. At present, the
A Shares of the Company have been selected to be a constituent stock of the SSE Central State-owned Enterprises Index,
MSCI Concept Index, Central State-owned Enterprises Innovation Index and 300 Innovation Index, etc.; while the H Shares
have been selected to be a constituent stock of Hang Seng Composite Index, Hang Seng Stock Connect Hong Kong Index,
Hang Seng Mainland Composite Index and Hang Seng Infrastructure Index, etc.

Specific information of the Company is set out below:

I. CORPORATE INFORMATION

Company name (in Chinese) FER 2R IRHERAE

Abbreviation in Chinese REHA

Company name (in English) Metallurgical Corporation of China Ltd.*
Abbreviation in English MCC

Legal representative of the Company Guo Wenging

II. CONTACT PERSONS AND CONTACT METHOD

Secretary to the Board Joint Company Secretaries
Name Zeng Gang Zeng Gang and Ng Sau Mei
Address MCC Tower, 28 Shuguang Xili, Chaoyang District, Beijing, PRC
Telephone +86-10-59868666
Facsimile +86-10-59868999
E-mail ir@mccchina.com

n Metallurgical Corporation of China Ltd.



V.

Company Profile and Major Financial Indicators

CHANGES IN BASIC INFORMATION

Registered address of the Company

Postal code of registered address of the Company

Business address of the Company in the PRC

Postal code of the business address of the Company in
the PRC

Place of business of the Company in Hong Kong

H Share registrar and transfer office

Address of H Share registrar and transfer office

Website address of the Company

E-mail

28 Shuguang Xili, Chaoyang District, Beijing, PRC
100028

MCC Tower, 28 Shuguang Xili, Chaoyang District,
Beijing, PRC

100028

Room 3205, 32/F, Office Tower, Convention Plaza, 1
Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong, PRC

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

17M Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong, PRC

http://www.mccchina.com

ir@mccchina.com

INFORMATION DISCLOSURE AND PLACE FOR INSPECTION

Name of media of information disclosure designated by China Securities Journal, Shanghai Securities News,

the Company

Website designated by the CSRC for publication of
interim report

Place where interim report of the Company is available
for inspection

SHARES OF THE COMPANY
Types of Shares
A Shares

H Shares
Limited

Stock exchanges of listing
Shanghai Stock Exchange

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong

Securities Times and Securities Daily
http://www.sse.com.cn

MCC Tower, 28 Shuguang Xili, Chaoyang District,
Beijing, PRC

Stock abbreviation Stock codes
MCC 601618

MCC 1618

2019 Interim Report “



Company Profile and Major Financial Indicators

VI. OTHER RELEVANT INFORMATION

Auditor appointed by

the Company

Name

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu CPA LLP

Office address

30th Floor, Bund Center, 222 Yan An Road East,
Shanghai, PRC

Signing auditors of the
review report

Chen Wenlong, Zhou Hongyu

Sponsor performing

continuous supervisory

duty during the
Reporting Period

Name

CITIC Securities Company Limited

Office address

23/F, CITIC Securities Tower, 48 Liangmagqgiao Road,
Chaoyang District, Beijing, PRC

Signing representatives of
sponsor

Yang Bin, Chen Shumian

Period of continuous
supervision

CITIC Securities Company Limited acted as the sponsor
for the initial public offering of A Shares of MCC on
21 September 2009, and its continuous supervisory
period expired on 31 December 2011. As the A Shares
proceeds raised by MCC have not been fully utilized,
CITIC Securities Company Limited continues to
supervise MCC on the use of A Shares proceeds, and
performs the relevant continuous supervisory duties
after the expiry of continuous supervisory period.

CITIC Securities Company Limited, acting as the
sponsor for the non-public issuance of A Shares of MCC
(the share registration was completed on 6 January
2017), performed sponsoring duty for the management
and use of proceeds from the non-public issuance of
A Shares of the Company and carried out continuous
supervisory work.

PRC legal advisor
appointed by the
Company

Name

Beijing Jia Yuan Law Offices

Office address

F408 Ocean Plaza, 158 Fu Xing Men Nei Avenue,
Xicheng District, Beijing

Overseas legal advisor

appointed by the
Company

Name

Latham & Watkins LLP

Office address

18th Floor, One Exchange Square, 8 Connaught Place,
Central, Hong Kong, PRC

m Metallurgical Corporation of China Ltd.



Company Profile and Major Financial Indicators

VI. MAJOR ACCOUNTING DATA AND FINANCIAL INDICATORS OF THE
COMPANY

(U} Major accounting data

Unit: RMB'000

()

Major accounting data

For the
Reporting Period
(January — June)

Corresponding
period of the
previous year

Increase/decrease
for the Reporting
Period as compared
to the corresponding
period of the
previous year

(%)
Operating revenue 159,017,379 126,112,573 26.09
Net profit attributable to Shareholders of
the listed Company 3,156,882 2,907,197 8.59
Net profit attributable to Shareholders
of the listed Company after deducting
non-recurring profits and losses 2,962,289 2,971,779 -0.32
Net cash flow generated from operating
activities (5,232,028) (8,106,592) N/A
Increase/
decrease for the
end of the Reporting
Period as compared
End of the End of the to the end of the
Reporting Period previous year previous year
(%)
Net assets attributable to Shareholders
of the listed Company 86,089,228 83,943,362 2.56
Total assets 453,975,355 438,915,843 3.43
Major financial indicators
Increase/decrease for
the Reporting Period
For the Corresponding as compared to the

Major financial indicators

Reporting Period
(January - June)

period of the
previous year

corresponding period
of the previous year

(%)

Basic earnings per share (RMB/Share) 0.13 0.12 8.33

Diluted earnings per share (RMB/Share) N/A N/A N/A

Basic earnings per share after deducting 0.12 0.12 Flat
non-recurring profits and losses

(RMB/Share)

Weighted average return on net assets (%) 3.94 B8NS Increased by 0.19

percentage point

Weighted average return on net assets after 3.66 3.85 Decreased by 0.19

deducting non-recurring profits and losses
(%)

percentage point

2019 Interim Report n



Company Profile and Major Financial Indicators

(nry Financial summary

1. Overview

The highlights of the Company’s financial position as at 30 June 2019 and the operating results for
the six months ended 30 June 2019 are as follows:

o Operating revenue amounted to RMB159,017 million, representing a year-on-year increase of
RMB32,904 million or 26.09% from RMB126,113 million in the first half of 2018.

° Net profit amounted to RMB3,778 million, representing a year-on-year increase of RMB279
million or 7.98% from RMB3,499 million in the first half of 2018.

o Net profit attributable to Shareholders of the Company amounted to RMB3,157 million,
representing a year-on-year increase of RMB250 million or 8.59% from RMB2,907 million in
the first half of 2018.

o Basic earnings per share amounted to RMB0.13, and the basic earnings per share in the first
half of 2018 amounted to RMBO0.12.

o As at 30 June 2019, total assets amounted to RMB453,975 million, representing an increase
of RMB 15,059 million or 3.43% from RMB438,916 million as at 31 December 2018.

o As at 30 June 2019, total Shareholders’ equity amounted to RMB105,509 million, representing
an increase of RMB2,840 million or 2.77% from RMB102,669 million as at 31 December 2018.

o Newly signed contracts amounted to RMB381,500 million, representing an increase of
RMB64,900 million or 20.49% from RMB316,600 million in the first half of 2018.

Note:  the percentages of increase or decrease are calculated by rounding to whole number of RMB.
2. Revenue from Principal Business Segments

During the Reporting Period, revenue from the principal business segments of the Company is as
follows:

(1) Engineering Contracting Business

Operating revenue amounted to RMB145,075 million, representing an increase of RMB33,837
million or 30.42% from RMB111,238 million in the first half of 2018.

2) Property Development Business

Operating revenue amounted to RMB10,385 million, representing a decrease of RMB103
million or -0.98% from RMB10,488 million in the first half of 2018.

(3) Equipment Manufacture Business

Operating revenue amounted to RMB3,728 million, representing an increase of RMB465
million or 14.26% from RMB3,263 million in the first half of 2018.

(4) Resource Development Business

Operating revenue amounted to RMB2,269 million, representing a decrease of RMB944
million or -29.39% from RMB3,213 million in the first half of 2018.

(5) Other Businesses

Operating revenue amounted to RMB1,683 million, representing an increase of RMB17 million
or 0.98% from RMB1,666 million in the first half of 2018.

Note:  The segment revenue and segment gross margin are before inter-segment eliminations; the percentages
of increase or decrease are calculated by rounding to whole number of RMB.

m Metallurgical Corporation of China Ltd.



Company Profile and Major Financial Indicators

Summary of financial statements

The following is a summary of financial information prepared in accordance with China Financial

Reporting standards:

(1) Consolidated Income Statement
Unit: RMB'000
January to January to
Item June 2019 June 2018
l. Total operating revenue 159,017,379 126,112,573
Including: Operating revenue 159,017,379 126,112,573
Il. Total operating costs 153,294,197 119,373,832
Including: Operating costs 141,523,492 110,641,099
Taxes and levies 1,191,138 1,190,698
Selling expenses 1,030,968 830,485
Administrative expenses 4,147,974 3,826,959
Research and development
expenses 3,716,817 1,447,867
Financial expenses 1,683,808 1,436,724
Including: Interest expenses 2,386,058 1,953,929
Interest income 1,149,521 1,009,496
Add: Other income 76,097 72,940
Investment (loss) income (198,337) 62,708
Including: Losses of investments
in associates and
joint ventures (41,053) (36,310)
Loss recognised
in termination of
financial assets
carried at amortised
costs (249,984) (28,441)
(Loss) Gains from changes in fair
values (3,711) 8,189
Credit impairment losses (764,520) (1,039,010)
Asset impairment losses (28,970) (970,746)
Gains on disposal of asset 20,560 36,944
Ill. Operating profit 4,824,301 4,909,766
Add: Non-operating income 103,259 203,788
Less: Non-operating expenses 45,371 449,906
IV. Total profit 4,882,189 4,663,648
Less: Income tax expenses 1,103,931 1,164,680
V. Net profit 3,778,258 3,498,968
(I) As classified by continuity of operation
Net profit from continuing operations 3,778,258 3,498,968
Net profit from discontinued operations - -
(I As classified by vested ownership
Net profit attributable to Shareholders
of the Company 3,156,882 2,907,197
Profit or loss of minority Shareholders 621,376 591,771
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Company Profile and Major Financial Indicators

January to January to
Item June 2019 June 2018
VI. Other comprehensive income, net of
income tax (2,596) (171,555)
Other comprehensive income attributable
to Shareholders of the Company, net of
income tax (1,921) (163,855)
(1) Items that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss 19,427 (203,907)
1. Change in re-measurement of
defined benefit obligations 410 (120,171)
2. Change in fair value of investment in
other equity instruments 19,017 (83,736)
(I) Items that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss (21,348) 40,052
1. Other comprehensive income of
convertible profit or loss under the
equity method (27) 20
2. Changes in fair value of receivables
at FVTOCI (43,335) -
3. Exchange differences on translating
foreign currency statements 22,014 40,032
Other comprehensive income attributable to
non-controlling interests,
net of income tax (675) (7,700)
VIl. Total comprehensive income 3,775,662 3,327,413
Total comprehensive income attributable to
Shareholders of the Company 3,154,961 2,743,342
Total comprehensive income attributable to
non-controlling interests 620,701 584,071
VIII. Earnings per share
() Basic earnings per share (RMB/share) 0.13 0.12
(I) Diluted earnings per share (RMB/share) N/A N/A

@)

Summary of Consolidated Total Assets and Total Liabilities at the end of June 2019

Unit: RMB’000

30 June 2019 31 December 2018

Total assets
Total liabilities
Total Shareholders’ equity

453,975,355 438,915,843
348,466,026 336,246,399
105,509,329 102,669,444

Vill. DIFFERENCE IN ACCOUNTING DATA
OVERSEAS ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

|:| Applicable Not Applicable

m Metallurgical Corporation of China Ltd.
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IX.

Company Profile and Major Financial Indicators

NON-RECURRING PROFIT AND LOSS ITEMS AND THEIR AMOUNTS

Unit: RMB’000

Non-recurring profit and loss items Amount Note (if applicable)
Profit or loss on disposal of non-current assets 20,560 Note 17
Tax refund or exemption in relation to documents of unauthorized approval or

without formal approval or of incidental nature - -
Government grants recognized in profit or loss (except for the government

grants that are closely related to the business of the Company and

received in accordance with the uniform state’s regulations) 175,234 Note 17
Fund possession cost paid by non-financial enterprises and recorded under

current profit and loss - -
The excess of the fair value of identifiable net assets acquired over the cost

for acquisition of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures - -
Profit/loss of non-monetary asset swap - -
Profit/loss from entrusted investment or asset management - -
Provision for impairment of assets due to force majeure i.e. natural disaster = =
Profit/loss from debt restructuring - -
Corporate restructuring expenses, i.e. expenses on employee placement,

integration costs, etc. - -
Profit/loss from the excess of the fair value of a transaction of unfair

consideration - -
Current net profit/loss of subsidiaries resulting from merger of enterprises

under common control from the beginning of the period to the date of

merger - -
Profit/loss from contingencies irrelevant to the normal operations of the

Company - -
Profit/loss from the change of fair value of financial assets held for trading,

derivative financial instrument, other non-current financial assets and

investment income from the disposal of financial assets held for trading,

derivative financial instrument, other non-current financial assets except

for those gain/loss relating to the hedging transactions under Company’s

normal operating business 38,266 Note 17
Write back of the provision for impairment of accounts receivable and

contract assets that are individually tested for impairment = =
Profit/loss from external entrusted loans - -
Profit/loss from changes in fair value of investment properties using the fair

value model for subsequent measurement - -
Effects of one-off adjustment to current profit/loss in accordance with laws

and regulations on taxation and accounting, etc. - -
Income of entrustment fees from entrusted operations — =
Other non-operating income or expenses other than the above items 25,599 Note 17
Other profit or loss items that fall within the meaning of non-recurring profit

and loss 147 Note 17
Impact on non-controlling interests (22,481) Note 17
Impact on income tax (42,732) Note 17
Total 194,593 Note 17

2019 Interim Report m



Company Profile and Major Financial Indicators

X. MAJOR FINANCIAL DATA FOR 2019 BY QUARTERS

Unit: RMB'000

First quarter Second quarter

(January- March) (April- June)

Operating revenue 63,106,772 95,910,607

Net profit attributable to the shareholders of the Company 1,766,899 1,389,983
Net profit attributable to the shareholders of the Company, net of

non-recurring profit or loss 1,682,490 1,279,799

Net cash flow from operating activities (13,935,490) 8,703,462

m Metallurgical Corporation of China Ltd.



Report of Directors

EXPLANATION FOR THE PRINCIPAL BUSINESSES AND OPERATING
MODELS OF THE COMPANY AND THE INDUSTRIES IN WHICH THE
COMPANY WAS INVOLVED DURING THE REPORTING PERIOD

(U} Engineering Contracting Business
78 Industry Overview

In the first half of 2019, China’s economy continued to operate within a reasonable range, maintained
the development momentum of overall stability and steady progress, and featured stable and
improved production, increasing demand, stable price movement, enhanced innovation-driven
development, etc. The growth rate of investment in manufacturing rebounded at a low level and in
particular, a faster growth was observed in high-tech manufacturing; The investment in real estate
development maintained a relatively rapid growth. The national investment in fixed assets (excluding
farmers) amounted to RMB29,910.0 billion, representing a year-on-year increase of 5.8% as
compared with that of last year.

In the first half of 2019, a relatively stable operation momentum was seen in the iron and steel
industry, as evidenced by increase in both output and export volume. In the current era of
“development with reduced capacity” of the iron and steel industry, iron and steel enterprises
are attaching more importance to technological innovation and the development of high-end
products, and strived to speed up environmental protection reforms, structural adjustments as
well as transformation and upgrade. There are increasing new opportunities for transformation and
upgrading, energy saving and environmental protection and operation service in the domestic iron
and steel industry, and the whole sector has relatively strong market demand for green development,
smart development and top-level operation service, which provided numerous opportunities for the
Company to strive for achieving “further advancement, further optimization and further re-creation of
the national team for metallurgical construction” in its traditional core business.

In the first half of 2019, the investment in infrastructure (excluding power, heating, gas and water
production and supply industry) across the country showed a year-on-year increase of 4.1%.
With the further advancement of supply-side structural reform and the effective implementation of
national strategies and schemes including the coordinated development of the Beijing, Tianjin, and
Hebei Region (FREE#[E), Xiong’an New Area, the construction of the Yangtze River Economic
Belt, and “Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao” Greater Bay Area, the construction of infrastructure
and urbanization in China has further sped up. Emerging industries maintained strong momentum.
Businesses related to these emerging industries, including theme park, sponge city, comprehensive
improvement of water environment, smart city and beautiful countryside construction, prefabricated
buildings and senior life and healthcare, will embrace great potential for development.

In the first half of 2019, we are faced with both opportunities and challenges in the development
of overseas business. Market opportunities were mainly brought by expected continuity of slow
growth of global economy, recovery of infrastructure construction and consistent large demand for
investment; in-depth implementation of the “Belt and Road” initiative, which provided a continuous
strong motivation for industry development; and strong endogenous growth driver of overseas
contracted engineering industry. Meanwhile, the development of overseas business was also
challenged by risks such as huge fund gap in global infrastructure, great difficulty in implementing
projects and increasing external risks.
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2. The Operating Results of the Business

During the Reporting Period, the new construction contracts of the Company amounted to RMB366.5
billion, representing a year-on-year increase of 22.3%, further creating a record high. Newly signed
metallurgical engineering contracts amounted to RMB64.8 billion, accounted for 17.7% of the new
contracts, representing an increase of 45.5% as compared with the same period of 2018. Newly
signed non-steel engineering contracts amounted to RMB301.7 billion, accounted for 82.3% of the
new contracts, representing an increase of 18.3% as compared with the same period of 2018. Newly
signed overseas contracts amounted to RMB13.1 billion.

The overall operating results of the engineering contracting business in the first half of 2019

Unit: RMB’000
The first half The first half Year-on-year
of 2019 % of the total of 2018 increase/decrease
Segment operating 145,074,533 88.93% 111,238,227 30.42%
revenue
Gross margin (%) 9.39 - 9.63 Decreased by 0.24

percentage point

Note: The segment operating revenue and gross margin above are before inter-segment eliminations.
(1) Metallurgical Engineering Construction Business

As the world’s largest and most powerful metallurgical construction contractor and
metallurgical enterprise operation service provider, during the Reporting Period, the Company
regarded being the national team of the world’s top metallurgical construction as its target.
Closely keeping up with the pace of adjustment to the layout and upgrading of domestic iron
and steel industry, the Company established the core technology and control capabilities
in eight major parts and nineteen units of the traditional metallurgical procedure of the
Company, thereby strengthening high-end leadership. In terms of market expansion, the
Company paid attention to leveraging the advantages of the entire industry chain and firmly
seized the opportunity brought by the positive development momentum of the metallurgical
industry to actively strengthen connections with strategic customers and take the initiative
to implement unified coordination and arrangement, and conduct overall marketing on major
metallurgical projects. While ensuring that large and medium-sized projects of major iron and
steel companies keep up with pace, the Company firmly consolidated the status of being the
“national team for metallurgical construction”.

In overseas market, the Company mainly developed and implemented iron and steel,
nonferrous engineering and special engineering projects, and undertook projects under EPC,
EPC+F, and EPC+pre-planning and operation. The Company proposed to win customers with
“engagement in early and later stages”, i.e., materialisation of transformation from bidding for
a project to operating a project through early intervention, provision of value-added service,
assisting in credit enhancement for financing; and then materialisation of expansion and
extension of service scope through “engagement in later stage”, in order to improve success
rate of project marketing.
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The operating revenue of the metallurgical engineering construction business of the Company
for the recent 3 years and the proportion accounting for the total contract income of the
projects are as follows:

Unit: RMB’000

Items of revenue In the first half of 2019 In the first half of 2018 In the first half of 2017
Amount Proportion (%) Amount Proportion (%) Amount Proportion (%)
Metallurgical
engineering 29,393,644 20.26 26,233,380 2358 21,156,717 24.36

Note:  The statistics of segment revenue are figures before inter-segment eliminations.

During the Reporting Period, the key metallurgical engineering construction projects entered
into by the Company are as follows:

Contractual
No.  Name of Project Amount  Implementing Entity
(RMB100 million)

1 Engineering General Contracting Project for Major 17.5  WISDRI Engineering &
and Ancillary Steel Making Facilities (Phase 1) of Research Incorporation
Fangchenggang Steel Base in Guangxi Province (B 5H Limited
ARMEREE (—B) - RATRREREY R I REAR
8)

2 3,800mm Middle and Thick Plate Production Line 154 MCC Capital Engineering &
Redevelopment Project for Yingkou Jinghua Iron and Steel Research
Co., Ltd. in Liaoning Province (EE4 2N REMEEB A Incorporation Limited
3,800mmPEREESERER)

3 General Contracting Project of Steel-making Engineering 15.4  MCC Capital Engineering &
for Environmental Protection Product Upgrading of HBIS Research Incorporation
Shijiazhuang Iron & Steel Co., Ltd. (THEBAZEMEAR Limited
BERARRRREERARNERA RATREZRDER)

4 OBI Nickel-Cobalt Project in Indonesia (1§ E Fi s OBISZ 478 126 Shanghai Baoye Group Corp.,
H) Ltd.

5 New Steel-making Project of Baosteel Desheng Luoyuan 112 ChinaMCC 17 Group Co., Ltd.
Stainless Steel Co., Ltd. in Luoyuan County, Fujian Province
(RREBRREEREXAFHERAANGR(—5) IRE
B)

6 General Contracting Project of Blast Furnace Engineering for 10.6  CISDI Group Corp. Ltd.
Reorganization, Relocation, Renovation of Taihang Iron and
Steel (KTRAZAMBENEEE RIET1ER)

7 EPC General Contracting Project for Production Capacity 105  Huatian Engineering &
Replacement (Luoyuan Minguang) and Ancillary Project Technology Corporation,
of H-shaped Steel Production Line with Annual Output of MCC

1.3 Million Tons of San Gang Group of Fujian Luoyuan
Minguang Iron & Steel Co., Ltd. (BREFHE 1 AEERER
RACHEEENER(BRER S, ) REEBAFEI0E
WAHEL £ EREPCAKBIEE)
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Contractual
No.  Name of Project Amount  Implementing Entity
(RMB100 million)

8 Construction Project (Section I1) for Hot Rolling Engineering 9.0  China MCC 20 Group Co., Ltd.
of No. 3 Blast Furnace System of Baosteel Zhanjiang Iron &
Steel (ERE AT =SB ZHARRA TRFHIER)

9 EPC General Contracting Supplemental Agreement on 5# and 9.0  ACRE Coking & Refractory
6# Coke Oven Environmental Protection Relocation Project Engineering
of Tangshan Ganglian Coking Co., Ltd. (BB &L BRE Consulting Corporation,
EAFSH  HEERRIREIREPCRARRARE) MCC

10 EPC General Contracting Project for Production Capacity 8.8  MCC Capital Engineering &
Replacement (Luoyuan Min Guang) and 1 * 120t Converter Research Incorporation
Steel-making Project of Ancillary Project for San Gang Limited
Group (ZHEEERER(BRERX D) REEEE * 120t
BIERMTIREPCAARER)

1 Coking Engineering of No. 3 Blast Furnace System of Baosteel 7.8 China MCC 5 Group Co., Ltd.
Zhanjiang Iron & Steel (BT HE - RBZAEERET
)

12 Iron-processing Project for No. 3 Blast Furnace System of 7.1 Shanghai Baoye Group Corp.,
Zhanjiang Iron &Steel (FTHE=REXABR RETHE) Ltd.

13 EPC General Contracting Project for Construction of R&D 7.0 MCC Capital Engineering &
Center for Industry Upgrade of HBIS Group Co., Ltd. and Research Incorporation
Production Capacity Transfer of HBIS Group Xuansteel Limited
Company (THEZARKEHELEBERHERLER
EPCEARIER)

14 Blast Furnace Engineering Project for Phase 3 Equipment and 6.6 CISDI Group Corp. Ltd.
Technology Renovation Project of Xusteel Group (% £
CHRERIEEREIRER)

2) Non-Steel Engineering Construction Business

@ Fundamental Construction

During the Reporting Period, in the field of fundamental construction, by adhering to
the marketing concept of “wealth at high end”, focused on local market where the
enterprise is based, focused on five urban agglomerations, national central cities,
Xiong’an New Area, Beijing’s sub-center and regions along “Belt and Road” and
other hot regions, focused on high-end major projects, strategic clients, enhanced
cooperation with strategic clients including local government and major enterprises,
consolidated and expanded its “Circle of Friends”, followed market focus and made
breakthrough in respect of high end projects.

During the Reporting Period, on the one hand, with reference to market conditions and
regulatory requirements, the Company timely adjusted and implemented its approach
of the PPP business, further tightened risk control, strengthened project introduction,
expanded the scale and improved the quality of individual projects and controlled the
total number of projects; on the other hand, priority was put on the implementation of
projects at hand. The Company continued to implement engineering projects under
PPP model and seized the strategic opportunity to strengthen market development,
expand its business scale, raise its new contract amount, and drive its transformation
and upgrade. In the first half of 2019, the Company won the bids for 14 new PPP
projects and the total investment amount was RMB40.5 billion. In terms of industry
distribution, the PPP projects mainly included municipal engineering, transportation,
water conservancy construction, tourism, sports and technology.
Metallurgical Corporation of China Ltd.
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Closely following the national “Belt and Road” initiative and in the light of factors
including development trend of global iron and steel market, demographic dividend
and development potential of emerging markets, the Company mainly established
its presence in markets in 20 countries/regions in South Asia, Southeast Asia, West
Asia, Africa, South America, Europe and Oceania and paid close attention to other 3
potential markets. Overall, overseas markets where the Company operates are highly
concentrated in developing countries in Southeast Asia, South Asia and Middle East.
The Company also has established its presence in developed countries in Europe
and Americas and will continue to pay close to its existing markets. Currently, the
Company has established 142 overseas institutions for engineering and 10 overseas
institutions for mining in 56 countries and regions, 152 in total, including 87 overseas
institutions in 32 countries and regions along the “Belt and Road”.

During the Reporting Period, the Group brought its quality marketing to a new level,
as evidenced by increased amount and better quality of newly signed contracts.
In the first half of the year, the Group signed 186 new domestic major engineering
contracting contracts with an amount exceeding RMB500 million, with an aggregate
contract amount of RMB206,611 million, representing a year-on-year increase of 50
projects and RMB29,766 million, respectively.

The operating revenue of the non-steel engineering construction business of the
Company for the recent 3 years and the proportion accounting for the total contract

income of the projects are as follows:

Unit: RMB’'000

Items of revenue In the first half of 2019 In the first half of 2018 n the first half of 2017
Amount  Proportion (%) Amount  Proportion (%) Amount  Proportion (%)
Housing construction
engineering 67,438,866 46.49 43,267,674 38.90 42,046,646 4841
Transportation infrastructure 31,022,810 21.38 27,745,846 24.94 20,103,977 23.15
Other enginegring 17,219,213 11.87 13,991,327 12.58 3,541,056 4.08

Note:  The statistics of segment revenue are figures before inter-segment eliminations.

During the Reporting Period, the key infrastructure projects entered into by the
Company are as follows:

Contractual
No.  Name of Project Amount  Implementing Entity
(RMB100
million)
1 General Contracting (EPC) Project for 40.9  WISDRI Engineering & Research
Comprehensive Renovation of High-tech Incorporation Limited
Avenue (Third Ring Road - Outer Ring
Road) in Wuhan City, Hubei Province (#3t
EREMRMAB(ZRE-INRR)GER
ETREAA(EPC)IAR)
2 Municipal Road Construction Project (Section 39.6  China MCC 20 Group Co., Ltd.

1) for Qinghu South Section of Meiguan
Expressway in Shenzhen City (FIIT1EE:
BRENEEMHER IRET ZIZRIER)
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Contractual

No.  Name of Project Amount  Implementing Entity
(RMB100
million)

3 EPC+0 (Survey and Design, Procurement, 39.6  Huatian Engineering & Technology
Construction + Operation) Project for Corporation, MCC
Black and Odorous (Substandard) Water
Control and Improvement (Project I1l)
in the Central Part of Zhongshan City,
Guangdong Province (BR A& H LT LA
BERCREG)KBRARATIR(EED)
EPC+O(BVZaRET 7B - EI+i8%)ER)

4 Engineering and Construction Contract for 25.3  MCC TianGong Group
PPP Project of Infrastructure and Ancillary Corporation Limited
Services of Ganjiang Bingang Industrial
City in Yuhuan City, Zhejiang Province (4
TEERMHITES T EWMERRERRS
BLEPPPIER BE TIREIAR)

5 Construction Project of North Section of 19.8  China MCC 17 Group Co., Ltd.
Tongcheng Avenue (Xiaozhaiba Town —
Wujiang River) in Xifeng County, Guiyang
City, Guizhou Province (BM& &M ER
GRAXELR(NEFESTIR)BRER)

6 General Contracting Project for Phase | 17.3  China MCC 5 Group Co., Ltd.
Jintang Avenue-Jianyang-Huanglongxi
Expressway (The Section from Jianyang-
Renshou Expressway — Chengdu-Jianyang
Expressway to Airport South Line Section)
in Chengdu City, Sichuan Province (9)I|%&
RE T & B E R —H (R RS
RERERSHAR)EIEZBIEAR)

7 Construction General Contracting for PPP 14.9  China First Metallurgical
Project of Beichen East Road, Integrated Group Co., Ltd.
Piping System and Ancillary Engineering
in Beichen District, Tianjin City (K2 tK
BILRREEE e BRI EIEPPP
ERmIEABER)

8 Phase | of Comprehensive Habitat 14.3  China MCC 5 Group Co., Ltd.
Restoration Project (East and West Zones)
and Phase |l of Collaborative Project by
Social Joint Venture (South Zone) (Shaxi
Line to Chuan-Shan Road Section) for the
Around-city Ecological Zone in Chengdu
City, Sichuan Province (I9)I|& sk #i3R
WARREREEFSER (R ARE)—
B (BRR)ZHMEREREIVERE
JIBRBEZR A EIER)
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Contractual
Amount
(RMB100
million)

Implementing Entity

Construction Project of Extension
Engineering of Changxing Third Road,
Xiaoyun Avenue in Xiaogan City
(Connection Line in Yunmeng East Station
of Wuhan - Xi'an High Speed Rail)(Efi 5
HESRUMER) ZRTEERNBRA=]
THRIEBIER)

General Contracting Project for Construction
of Overnight Rooms and Ancillary Facilities
for Visitors of Meilan Airport in Haikou,
Hainan Province (8# % /8 O & F#5 IR
FREREREERTIEARER)

Supplemental Agreement of Financing
Construction Contracts for 27 Projects
Including Construction Project of
Dongshan Avenue and Construction
Project of Erligiao Road in Chengdu City,
Sichuan Province (79)I|& &M R 1L A &R
RAE —ERBEREARZ7ARARE
BRARZBRRBZ)

Construction Project for Urban Infrastructure
and Ancillary Facilities and Environmental
Improvements in Boxing County of
Binzhou, Shandong Province (L& & &M
TEREHRERIBEERRRRARR
EH)

Section | of the PPP Project for Fuquan
(Machangping - Longchang) Section
of Duyun-Weng'an Urban Main Road in
Fuquan City, Guizhou Province (BN &1
STBIESLTHTIHERER(FETE
B2 )RPPPEEE | BE)

Construction Project of Tourism Infrastructure
— SkyTrain Trial Line from Jinyuan to
Anren, Dayi County, Chengdu City,
Sichuan Province (W)l & &M AEHEER
ERCREERRE-EEARGER)

PPP Project for Infrastructure and
Supporting Facilities at Dangtu Economic
Development Zone, Ma'anshan City, Anhui
Province (RHA S&ILMERGLERLRE
EREEREPPPIRR)

12.8

12.0

11.0

10.9

10.6

10.5

10.1

MCC TianGong Group
Corporation Limited

China First Metallurgical
Group Co., Ltd.

China MCC 5 Group Co., Ltd.

MCC TianGong Group
Corporation Limited

China MCC 17 Group Co., Ltd.

China MCC 5 Group Co., Ltd.

China MCC 17 Group Co., Ltd.
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@ Emerging Industries

During the Reporting Period, the Company exerted efforts on emerging industries,
and made major breakthroughs in emerging industries such as urban integrated
subterranean pipeline corridor, featured theme engineering, sponge city, beautiful
countryside and smart city, healthcare and water environment improvement through
resource integration, technological advancement, marketing model adjustment to
constantly increase its competitiveness in emerging markets. The Company strived to
seize market opportunities by leveraging the advantages of its specialized technology
research institutes in specialized technologies, so as to provide customers with
all-round and comprehensive services along the entire industry chain.

In the urban integrated subterranean pipeline corridor field, as the earliest constructor
of integrated subterranean pipeline corridor in the PRC, the Company is able to
provide consultation, planning, survey, design, construction, supervision and
operating services, with professional comprehensive capability and overall strength
in the whole process of the projects and entire industrial chain. During the Reporting
Period, the Company won the bid for a batch of integrated pipeline corridor projects
with great social influence in Tianjin, Guangxi, Guizhou, Jilin, etc. As at the end of the
Reporting Period, the PPP and EPC pipeline corridor projects that the Company has
won the bid for continued to maintain its leading position in terms of mileage in the
domestic pipeline corridor market.

In the theme park field, as the world’s largest theme park contractor, the Company
has the only professional theme park design institute in China, and is the only one
in China with the qualification for theme park design-build project. In 2019, the
Company entered into and won the bid for a number of major projects including the
Construction Project for Main Works and Supporting Facilities of Children’s World of
Evergrande Cultural Tourism City in Shenyang, the Construction Project for Theme
Park of Evergrande Cultural Tourism City in Cangzhou, and Beijing Universal Studios
Theme Park — Audio and Video Design.

In the field of comprehensive improvement of water environment, the Company bore
in mind the concept that “Lucid Waters and Lush Mountains are Invaluable Assets”,
devoted itself to the construction of ecological civilization by strengthening its efforts
to develop a number of markets including general treatment of river basins, general
treatment of black odor water, municipal wastewater treatment and rural wastewater
treatment, with preliminary results achieved. In 2019, the Company won the bid for
and entered into a number of new major projects, including the EPC+0O Project No.
3 for Treatment and Improvement of Black and Odorous (Substandard) Water in
Central Groups of Zhongshan City, the Survey, Design and Construction General
Contracting Project for “Black and Odorous Water Improvement and Clear Water &
Green Bank” in Beibei District, Chongqging City, the EPC General Contracting Project
for Comprehensive Improvement of Guanggu Avenue Drainage Tunnel, Wuhan and
the Integrated Ecological Restoration Project for Loop Ecotope in Chengdu City.

The Company also strengthened its efforts on market development for environmental
protection businesses including soil restoration, waste incineration and mine
restoration, and resulted in the winning of bid for a number of projects including the
EPC General Contracting Project for Domestic Waste Incineration Power Plant with
Capacity of 4,000 tons/day in Hanoi, Vietnam and the Phase | Survey and Design
Project for Comprehensive Waste Disposal Facility in Xiong’an New Area, and the
Ecological Restoration Project for Residue Landfill in Jiading District, Shanghai. In
particular, the Phase | Project for Comprehensive Waste Disposal Facility in Xiong'an
New Area is the first fully concealed comprehensive waste disposal project in the
world, and the whole comprehensive waste disposal facility was constructed by
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following the concept of “De-industrialized Design”. By deploying waste disposal
functions underground and semi-underground, this project aims to perfectly integrate
suburb park, forest ski resort, concert hall and waste disposal plant. This project
employs several advanced technologies. For instance, the plant is fully enclosed
under negative pressure and will be operated in accordance with ultra-low emission
standards superior to those in Japan and the European Union.

During the Reporting Period, the key projects related to emerging industries entered
into by the Company are as follows:

Contractual
No. Name of Project Amount Implementing Entity
(RMB 100 million)

Integrated Piping System

1 Construction General Contracting for 14.9  China First Metallurgical Group Co.,
PPP Project of Beichen East Road, Ltd.
Integrated Piping System and
Ancillary Engineering in Beichen
District, Tianjin City (X;ZWit/RE
ERFEER  FAETBEMEIIZ
PPPIEE e L2 RIAR)

2 Construction General Contracting for 6.6 MCC Communication Construction
PPP Project of Integrated Piping Group Co., Ltd.
System along Chengdong Avenue
in Xuzhou City, Jiangsu Province
(IBHERMTBRERBELEAERL
EPPPIEEETAASABIER)

8 Integrated Subterranean Piping 4.2  China MCC 19 Group Co., Ltd.
System and Simultaneous
Construction Engineering for the
North Section of Cuicheng Road,
Cuiheng New Area, Zhongshan
City (PIURTFHRBEILRMT
RAEBRRFZERTIIR)

4 PPP Project for the Integrated 3.2  China MCC 3 Group Co., Ltd.
Subterranean Piping System in
Siping City (Beihe West Road —
North Huancheng Road) (P4 it
T4RAE RPPPIEE (AL Fa L — 4t
IR )

5 Supplemental Agreement on the Sub- 2.5 China MCC 3 Group Co., Ltd.
section Piping System (Xinhong
Street- Hadawan Street) of the
Integrated Subterranean Piping
System on Heshui Road under the
Construction Engineering Project
of North-South Expressway in
Hadawan Area, Jilin (MM iE & @
B TR A E B b AR E R T121E
BAKBXREBGNRE-MES
EmrEam)
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No. Name of Project

Contractual
Amount
(RMB 100 million)

Implementing Entity

Theme Park

1 Construction Project for Major and
Ancillary Facilities for the Theme
Park in Evergrande Cultural and
Tourism Town in Cangzhou, Hebei
Province (JAIdb& AN IE R AL bk
WMETEEETBEEEZRIER)

2 Construction Project for Main Body
and Supporting Facilities of
Children’s Paradise of Evergrande
Cultural Tourism City in Shenyang
City (RS8R b IRz = R 4E
Er®kiiERZRIER)

3 Main Structure and Supporting
Engineering of Evergrande Cultural
& Tourism Theme Park in E’ zhou
City, Hubei Province (L& M/ 1B
AR F BEE F B REEERER
TiEMETIER)

4 Engineering General Contracting
Project (After Capital Contribution)
for the Culture Park Project of
“Journey to the West” in Huaian,
Jiangsu Province ((T# & ML M s
R bERE(EER) TIREABIE
B)

5 Construction Engineering for Major
and Ancillary Facilities of Main
Castle (Steel Structures Inclusive)
at the Entrance of Children’s
Paradise in Evergrande Cultural
and Tourism Town in Cangzhou (/&
MEARSAL R BEE E /A O 5 R
(ZiEE) T RiEERZRTE)

20.0

20.0

20.0

15.4

4.9

MCC TianGong Group Corporation
Limited

China 22MCC Group Co., Ltd.

China First Metallurgical Group Co.,
Ltd.

Central Research Institute of
Building and Construction Co.,
Ltd.

Shanghai Baoye Group Corp., Ltd.
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Contractual
Amount Implementing Entity
(RMB100 million)

Industrial Environmental Protection
Business

1 Jiangbi Environmental Protection
&Technology Innovation Industrial
Park in Bao’an, Shenzhen City —
Environmental Protection Industry
Demonstration Park Zone (General
Contracting Project for Design,
Procurement and Construction)
Project (RYIITH B LT B REEHLA
FEXE-RREXENREERR (R
FHREM T AAE)ER)

2 Public and Auxiliary Units of Industrial
Upgrading and Technology
Renovation Project of Guangxi
Shenglong Metallurgical Co., Ltd.
— 2X360n Sintering Flue Gas and
Desulfurization and Denitrification
(BARIERS AR A A EEFRRK
T RsETE B A 8 T-2 X 360m B4
1 SRR A AE )

3 Integrated Coke Dry Desulfurization
and Denitrification Engineering
for Flue Gas and Active Coke of
Sintering Machine Head of Qian’an
Jiujiang Wire Rod Co., Ltd. (BZ
TULEMBRE LR R A MR
SRS — L BER R TA2)

4 Construction Installation Contract
on Environmental Dust Removal
General Contracting Project for
Industrial Upgrading of Hegang
and Production Capacity Transfer
of Xuansteel of Hegang Leting Iron
and Steel Co., Ltd. (/A% = A
PR X B0 8 28 B AR I B B E mE RS
HERBRELEAREAERELES
@)

® Ecological Restoration Pilot Project
for Abandoned Mines in Shizikou
Area, Jinniu Town, Binchuan
County (BJII &4 HEMF 0O H &
ERELARBERNRIER)

5.0 China First Metallurgical Group Co.,
Ltd.

5.0 WISDRI Engineering & Research
Incorporation Limited

4.1 WISDRI Engineering & Research
Incorporation Limited

1.6 MCC Capital Engineering &
Research Incorporation Limited

1.6 MCC TianGong Group
Corporation Limited
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Contractual
Amount
(RMB 100 million)

No. Name of Project

Implementing Entity

Waste Water and Solid Waste Treatment

1 Environmental Protection Project for 9.0
the Industry-Academy-Research
Industrial Park for Detoxification of
Industrial Solid Wastes in Shenmu,
Yulin City of Shaanxi Province (Bt
P i pR e K T2 [ B LR R
S EXERREIEER)

2 New Construction Engineering 6.3

(General Contracting Project

for Design, Procurement and

Construction) of Centralized

Industrial Wastewater Treatment

Plant in Jiangbi Environmental

Technology Innovation Industrial

Park in Bao’an, Shenzhen City (%

BRI ERREIREIFEREE-

THREKEPREMAEIREGGERS

R T aEE))

3 EPC Engineering for PPP Project
of No. 2 Household Waste
Incineration in Mianyang City (4%
FBhaE — 4 R EPPPIR A
EPCIE)

3.3

4 Zhonghe Garbage Compression 2.4
Station Project (9 Ay % B 48 uh T
2)

© Relocation Project of Heze Jinjiang 2.2

Environmental Energy Co., Ltd. (5

EIRTRRERERARBREART

2)

China 22MCC Group Co., Ltd.

China MCC 19 Group Co., Ltd.

WISDRI Engineering & Research
Incorporation Limited

China Second Metallurgical Group

Corporation Limited

WISDRI Engineering & Research
Incorporation Limited

|
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Contractual
No. Name of Project Amount Implementing Entity
(RMB100 million)

Specialty Towns

1 Health Town Project in Cihu High- 29.5  China MCC 3 Group Co., Ltd.
tech Zone, Ma’anshan City
(FRLTRAEMERENMETRE)

2 Yangihu International Resort Town 28.8  China Second Metallurgical Group
and Pastoral Complex Phase | in Corporation Limited
Shijiazhuang, Hebei
ORI Hb A 2R 5E 34 0 B PR AR 40 T2 MR
e AR RESA R 1)

3 EPC Project for Shipai Opera Culture 7.6 China MCC 17 Group Co., Ltd.

Specialty Town in Huaining County

— Jinji Lake, Surrounding Municipal

Roads, Connection Roads between

New Areas and Old Areas, etc.

(EBBARREM L E/NE—

SN RBETBEER - TR R

ZmEEBIKEEPCIAR )

4 General Contracting Project (F+EPC) 1.4  WISDRI Engineering & Research
for Design, Procurement and Incorporation Limited
Construction of Qingyunya Cultural
Tourism Characteristic Town in
Enshi
(BB EELIRER &/ 1A B
RETEREBIE L&A R (F+EPC))

(1 Property Development Business
7 Industry Overview

The property industry has ended its high-speed growth period and entered into a mature period
of relatively steady growth. For the purpose of establishing a long-term mechanism for the healthy
development of the property market, it is necessary to adhere to its policy positioning that “houses
should be built for living, not for speculation”, introduce policies according to cities’ circumstances,
provide guidance based on different categories, further consolidate the subject responsibility of
municipal governments, and improve the housing market system and housing security system.
Local governments implemented control measures on city clusters and transited from curbing
traditional demand end to increasing housing supply on the supply side. Restrictions on purchase,
loan and sale, coupled with restriction on land auction were imposed by governments, resulted in
the optimized supply structure and the gradual effect of the control measures. The industry featured
an increased degree of concentration with obvious differentiation in the markets of various cities
and a downward trend in the land markets of major cities. There continued to be differentiation
among property enterprises in terms of business performance, and large-scale property enterprises
continued to distinguish themselves in respect of the scale effect in sale, land acquisition, product,
marketing, financing and diversified layout.
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In the first half of 2019, the national investments in property development amounted to RMB6,160.930
billion, representing a nominal increase of 10.9% as compared with last year. The areas of new
construction of housing were 1,055.0860 million square meters (“sg.m.”), representing an increase
of 10.1%, among which, the areas of new construction of residential buildings were 779.9785 million
sg.m., representing an increase of 10.5%. The area of lands acquired by property development
enterprises was 80.3529 million sq.m., representing a decrease of 27.5% as compared with last
year.

2. The Operating Results of the Business

Weighted by the policies relating to “de-stocking” and “restrictions on property purchase and credit
grant”, the Company adopted different policies that were tailored to characteristics of each category
and of each city during the Reporting Period. MCC Real Estate Group Co., Ltd. (hereafter referred
to as “MCC Real Estate”), a subsidiary of the Company, carried on accomplishing the strategic
layout that Yangtze River Delta, Pearl River Delta and the Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Region are taken
as core development areas with coverage nationwide by speeding up works on reserving quality
land parcels in key areas. In the first half of 2019, through open tender, it acquired 2 land parcels
with site area and permissible gross floor area of 146,500 sg.m. and 293,000 sq.m., respectively.
MCC Real Estate ranked the 40th in “Top 100 Real Estate Developers in China”, ranked the 5th
in “Top 100 Enterprises with Most Profitability”, won the award of “Top 10 Chinese Real Estate
Developers with Most Brand Value”, ranked the 14th in “National Enterprises with Competitiveness
of Green Development” and was awarded “Outstanding Enterprise in China’s Urban Development
and Operation”. MCC Real Estate Service Co., Ltd. has become one of the enterprises among the
top 100 property service providers in China. It also won the awards of “Leading Brand Enterprises
in Specialized Operation of Property Service in China” and “Chinese Property Services Companies
of the Year in Social Responsibility”. The brand value of MCC Real Estate amounted to RMB10,376
million. The long-term credit rating of the company is rated as the highest rating of Grade AAA by
domestic authoritative credit rating agencies.

During the Reporting Period, the amount invested by the Company in property development was
RMB9.450 billion, representing a year-on-year decrease of 25.96%. The construction area was
10,738,600 sg.m., representing a year-on-year decrease of 0.40%, among which, new construction
area accounted for 829,500 sg.m., representing a year-on-year decrease of 56.06%; completed area
accounted for 1,054,100 sg.m., representing a year-on-year increase of 16.84%; contract sales area
of commercial housing accounted for 440,500 sq.m. with contract sales amount of RMB5.126 billion.

The overall operating results of the property development business in the first half of 2019

Unit: RMB’'000
In the first % of In the first Year-on-year
half of 2019 the total half of 2018 increase/decrease
Segment revenue 10,385,089 6.37% 10,487,722 -0.98%
Gross margin (%) 27.64 - 29.52 Decreased by 1.88

percentage points

Note:  The segment revenue and gross margin above are before inter-segment eliminations.
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During the Reporting Period, the highlights of property projects developed by the Company are as

follows:

M

2)

MCC Xinglong Xincheng e Hongshijun Project. On 2 November 2017, MCC Real Estate won
the land use rights through bidding for parcels located at Hongshili Village and Nantumen
Village of Xinglong County at RMB1.291 billion. The project is located in Xinglong County,
Chengde City, Hebei Province, which was elected as the “2017 100 Best Counties for
Summer Resort in China” and “100 Best Small Towns for Deep Breaths in China”, with a
total planning site area of 12,000 mu and total construction land of 3,000 mu. The planning
site area, construction land area and floor area for phase | of the project will be 4,000 mu,
1,847 mu and 1.76 million sg.m., respectively, with a planning plot ratio of 1.2. The project
represents the transformation of MCC Real Estate from a single-mode real estate developer
to an urban integrated operator. The project will, with no doubt, become the work of the time
created by a stronger MCC brand. The project was launched for initial sale on 23 June 2018,
with the first batch completed and delivered at the end of 2018. The remaining parts are
currently in the progress of main structure construction and internal and external decoration,
and expected to be completed and delivered in September 2019.

Zhuhai Headquarter Building Phase Il Project. In December 2010, Zhuhai Hengqin
Headquarter Building Investment and Development Co., Ltd. won through bidding the
state-owned land use right for the parcel of project at approximately RMB800 million in cash.
In 2015, MCC Real Estate acquired 31% equity interest in the project company through
equity transfer, and is responsible for the later-stage development of the project. The project
is located at Henggin port in Hengqgin Free Trade Area in Zhuhai City, which has superior
geographical position being on the other side of the river from Macao. The project is planned
to be a commercial and office complex, which is designed by Mr. Keith Griffiths, the founder
partner of the world-renowned architecture practices Aedas. Taking “double dragons in
pursuit of a pearl” as the design concept, the project is built to be a future landmark building
in Henggin and even Southern China. The pile foundation of the project is currently under
construction, and the preliminary formalities of the project are being handled. It is expected
that the project will be launched for initial sale in late 2019.

Hong Kong L’AQUATIQUE. In November 2013, Nan Hua International Engineering Ltd.
won Land Lot No. 70, Tsing Lung Tau, Tsuen Wan, Hong Kong by HK$500.18 million
through public tendering, which covers an area of approximately 4,868 sq.m.. Closed to
the seashore, the project boasts a spectacular 180-degree sea view that overlooks Ting
Kau-Lantau Island belt, and the winding Tsing Lung Wan, Tung Wan and Ma Wan ahead
is an exceptional and unique gulf landscape in Hong Kong. Adjacent to the high-profile
Hong Kong-Shenzhen-Macau new golden delta, the region will become a core of the Pearl
River Delta city cluster as the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macau Greater Bay develops with an
active market. The project unveiled its initial sales on 17 November 2018. Inspection and
acceptance of the project are in progress now, and is expected to complete in December
2019.
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(nry Equipment Manufacturing Business
1. Industry Overview

At present, the iron and steel industry made sustained efforts to promote the supply-side structural
reform. As a result, the industry structure constantly improved and the market order saw a noticeable
improvement. As the ancillary industry of the iron and steel industry, the domestic metallurgical
equipment manufacturing industry is expected to show gradual improvement in overall situation. In
the recent years, given the features of strong strength, great resilience capacity, high recyclability
and other advantages, the steel structure has been paid more attention by the state and recognized
by the market. As the state is actively transforming from “advancement of steel structure construction
in a proactive and sound manner” to “devotion of greater efforts in steel structure construction”, the
steel structure industry will have greater market potential in the future.

2. The Operating Results of the Business
The business of the Company’s equipment manufacturing segment mainly includes research
and development, design, manufacturing, sale, installation, fine-tuning, inspection and repair of
metallurgical equipment and its spare parts, steel structures and other metal products as well as

other related services.

The overall operating results of the equipment manufacturing business in the first half of 2019

Unit: RMB’000
In the first % of In the first Year-on-year
half of 2019 the total half of 2018 increase/decrease
Segment revenue 3,728,240 2.29% 3,262,958 14.26%
Gross margin (%) 11.40 - 11.27 Increased by 0.13

percentage point

Note:  The segment revenue and gross margin above are before inter-segment eliminations.

In the first half of 2019, the overall profitability of the equipment manufacturing segment
of the Company has continuously improved. Moving forward, the Company will focus on
environmentally-friendly relocation, technological transformation and upgrading, and reform and
innovation, continuously strengthen its process in the reorganization of the existing equipment
manufacturing drivers that provides support to the core technology which would likely have a more
favorable prospect.

The Company will further strengthen its strategic leadership of and control over the steel structure
business, continue to better allocate the assets of its steel structure business, further leverage the
advantages of the integrated whole industry chain covering research and development, design,
manufacturing, installation, testing and maintenance of the steel structures of the Company, make full
use of favorable market layout and brand awareness, and continuously build the overall competitive
advantage and brand image of the steel structure business of the Group with deepened reform.
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(1v) Resources Development Business

72

Industry Overview

Trade war has caused downward pressure on the growth of the global economy. Trade protectionism
has become an important factor to impede the development of global economy and global mining
industry. Besides, the state subsidies for the new energy vehicle industry were reduced or even
cancelled. Affected by multiple factors, such as stringent environmental protection policies on the
relevant industries downstream and weak demand, the market prices of the major non-ferrous metal
have declined in fluctuation since early 2018. According to the information of The London Metal
Exchange, in the first half of 2019, the average prices of copper, nickel, cobalt, lead and zinc fell by
over 10% as compared to the corresponding period of 2018. The biggest fall was the price of cobalt,
amounting to 57.7%. However, the price of LME nickel represented a rapid growth in July 2019 and
rebounded after a slight downward in late July, and then exceeded USD16,000/ton in August. The
price of cobalt also rebounded.

Increase/ Increase/
Average decrease as decrease as
Average price Average price price in the compared to compared
in the first in the year  first half of the first half to the year
half of 2018 of 2018 2019 of 2018 of 2018

(USD/ton) (USD/ton) (USD/ton)
LME copper 6,928 6,535 6,181 -10.8% -5.4%
LME nickel 13,932 13,176 12,392 -11.1% -6.0%
LME Cobalt 78,768 69,744 33,308 -57.7% -52.2%
LME lead 2,445 2,246 1,972 -19.3% -12.2%
LME zinc 3,239 2,892 2,670 -17.6% -7.7%

Source: WIND

The Operating Results of the Business

During the Reporting Period, the Company adhered to the business strategy of steady output and
steady sales for its resources development business, monitored the continuous optimization of each
production and technical indicators by mining projects under production with focus on cost reduction
and efficiency enhancement. In the first half of 2019, the total output of five metals including nickel,
cobalt, copper, lead and zinc increased significantly as compared to the corresponding period of
2018, representing an increase of 25%.

The overall operating results of the resources development business in the first half of 2019
Unit: RMB’000

The first half

The first half Year-on-year

of 2019 % of the total of 2018 increase/decrease

Segment operating 2,268,661 1.39% 3,213,019 -29.39%
revenue

Gross margin (%) 19.15 - 36.98 Decreased by 17.83

percentage points

Note:  The segment operating revenue and gross margin above are before inter-segment eliminations.
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The progress of the Company’s major mine resources projects under production is as follows:
(1) Papua New Guinea Ramu Nico Project

In the first half of the year, the project produced nickel hydroxide, which contained 16,429
tons of nickel and 1,497 tons of cobalt, which are slightly lower than those of the corresponding
period of 2018, and sold nickel hydroxide, which contained 16,044 tons of nickel and 1,479
tons of cobalt, which are slightly higher than those of the corresponding period of 2018. As
the benchmark project for the world’s laterite nickel mine, the project continued to exceed the
production target and meet the required standards.

2) Pakistan Duddar Lead-Zinc Mine Project

The project in the first half of the year produced 36,516 tons of zinc concentrate ore and 6,480
tons of lead concentrate ore, representing an increase of 83% and 136% respectively as
compared to the corresponding period last year. Since April, the mining and ore processing
system of the project has reached the required production volume and standards. The project
cumulatively sold 31,497 tons of zinc concentrate ore and 6,951 tons of lead concentrate ore,
representing an increase of 65% and 168% respectively as compared to the corresponding
period of 2018.

(3) Pakistan Saindak Copper-Gold Mine Project

In the first half of the year the production of crude copper of the project was 6,646 tons,
which was basically in line with that of the corresponding period of 2018. The sale of crude
copper of the project was 6,910 tons, representing an increase of 28% as compared to the
corresponding period of 2018.

II. MATERIAL CHANGES IN MAJOR ASSETS OF THE COMPANY DURING
THE REPORTING PERIOD

|:| Applicable Not applicable

lll. ANALYSIS ON CORE COMPETITIVENESS DURING THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Metallurgical engineering is the most comprehensive engineering industry that requires highest professionalism
in the engineering and construction field. Being a founder of metallurgical industry in new China, MCC has
accumulated over 70 years of technological experience, forming the core competitiveness for sustainable
development, which are reflected: in respect of technologies, continuously elevating core technological capabilities
and system integration abilities; in respect of management, constantly improving innovation ability and resource
integration capability; in respect of corporate culture, forming corporate spirit and vision with high popularity.

During the Reporting Period, there were no material changes in the Company’s core competitiveness.
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BUSINESS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

During the Reporting Period, the Company realized operating revenue of RMB159,017,379 thousand with a year-on-
year growth of 26.09%, total profit of RMB4,882,189 thousand with a year-on-year growth of 4.69%, and net profit
attributable to the Shareholders of the listed company of RMB3,156,882 thousand with a year-on-year growth of
8.59%.

(U} Analysis on major operating business
1. Analysis on the changes in the relevant items in financial statement
Unit:  RMB’000
Amount for the

Amount for the same period of the Change in

Item current period previous year proportion

(%)

Operating revenue 159,017,379 126,112,573 26.09
Operating costs 141,523,492 110,641,099 27.91
Selling expenses 1,030,968 830,485 24.14
Administrative expenses 4,147,974 3,826,959 8.39
Financial expenses 1,683,808 1,436,724 17.20
Research and development expenses 3,716,817 1,447,867 156.71

Net cash flows from operating activities (5,232,028) (8,106,592) N/A

Net cash flows from investing activities (3,345,769) (6,359,825) N/A

Net cash flows from financing activities 1,832,277 16,732,486 -89.05

Explanation of change in operating revenue: Increase in operating revenue was due to active
expansion in the market by the Company.

Explanation of change in operating costs: Increasing correspondingly along with the increase in
operating revenue and at the same time, impacted by the increase in costs including raw materials

in the market and labor costs.

Explanation of change in selling expenses: Mainly due to increase in market development expenses
such as staff expenses, advertising and sale service fees.

Explanation of change in administrative expenses: Mainly due to expansion of business scale and
market impacts, leading to increase in labor costs and other fees.

Explanation of change in financial expenses: Mainly due to increase in interest expenses.
Explanation of change in research and development expenses: Mainly due to increase in investment
in research and development by the Company, leading to increase in research and development

expenses.

Explanation of change in net cash flows from operating activities: Mainly due to increase in cash
received from sales of commodities and provision of labour service.

Explanation of change in net cash flows from investing activities: Mainly due to decrease in cash
outflow from the payment of investment activities.

Explanation of change in net cash flows from financing activities: Mainly due to decrease in inflow
from receipt in borrowings and equity interest financing.
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2. Analysis on revenue and costs
(1) Analysis on the factors causing the changes in business revenue

The Company’s financial position and business performance were subject to the combined
impact of multiple factors, including the changes in international and domestic macro
economies and the state financial and monetary policy and the development status of the
industry in which the Company was involved and the implementation of adjustment and
control measures of the industry imposed by the State:

1) Trend of macro-economy internationally and domestically

The international and domestic macro-economic environments and trends might
have an impact on the business segments of the Company, including procurement,
production and sales, thereby causing fluctuations in the Company’s business
performance. The Company’s business revenue mainly came from the domestic
market and so the Company’s business performance would vary during different
domestic economic cycles.

2) Changes in the policies of industry in which the Company was involved and demands
of its domestic and overseas markets

The Company’s engineering contracting, property development, resources
development and equipment manufacture businesses were all influenced by the
policies of the industry. In recent years, the adjustments to the business fields
and the regional market strategies have been guided, to a certain extent, by the
restructuring and upgrade of the steel and iron industry, pushed forward by the PRC’s
implementation of Made in China 2025, a nation strengthening strategy focusing on
manufacturing industries, and implementation of regulatory policies, a supporting
policy focusing on the property industry, periodic fluctuations of the industries and
changes in the operating situation of upstream and downstream enterprises of the
industries, and thereby influencing the Company’s internal structure and hence the
Company’s financial position.

Both items 1) and 2) above were the major risk factors that impacted the Company’s
performance for the first half of 2019.

3) Changes in the State’s tax policy and exchange rates
@) Impact from changes in the tax policy

The Company’s operating results and financial position were influenced by
changes in the state’s tax policy through the impact of tax burdens of the
Company and its subsidiaries.

The preferential tax policy for the development of the western regions and
the preferential tax policies for hi-tech enterprises currently enjoyed by some
of the Company’s subsidiaries, as well as the resources tax, and other taxes
may undergo some changes following the changes in the PRC’s tax policies.
Changes in the relevant preferential tax policies would affect the Company’s
financial performance.

@ Impact of the fluctuation in exchange rate and monetary policy
Part of the Company’s business revenue came from overseas markets.
Changes in the exchange rates may bring exchange rate risks to the
Company’s overseas business revenue and currency settlement.
In addition, adjustment in banks’ deposit reserve ratio and changes in deposit

benchmark interest rates and lending benchmark rates would impact on the
Company'’s financing costs and interest income.
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Overseas tax policies and their changes

The Company has business operations in many overseas countries and regions
and pays various taxes. Since the tax policies and environments are different in
various places and the regulations of the various taxes, including enterprise income
tax, tax of foreign contractors, individual income tax, capitation tax and interest
tax, are complicated and diversified, the Company’s overseas business may incur
corresponding risks due to tax policies and the changes thereof. Meanwhile, the
tax treatment for transactions and matters related to certain operating activities may
require enterprises to make corresponding judgment because of the uncertainty of
such tax treatment.

Changes in major raw materials prices

The Company’s engineering contracting, resource development and property
development businesses require raw materials including steel, wood, cement,
explosive initiators, waterproof materials, geometrical and additive agents while the
Company’s equipment manufacture business require steel and electronic parts etc.
Changes in the prices of the aforementioned raw materials due to factors such as
supply, market conditions and costs on materials will impact the Company’s costs of
the corresponding raw materials and consumables.

Construction subcontracting expenses

The Company may, according to the different situations of engineering contracting
projects, subcontract non-crucial construction parts to subcontractors. On one hand,
subcontracting boosted the Company’s capacity to undertake large-scale projects
and to fulfill contracts flexibly. On the other hand, the management of subcontractors
and the control of subcontracting costs may also affect profit on projects.

Operation of subsidiaries and key projects

The final result of the third party’s auditor of the Western Australia SINO Iron Ore EPC
General Contract Project, the progress of the Project of MCC Real Estate in Xiaguan
District of Nanjing, the recovery of payment for contract work from the government
and its financing platforms, the investment and operation of PPP project and the
recovery of payment from projects of some steel and iron enterprises will significantly
affect the future financial performance of the Company.

Enhancement in the quality of operational management

The quality of operational management will significantly affect the results of the
Company. The Company will continue to “Highlight the Theme of Reform and Focus
on Core Business”, strive to further improve the corporate governance and operation
of internal control in order to strengthen the operation management and risk control,
raise management quality and effectiveness, and perfect the assessment and
incentive systems of the Company. The Company will continue to deepen the design
and operation of “macro environment, major customers and large-scale projects”,
through systematic reform and innovation, as well as scientific decision-making to
stimulate the Company’s vitality and creativity, design and operation and achieve
a simple, efficient and effective management and control system. Whether these
management goals can be effectively implemented will also influence, to quite a large
extent, the improvement in the operating results of the Company.

Uneven distribution of revenue

The Company’s operating revenue mainly comes from the engineering contracting
business. Since the income of such business is affected by factors such as
government’s project approval, public holidays and the “freeze period” in the north,
the business revenue of the Company is usually higher in the second half of the year
than the first half, leading to an uneven distribution of income.
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2) Major business

1) Informa

and Analysis

by segment and region
tion of major by segment
Unit: RMB’000
Information of major business by segment
Increase or  Increase or

decrease in  decrease in
the operating the operating

revenue as costs as Increase or

compared compared decrease in the

to that of to that of gross margin as

Operating Operating Gross previous previous compared to that of

Segment revenue costs Margin period period previous period
(%) (%) (%)

Engineering 145,074,533 131,450,459 9.39 3042 30.76  Decreased by 0.24

contracting percentage point

Property 10,385,089 7,514,380 27.64 -0.98 1.65  Decreased by 1.88

development percentage points

Equipment 3,728,240 3,303,118 11.40 14.26 1409 Increased by 0.13

manufacture percentage point

Resource 2,268,661 1,834,103 19.15 -29.39 -9.42  Decreased by 17.83

development percentage points

Note:

@

m Metallurgical Corporation of China Ltd.

The statistics of segment revenue and costs are figures before inter-segment eliminations.
Engineering contracting business

Engineering contracting business is the traditional core business of the
Company which is mainly carried out by way of EPC contract and general
financing and construction contracting contract, and is currently the major
source of income and profits of the Company. The gross profit margins of the
engineering contracting business for the first half of 2019 and 2018 were 9.39%
and 9.63%, respectively, with a year-on-year decrease of 0.24 percentage
point. The decrease was mainly due to the fierce market competition and the
increase in cost of factors of production such as materials and labour costs.

The proportion of the operating revenue accounting for the total amount
of engineering contracting in each sub-segment of the Company for the

corresponding period during the recent three years are as follows:

Unit: RMB'000

ltems of In the first half of 2019 In the first half of 2018 In the first half of 2017

revenue Amount  Proportion (%) Amount  Proportion (%) Amount  Proportion (%)

Metallurgical engineering 29,393,644 2026 26,233,380 2358 21,156,717 24.36

Housing construction 67,438,866 46.49 43,267,674 38.90 42,046,646 48.41
engineering

Transportation 31,022,810 2138 27,745,846 2494 20,103,977 23.15
infrastructure

Note:  The statistics of segment revenue are figures before inter-segment eliminations.
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Property development business

As at the first half of 2019 and 2018, the total gross profit margins of the
Company’s property development business were 27.64% and 29.52%
respectively, with a year-on-year decrease of 1.88 percentage points, mainly
due to macro regulatory environment of the property market.

Equipment manufacture business

The Company’s equipment manufacture business mainly included
metallurgical equipment, steel structures and other metal products. As at
the first half of 2019 and 2018, the gross profit margins of the Company'’s
equipment manufacture business were 11.40% and 11.27%, respectively,
representing an increase of 0.13 percentage point as compared with the same
period last year.

Resource development business

The Company’s resource development business included mining and
processing. MCC Tongsin Resources Limited (MCCT) (/a8 %£E5RiZ AR A7)
and MCC-JJJ Mining Development Company Limited (/62 S REMZEAR LD
Al), among others, were mainly engaged in the mining business while China
Silicon Co., Ltd. (5 EREHERAR 2 E]), the polysilicon manufacturing
enterprise, was mainly engaged in the processing business. As at the first
half of 2019 and 2018, the gross profit margins of the Company’s resource
development business were 19.15% and 36.98%, respectively, representing a
decrease of 17.83 percentage points as compared with the same period last
year, mainly due to the volatile polysilicon and nickel market price.

2) Explanation on Major Business by Region

For details, please refer to the Note XV “1. Segment Information” to “Financial
Statements and Review Report” in this report.

(3) Table of analysis on costs
Unit: RMB’000
Situation by segment

Percentage
change in the
Proportion of  amount for the
the amount  current period
Proportion of for the same  as compared
the amount Amount forthe  periodinthe to that for the
for the current  same period in  previous year same period in
Costs Amount forthe  periodtothe the previous tothe total  the previous
Segment component current period total costs year costs year
(%) (%) (%)
Engineering contracting operating costs 131,450,459 90.29 100,528,921 87.94 30.76
Property development operating costs 7,514,380 516 7,392,194 6.47 1.65
Equipment manufacture operating costs 3,303,118 221 2,895,060 2.53 14.09
Resource development operating costs 1,834,103 1.26 2,024,821 1.77 0.42

Note:  The segment costs is figures before inter-segment eliminations.

2019 Interim Report m



Business Discussion and Analysis

Description of other results in the analysis on costs

The major components of costs of construction projects of the Company for the same period
of the first half of recent three years are as follows:

Unit: RMB’000

In the first half of 2019 In the first half of 2018 In the first half of 2017

Items of costs Amount Proportion Amount Proportion Amount Proportion

(%) (%) (%)
Subcontracting expenses 63,866,006 48.59 48,729,406 48.47 43,946,764 56.80
Materials expenses 45,008,851 34.24 34,485,560 34.30 21,569,632 21.88
Labour costs 9,228,230 7.02 7,126,202 7.09 4,837,489 6.25
Machinery usage fees 2,561,410 1.95 1,908,568 1.90 1,255,193 1.62
Others 10,785,962 8.20 8,279,185 8.24 5,760,678 745
Total engineering cost 131,450,459 100.00 100,528,921 100.00 77,369,756 100.00

The major components of costs of construction projects of the Company are subcontracting
expenses, materials expenses, labour costs and machinery usage fees. The proportion of
each component of costs to operating costs is relatively stable.

(4) Information of major customers and major suppliers
The sales of top five major customers amounted to RMB7,710,835 thousand, accounting for
4.85% of the total sales of the Reporting Period. Sales of top five major customers derived
from the sales to related parties amounted to RMB929,351 thousand, accounting for 0.58% of
the total sales of the Reporting Period.

Unit: RMB'000

Proportion of

the total

operating

Operating revenue of

Customer’s name revenue the Group
(%)

Unit 1 2,435,988 1.68
Unit 2 2,119,739 .88
Unit 3 1,195,955 0.76
Unit 4 1,029,802 0.65
Unit 5 929,351 0.58
Total 7,710,835 4.85
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The procurement of top five major suppliers amounted to RMB2,983,142 thousand,
accounting for 1.95% of the total procurement of the Reporting Period; in particular, the
procurement from related parties under the procurement of top five major suppliers amounted
to RMB1,035,504 thousand, accounting for 0.68% of total procurement of the Reporting

Period.

Unit:  RMB’000

Proportion of

Procurement for the total operating

Supplier’s name the current period costs of the Group
(%)

Supplier 1 1,085,504 0.68

Supplier 2 903,575 0.59

Supplier 3 378,151 0.25

Supplier 4 359,191 0.23

Supplier 5 306,721 0.20

Total 2,983,142 1.95

Analysis on Expenses
(1) Selling expenses

The Company’s selling expenses mainly include employee compensation costs, travelling
expenses, transportation expenses, advertising and sale services expenses. In the first
half of 2019 and 2018, the Company’s selling expenses were RMB1,030,968 thousand and
RMB830,485 thousand respectively, representing a year-on-year increase of 24.14%.

2) Administrative expenses
The Company’s administrative expenses mainly include employee compensation costs,
depreciation expenses and office expenses. In the first half of 2019 and 2018, the Company’s
administrative expenses were RMB4,147,974 thousand and RMB3,826,959 thousand
respectively, representing a year-on-year increase of 8.39%.

(3) Financial expenses
The Company'’s financial expenses include costs of borrowing, exchange gains or losses,
bank charges, etc. incurred in operating business. In the first half of 2019 and 2018, the
Company’s financial expenses were RMB1,683,808 thousand and RMB1,436,724 thousand
respectively, representing a year-on-year increase of 17.20%.

Research and development expenditure

The research and development expenditure of the Company are as follows:

Unit: RMB’'000
Research and development expenditure for the current period 3,716,817
Total research and development expenditure 3,716,817
Proportion of total research and development expenditure to operating income (%) 284
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5. Cash flows

The cash flows of the Company are as follows:

Unit: RMB'000
January to January to
Items June 2019 June 2018
Net cash flows from operating activities (5,232,028) (8,106,592)
Net cash flows from investing activities (3,345,769) (6,359,825)
Net cash flows from financing activities 1,832,277 16,732,486
(1) Operating activities

(2

(3)

In the first half of 2019 and 2018, the Company’s net cash flows generated from operating
activities amounted to RMB-5,232,028 thousand and RMB-8,106,592 thousand respectively.
In the first half of 2019 and 2018, the cash inflow generated from operating activities
mainly came from the cash receipts from the sale of goods and the rendering of service.
The Company’s cash outflow generated from operating activities mainly consisted of cash
payments for goods purchased and services received, cash payments to and on behalf of
employees and payments of various types of taxes.

Investing activities

In the first half of 2019 and 2018, the Company’s net cash flows generated from investing
activities amounted to RMB-3,345,769 thousand and RMB-6,359,825 thousand respectively.
The operating activities of the Company mainly came from engineering contracting and
property development business.

The Company’s cash inflow generated from investing activities mainly consisted of cash
receipts from recovery of investments, investment income and disposal of assets. Cash
outflow mainly included cash payments to acquire or construct fixed assets, intangible assets
and other long-term assets and cash payments to acquire investments.

Financing activities

In the first half of 2019 and 2018, the Company’s net cash flows generated from financing
activities amounted to RMB1,832,277 thousand and RMB16,732,486 thousand respectively.

The Company’s cash inflow from financing activities mainly consisted of cash received from
capital contributions and net cash inflow from interest-bearing liabilities in accordance with
the needs of operation and management.
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6. Others

(1) Detailed explanation of major changes in the structure or sources of Company’s profits

|:| Applicable Not applicable

2) Other

|:| Applicable Not applicable

()} Description of material changes in profits from non-major business

|:| Applicable Not applicable

(nry Analysis on assets and liabilities

1. Assets and liabilities

Unit: RMB'000

Proportion Percentage

of the change in

amount at Proportion of  the amount

the end of the amount at the end of

the current at the end of the current

period with the previous period as

respect to period with compared

Amount at the total Amount at respect to to that at

the end of assets/ the end of the total the end of

the current total the previous assets/total the previous

ltems period liabilities period liabilities period

(%) (%) (%)

Current Assets 349,727,262 77.04 339,420,571 77.33 3.04

Cash and bank balances 38,385,580 8.46 44,477,302 10.13 -13.70

Accounts receivable 66,567,677 14.66 66,958,297 15.26 -0.58

Other receivables 62,213,693 13.70 56,385,242 12.85 10.34

Inventories 58,244,261 12.83 57,608,321 13.13 1.10

Contract assets 74,694,725 16.45 66,719,549 15.20 11.95

Non-current Assets 104,248,093 22.96 99,495,272 22.67 4.78

Fixed assets 26,397,894 5.81 27,370,040 6.24 -3.55

Intangible assets 16,308,295 3.59 16,133,729 3.68 1.08

Total Assets 453,975,355 100.00 438,915,843 100.00 3.43

Current Liabilities 312,076,562 89.56 296,985,847 88.32 5.08

Short-term borrowings 49,148,469 14.10 47,973,564 14.27 2.45

Accounts payable 118,549,687 34.02 113,260,891 33.68 4.67

Contract liabilities 55,175,962 15.83 58,918,293 17.52 -6.35

Non-current Liabilities 36,389,464 10.44 39,260,552 11.68 -7.31

Long-term borrowings 27,650,188 7.93 23,793,236 7.08 16.21

Total Liabilities 348,466,026 100.00 336,246,399 100.00 3.63

2019 Interim Report m



Business Discussion and Analysis

Analysis on assets and liabilities:
(1) Analysis on the structure of assets
Cash and bank balances

As at 30 June 2019 and 31 December 2018, the balances of cash and bank balances of
the Company were RMB38,385,580 thousand and RMB44,477,302 thousand, respectively,
representing a year-on-year decrease of 13.70%.

As at 30 June 2019 and 31 December 2018, the restricted cash and bank balances of the
Company were RMB11,968,048 thousand and RMB11,326,300 thousand respectively. The
restricted cash and bank balances mainly included the cash deposits of acceptance bill, and
savings and statutory reserve saved in the Central Bank.

Accounts receivable

As at 30 June 2019 and 31 December 2018, the Company’s net accounts receivable
were RMB66,567,677 thousand and RMB66,958,297 thousand respectively, representing
a decrease of 0.568%. The Company always places great emphasis on the safety and
completeness of accounts receivable and adopts strong measures to clear up debts, collect
each of the receivables timely based on terms and schedules as agreed in the contracts.
Provision for bad debts has been made to items with potential risks in collectability, but the
efforts put to collect the accounts receivables will not be affected.

Other receivables

As at 30 June 2019 and 31 December 2018, the Company’s net amount of other receivables
were RMB62,213,693 thousand and RMB56,385,242 thousand, respectively, mainly
attributable to an increase in deposits for various projects by the Company.

Inventories

The inventories of the Company mainly consisted of property costs under development,
completed properties held for sale, raw materials, work in process, finished goods, etc. The
inventory of the Company reflected the characteristics of the engineering and contracting,
property development, equipment manufacture and resource development businesses in
which the Company was engaged. As at 30 June 2019, the Company’s net inventories were
RMB58,244,261 thousand. As at 31 December 2018, the Company’s net inventories were
RMB57,608,321 thousand.

Contract assets
The contract assets are mainly related to engineering contracting service. As at 30 June

2019, the net contract assets of the Company were RMB74,694,725 thousand. As at 31
December 2018, the net contract assets of the Company were RMB66,719,549 thousand.
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2) Analysis on the structure of liabilities
Long-term and short-term borrowings

Long-term and short-term borrowings of the Company mainly consisted of credit loans,
and pledge loans from commercial banks and other financial organizations. As at 30 June
2019 and 31 December 2018, the carrying amount of the Company’s short-term borrowings
were RMB49,148,469 thousand and RMB47,973,564 thousand, respectively, with a year-on-
year increase of 2.45%. As at 30 June 2019 and 31 December 2018, the carrying amount of
the Company’s long-term borrowings were RMB27,650,188 thousand and RMB23,793,236
thousand, respectively, with a year-on-year increase of 16.21%.

Accounts payable

Accounts payable mainly included such material costs payable to suppliers and engineering
costs payable to subcontractors by the Company. As at 30 June 2019 and 31 December
2018, the Company’s carrying value of accounts payable were RMB118,549,687 thousand
and RMB113,260,891 thousand respectively with a year-on-year increase of 4.67%.

Contract liabilities

The contract liabilities mainly included engineering contracting service contracts, sales
contracts and related contract liabilities. As at 30 June 2019 and 31 December 2018, the
carrying amount of the Company’s contract liabilities was RMB55,175,962 thousand and
RMB58,918,293 thousand, respectively, with a year-on-year decrease of 6.35%.

Restrictions on major assets as at the end of the Reporting Period

For details, please refer to Note VII 69 to “Financial Statements and Review Report” in this report.
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(1v) Analysis on the operational information in the construction industry
1. Inspection and acceptance on completion of construction projects during the Reporting Period
Unit: RMB’000

Housing Infrastructure Professional

Sub-segment construction construction engineering Others Total
Number of projects (Unit) 1,394 313 1,387 532 3,626
Total amount 3,621,399 3,447,463 7,472,999 1,414,614 15,956,475
Unit: RMB'000
Project location Domestic Overseas Total
Number of projects (Unit) 3,544 82 3,626
Total amount 15,433,126 523,349 15,956,475
2. Projects under construction during the Reporting Period

Unit: RMB’000

Housing Infrastructure Professional

Sub-segment construction construction  engineering Others Total
Number of projects (Unit) 8,878 2,227 3,933 1,363 10,896
Total amount 63,962,858 27,236,050 29,919,617 13,624,577 134,743,102
Unit: RMB’000
Project location Domestic Overseas Total
Number of projects (Unit) 10,110 786 10,896
Total amount 125,812,001 8,931,101 134,743,102
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Substantial projects under construction

|:| Applicable Not applicable

Overseas projects during the Reporting Period

Unit: RMB'000
Number
Project location of projects Total amount
(Unit)
Asia 616 7,944,635
Africa 101 775,858
South America 56 588,009
Europe 42 47,593
Oceania 35 86,683
North America 18 11,672
Total 868 9,454,450

Note:  The above data are before elimination of inter-segment transactions.

Financing arrangements of the Company
Debt financing and financing by other equity instruments of the Company

At the end of the Reporting Period, the balance of debt financing and financing by other equity
instruments of the Company amounted to RMB120.330 billion, representing an increase of 5.58%
as compared to the beginning of the period, which better satisfied the capital needs for enterprise
development and industrial structure adjustment. Among them, the balances of debt financing
and financing by other equity instruments amounted to RMB100.510 billion and RMB19.820 billion,
respectively, which contributed to the further optimization of financing structure; the balance of
financing due within one year and the long-term financing balance amounted to RMB71.113 billion
and RMB49.217 billion, respectively.

Investment in Yingtan MCC-CIF Industrial Development Partnership (LP)

As reviewed and approved by the Board of the Company, MCC, China Credit Trust Co., Ltd., MCL-
CCB Investment Fund Management (Beijing) Company Limited (F/AREREELERE(ILR)AR
A@]) and CIF (Beijing) Investment Fund Management Co., Ltd. ({ERIRE (L R)BEREESLE
EARRAF]) jointly established Yingtan MCC-CIF Industrial Development Partnership (LP) on 22
December 2017. The total subscribed contribution is RMB18,000.16 million in cash, among which
the subscribed contribution of MCC, being a limited partner, is RMB8,800 million or 48.8885%; the
subscribed contribution of China Credit Trust Co., Ltd., being a limited partner, is RMB9,200 million
or 51.1107%; MCC-CCB Investment Fund Management (Beijing) Company Limited (F/AZEIEEE
2B (ALR)ARAE]) and CIF (Beijing) Investment Fund Management Co., Ltd. ({2 8RR (16 R ) A%
EIEESEIEER AR are general and executive partners and their subscribed contributions are
RMB80 thousand or 0.0004%, respectively. During the Reporting Period, no additional paid-in capital
contribution of the Company was made.
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V) Investment analysis
As of 30 June 2019 and 31 December 2018, the net financial assets held for trading of the Company were
RMB1,039 thousand and RMB1,124,150 thousand, respectively, representing a year-on-year decrease of
99.91%. As of 30 June 2019 and 31 December 2018, the net long-term equity investments of the Company
were RMB15,736,055 thousand and RMB13,854,855 thousand, respectively, representing a year-on-year
increase of 13.58%. As of 30 June 2019 and 31 December 2018, net investment in other equity instruments
of the Company were RMB1,875,161 thousand and RMB1,867,964 thousand, respectively, representing a
year-on-year increase of 0.39%. As of 30 June 2019 and 31 December 2018, the net investment in other
non-current financial assets of the Company was RMB4,425,069 thousand and RMB4,214,624 thousand,
respectively, representing a year-on-year increase of 4.99%.
For details, please refer to Note VII 2, 13, 14, 15 to “Financial Statements and Review Report” in this report.
(1) Substantial equity investments

|:| Applicable Not applicable

2) Substantial non-equity investments

|:| Applicable Not applicable

(3) Financial assets measured at fair value

Applicable |:| Not applicable

For details, please refer to Note XI to “Financial Statements and Review Report” in this report.

(v Disposal of substantial assets and equity interest

|:| Applicable Not applicable

(VIl)  Analysis of major controlled companies and investees

|:| Applicable Not applicable

(VIl) Structured entities under the control of the Company

|:| Applicable Not applicable
II. OTHER DISCLOSURE

(U} Warning and description of a forecast recording a loss-making aggregate net profit from the beginning
of the year to the end of next Reporting Period or recording a substantial year-on-year change

|:| Applicable Not applicable
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(n Possible Risks
1. Risks associated with macro-economy

The principal businesses engaged by the Company including engineering contracting and property
development are closely related to various external factors, such as operating condition of the
macroeconomies of the State, fixed assets investments, development of the construction industry
and urbanization development, and the regulatory and control policy on real estate, etc. Currently,
the global economy faces larger downward pressure. Developed countries and major emerging
economies continue to slow down their growth pace. Monetary policies will be more likely to be
shifted to more relaxed ones, with weak prices of certain bulk commodities and slowdown in growth
of trading. The decrease in commodity prices has led to a decrease in profit, which is unfavorable
to overall corporate investment. Influenced by the long-term Sino-U.S. trade friction, the lack of
confidence of domestic investors and declined market expectation and demand, the economic
growth has been at the longest period of slowdown in growth since reform and opening up. The
external uncertainties and the internal downward pressure on economy has dampen the confidence
of enterprises for investment. Standardization of the local government's debt management and
further stringent control of risks, credit service and social finance improved slowly, which restricted
the development of enterprise investment, continuous decrease of fixed asset investment, which is
below the GDP growth, in particular, slowdown of manufacturing industry and private investment, will
bring uncertainties to the business development of the Company.

The Company will manage reasonable expectations, adjust its operating strategies and leverage
on its favorable conditions to grasp market opportunity in order to persistently advance the high
technology and quality development of the enterprise.

2. Risks associated with traditional metallurgical engineering business segment

In recent years, the global iron and steel industry has entered into the third stage of deep
adjustment. Higher requirements have been set on the iron and steel industry in speeding up the
building of a powerful manufacturing country and strengthening the prevention and treatment of
environmental pollution. The recovery of the iron and steel industry will further motivate the iron and
steel industry to speed up the pace of environmental protection transformation, structural adjustment
and transformation and upgrading. Currently, the major contradictions faced by the iron and
steel industry have been converted to the incompatibility between industrial structure and market
competitive demands and the incompatibility between the level of green development and demands
for ecological environment. Enterprises are faced with new opportunities and challenges due to the
unbalanced and uncertain industry development trend.

The Company persistently adheres to the guideline of “building up a national team for metallurgical
construction” to propel the implementation of the top-level design plan and strategies by a national
team of advisers and push forward the integration of internal resources and professional echelon
division, in order to continuously increase the competitiveness and influence of the Company in
the global iron and steel engineering technology sector. In recent years, while focusing on new
production capacity, the Company has paid attention to the technological transformation of its
existing production capacity, relocation of urban steel plants and continuously enhanced its efforts
on transformation from traditional metallurgical engineering field to fundamental construction area
and emerging markets to expand its market share. The amount of newly signed contracted value of
metallurgical engineering fell below 20% of the total amount of newly signed contracted value by
the Company, which shows that the Company successfully completed business transformation and
effectively defused the risk associated with metallurgical engineering market.
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3. Risks associated with the non-steel engineering segment

Unlike the traditional metallurgical engineering market, the overall growth of investment in fixed assets
slowed down and the competition in the non-steel engineering market is increasingly competitive.
The state has successively introduced relevant policies to continuously increase its investment in
municipal infrastructure construction. The total market volume of highways and railways will remain
at a high level for a period of time. New municipal engineering projects such as urban rail transit,
sewage and garbage treatment, environmental governance and sponge city are expected to
maintain rapid growth. Optimization of industry investment structure, control of scale of real estate
investment, reasonable layout of infrastructure investment, regulation of PPP projects are the main
factors affecting the investment.

As “the main force for fundamental construction and the forerunner of the emerging industries”, the
Company has actively responded to the risk of competition in the non-steel engineering markets
with open mind and advanced with time, and further adapted to the environmental changes. It
has expanded the research and innovation of business models such as PPP model and constantly
improved the design and operation of “macro environment, heavyweight clients and mega projects”.
It devotes its efforts to developing the non-steel engineering markets such as premium property
construction, highways, transport and municipal infrastructure, integrated subterranean pipeline
corridor, sponge city, smart city and beautiful countryside by relying on its traditional comparative
advantages and core competitiveness in terms of technology, management and capital. It endeavors
to build up an entire industrial chain capability for one-stop services, enhance its brand influence,
vigorously expand and develop markets and continuously strengthen risk resistance capability and
has achieved remarkable success.

4. Risks associated with the property development business segment

With the end of the fast-growing period of the property industry and the beginning of a mature period
of relatively stable growth, for the purpose of building a long-term mechanism for sound development
of the real estate market, the Company adhered to the principle of “houses should be built for living,
not for speculation”, adopted policies that were tailored to characteristics of each city, provided
guidance according to classification and consolidated the main duties of the city government to
optimize the housing market system and housing security system. The degree of concentration of the
industry further enhanced. Market differentiation was obvious in various cities. Market prices cooled
off in the land market of hotspot cities. The operating performance of property companies remained
diversified. Sizable property companies have yielded continuous significant results in their economy
of scale in relation to sales, land acquisitions, products, marketing, financing and diversified layout
and other areas. The macroeconomic control measures are expected to be loosened under the
keynote of stabilizing the property market. The property companies should adapt to the market trend
and seek new breakthrough even at the new stage of development. On one hand, corporations
need to grasp the structural opportunities and concentrate on the surrounding cities of metropolitan
clusters and the cities supported by an industrial population due to divergence in different cities. On
the other hand, the Company should exercise caution on market risks, especially the high inventory
risks of the commercial property market.

The Company closely studied policies and optimized its business model. It adhered to what the
Company can do to ensure its steady growth and grasped the rhythm of real estate cycle, adopted
policies that were tailored to characteristics of each city, and responded to the combination of
people flow and fund flow. Under the premise that risks are reasonably controlled, high-end and
high-quality projects were constructed.
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Risks associated with financial segment

International and domestic markets are facing more complex financial environment. The world
economies are slowly recovering at different paces, and the Federal Reserve turned from interest
rate hike to release the interest rate cut signal. The global financial environment is complicated.
Affected by the Sino-US trade frictions, macro-economic trend and monetary policies, etc., it
becomes more difficult to predict the trend of exchange rate. Domestically, the government sticks
to the principle of maintaining a stable and neutral monetary policy with appropriate flexibility, and
continuously deepens the reform of financial system. Recent policies have shown signs of loosened
regulation; however, it is unlikely that the monetary policy will be fully relaxed.

The Company needs to continue to optimize the financing structure, prevent capital risks, pay close
attention to the changes in exchange rates, reduce risk exposure on foreign exchange, effectively
carry out foreign exchange hedging business in a timely manner, and save financial costs and
increase utilization efficiency in capital with multi-measures.

Risks associated with bulk commodity prices

The market price of bulk commodities such as engineering raw materials and metal mineral
resources related to the Company’s business will be affected by the international and domestic
macro-economic environment and may fluctuate in varying degrees and thus affect the production
and operation costs, income and profits of the Company.

In response to the market price of bulk commodities, the Company strengthened the research and
forecast on the trends and policies, and made appropriate arrangements for procurement and sales
plans. At the same time, the Company will strengthen its efforts on process improvement to further
improve project output, and strengthen the costs control, reduce energy consumption and take all
possible measures to reduce the costs on production, operation and other costs.

Risks associated with international operations

The operating businesses of the Company in various countries and areas are subject to local factors
in respect of politics, economy, society, laws, exchange rate, bilateral relationships and etc., which
may subject overseas businesses of the Company to certain risks and may lead to the failure of
projects to be completed on schedule or occurrence of contractual disputes. These will affect the
revenue and profits of overseas businesses of the Company.

The Company will conduct in-depth study on changes of various policies and regulations, and
measures in response to the market, exchange rate and other risks of the places where the projects
are based, build a trusted cooperative relationship with local governments, property owners
and project related parties in compliance with contracts, carry out localization management and
make great efforts to fulfill the contract. The Company consistently insist on assessment and risk
examination of contracts on overseas construction projects before tendering and implementing a
classified risk management mechanism during the process and optimize the emergency plans for
the overseas construction projects in a bid to reduce the international operating risks.
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8. Environmental and social risks

The Company comprehensively intensifies ecological and environmental protection, strives to win
the battle of pollution prevention and control, and insists on green development as an important
national strategy. The subsidiaries of MCC engage in businesses including resources development,
equipment manufacturing, engineering and contracting, as well as property development. Numerous
subsidiaries and respective projects result in higher standard of requirements on environmental
protection management for the enterprises. The Company continuously improves its awareness
on the ecological and environmental protection, consciously fulfills the political task and social
responsibility of implementing the Xi Jinping’s ecological civilization thought, seriously putting
into practice the ideology that “Lucid Waters and Lush Mountains are Invaluable Assets”, and
persisting on win the battle of pollution prevention and control, actively persists on the relevant
national laws and regulations of energy conservation and environmental protection, implements
accountability system on enterprise bodies, continuously improves the energy conservation and
environmental protection system, enhances daily supervision, and proactively initiates environmental
pollution control. Enterprises under the construction category of the Company shall carry out
in-depth environmental friendly construction, and push forward energy, land, water and resources
conservation as well as environmental protection in full efforts; enterprises under the production
category of the Company shall increase the utilization efficiency of the resources and reduce the
emission of pollutants through technology innovation so as to enhance clean production.

&l Risks associated with data fraud or theft
During the Reporting Period, MCC did not get involved in any data fraud and theft cases.

In order to guard state secrets and protect commercial secrets, MCC has formulated a set of
relatively comprehensive rules and regulations on confidentiality, including the “Administrative
Requirements on Guarding State Secrets” ({IRFERXWEEIEHE )), the “Administrative Measures
on Commercial Secrets” ((FEEMEREIRIE)), the “Implementing Rules for the Management of
Personnel Involved in Secrets of MCC Headquarters” ((FEIFIAEI ST ABEREHEAA)), the
“Implementing Rules for the Exchange of Confidential Information of MCC” ({ FEIF /A BB T
YEE 4R )) and the “Implementing Rules for the Management of Meetings Involving Confidential
Information of MCC Headquarters” ((FEFAEE I Z SR REEEEHRAA)).

The Company adopts various promotional and educational measures annually in order to raise
awareness of information confidentiality of the employees, and urge the employees to be alert. The
Company randomly assesses the information confidentiality of its subsidiaries every year, conducts
interviews with members from the information confidentiality office of all subsidiaries, investigates
and reviews relevant system and recorded documents, retrieves previous confidential documents
and on-site investigation to conduct investigation on the employment of personnel in all units,
establishment of information confidentiality system, secret classification management, information
system management and other aspects, as well as requires the units under investigation to submit
rectification reports within a time limit.
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10. Cyber risk and security

Following the in-depth application of “Internet Plus” in informatization domain, network topology
of enterprises becomes increasingly complicated. The number of information system is surging,
resulting in higher possibility of internet disruptions and system breakdown; the Company endeavors
to expand overseas markets for enhancement in international influence. At the same time, the risk
from cyberattacks to the information system has been increased. The occurrence of the risk events
may cause adverse impacts on the production and operating activities of the Company.

Pursuant to the requirements by the competent authorities at a higher level, the Company persistently
optimizes and improves the information network system, upgrades the capability of protection and
emergency response, forms a professional team for security of network and information system,
initiates protection by levels, major security checks and other relevant projects each year to develop
a comprehensive safety and protection system. Thus, the Company will make the utmost effort to
prevent from risks associated with the internet and avoid the occurrence of security incidents.

(i) OTHER DISCLOSURE

|:| Applicable Not Applicable
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Significant Events

I. SUMMARY OF THE GENERAL MEETING

Date of
Enquiry index of the disclosure of the
designated website for the publication of
Session of the meeting Convening date publication of the resolutions the resolutions
2019 first extraordinary general 12 March 2019 WWW.sse.com.cn 12 March 2019
meeting www.hkexnews.hk
2018 annual general meeting 26 June 2019 WWw.sse.com.cn 26 June 2019

www.hkexnews.hk

Note:  Poll results announcements of the abovementioned general meetings have been published on the website of the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange on the date of such meetings.

Description of Shareholders’ Meeting

On 12 March 2019, the Company convened the 2019 first extraordinary general meeting, at which Mr. Zhang
Zhaoxiang, Mr. Yu Hailong, Mr. Ren Xudong, Mr. Chan Ka Keung Peter and Mr. Lin Jinzhen, all being Directors of
the Company, Mr. Yan Aizhong, being a Supervisor of the Company, and Mr. Li Yuzhou, being the secretary to the
Board attended; other senior management personnel of the Company attended the meeting without voting rights.
Three ordinary resolutions were considered and approved at the meeting, including the “Resolution on the Election
of the Executive Directors of the Third Session of the Board of the Company”, the “Resolution on the Election of the
Independent Non-executive Directors of the Third Session of the Board of the Company”, and the “Resolution on the
Election of the Non-employee Representative Supervisors of the Third Session of the Supervisory Committee of the
Company”.

On 26 June 2019, the Company convened the 2018 annual general meeting, at which Mr. Zhang Zhaoxiang, Mr.
Zhou Jichang, Mr. Ren Xudong, Mr. Chan Ka Keung Peter and Mr. Lin Jinzhen, all being Directors of the Company,
Mr. Cao Xiuyun, Mr. Zhang Yandi and Mr. Chu Zhiqi, all being Supervisors of the Company, and Mr. Zeng Gang,
being the secretary to the Board attended; other senior management personnel of the Company attended the
meeting without voting rights. Eight ordinary resolutions were considered and approved at the meeting, including
the “Resolution on the Work Report of the Board of MCC for the Year 2018”, the “Resolution on the Work Report
of the Supervisory Committee of MCC for the Year 2018”, the “Resolution on the Report of MCC on Final Accounts
for the Year 2018”, the “Resolution on Profit Distribution of MCC for the Year 2018”, the “Resolution in relation to
the Emoluments of Directors and Supervisors of MCC for the Year 2018”, the “Resolution on the Guarantee Plan
of MCC for the Year 2019”, the “Resolution on the Appointment of the Auditor of the Financial Report and Internal
Control Auditor of the Company for the Year 2019” and the “Resolution on the Application of Annual Caps of
Daily Connected Transactions/Continuing Connected Transactions for the Year 2020-2022 and Entering into the
Connected Transaction Agreements”; four special resolutions were considered and approved at the meeting,
including the “Resolution on the Grant of General Mandate to the Board of Directors to Issue Shares”, the “Resolution
on the Amendment to the Articles of Association”, the “Resolution on the Plan of Registration and Issuance of
Domestic Bonds of the Company for the Year 2019” and the “Resolution on the Amendments to the Rules of
Procedures for General Meetings”. The “Work Report of Independent Directors for the Year 2018” was heard at the
meeting.

II. PROPOSALS ON PROFIT DISTRIBUTION OR TRANSFER OF CAPITAL
RESERVE

(1) Proposal for profit distribution and transfer of capital reserve to share capital for the first half of the
year

Any distribution or capital increase: Nil
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lll. PERFORMANCE OF UNDERTAKINGS

Significant Events

m Undertakings made by relevant parties such as de facto controllers, Shareholders, related parties
and acquirers of the Company and the Company during the Reporting Period or subsisting to the
Reporting Period
Whether ~ Whetheritis  If not performed If not
thereisa  strictly timely, specify  performed
Undertaking Type of Undertaking Date and duration time limit for performedina thereasons timely, specify
background undertaking  party Details of undertaking of undertaking performance timely manner in details further plans
Undertakingsin ~ Solution to CMGC CMGC, the Controlling Shareholder of MCC, undertook 5 December 2008~ No Yes - -
relation to the horizontal to avoid being engaged in or taking part in any
initial public competition business which may compete horizontally with the
offering principal business of MCC.
Undertakings Solutiontoand ~ China 1.In respect of businesses carried out by China 17 February 2016 No Yes - -
in relation to prevention Minmetals ~ Minmetals and other controlled companies which
the strategic of horizontal overlap with those of MCC, China Minmetals
restructuring competition will, according to its actual situations and the

characteristics and development trend of the industry
in which it operates, actively adopts different methods
such as entrusted management, asset restructuring,
equity swap and business adjustment to minimize the
business overlap between the two parties.

2.Upon the completion of the acquisition, China
Minmetals and other controlled companies will not,
in whatever form, directly or indirectly, engage in
new businesses competing with MCC, and will not
establish controlling subsidiaries who engage in
the same or similar businesses that will constitute
substantial horizontal competition with China
Minmetals. China Minmetals will supervise its
controlled companies and adopt certain measures
when necessary.

3. Subject to the above principles 1and 2 and upon
the completion of the acquisition, if the products
or services that will be operated by the unlisted
subsidiaries controlled by or other unlisted related
enterprises of China Minmetals are likely to compete
with the main products or services of MCC, China
Minmetals will agree that MCC shall be entitled
to preferentially acquire the assets in relation to
these products or services or 100% equity of China
Minmetals in the subsidiaries. MCC shall be entitled
to determine the time to request China Minmetals to
sell the abovementioned competing businesses at its
discretion.

4. China Minmetals will abstain from voting at the Board
meeting or general meeting at which MCC reviews
whether its new businesses constitute horizontal
competition with China Minmetals and whether to
exercise the above option right and pre-emptive
rights.
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Whether ~ Whetheritis  If not performed If not

thereisa  strictly timely, specify  performed
Undertaking Type of Undertaking Date and duration time limit for performedina thereasons timely, specify
background undertaking  party Details of undertaking of undertaking performance timely manner in details further plans

5.China Minmetals undertook that it will strictly comply
with the relevant regulations of the CSRC and the
SSE, and the Articles of Associations and other rules
and regulations of MCC, and equally exercise the
shareholder’s rights and perform the shareholder’s
obligations. It also undertook not to take advantage
of its privileged positions as the substantial
shareholder nor impair the legal interests of MCC or
other shareholders. The commitments continue to
be valid, cannot be altered and is irrevocable during
the period in which China Minmetals has control over
MCC or there is relatively material impact. If there
is any breach of the above commitments, China
Minmetals shall undertake all losses to MCC.

Undertakings in Others MCC During the renewable periods of Renewable Corporate  From the issuance ~ Yes Yes - -
relation to the Bonds (First Tranche) for 2017 under the Public  date of 2017
corporate bonds Issuance, Renewable Corporate Bonds (Second  Renewable

Tranche) for 2017 under the Public Issuance, ~ Corporate Bonds to
Renewable Corporate Bonds (Third Tranche) for 2017 the maturity date of
under the Public Issuance, Renewable Corporate  such bonds
Bonds (Fourth Tranche) for 2017 under the Public

Issuance by Metallurgical Corporation of China Ltd.”

(collectively, ‘2017 Renewable Corporate Bonds’),

if the Company does not expect to pay the principal

of and interest on such bonds on time or fails to pay

the principal and interest on time at the maturity date

of such bonds, at least the following measures will

be taken: (1) no distribution of profits to the ordinary

Shareholders; (2) no reduction in registered capital.

During the renewable period of Renewable Corporate 25 October 201710 Yes Yes = =

Bonds (First Tranche) for 2017 under the Public 25 October 2022

Issuance by Metallurgical Corporation of China Ltd.*

(*2017 Corporate Bonds”), if the Company does

not expect to pay the principal and interest for this

tranche of bonds on time or fails to pay the principal

and interests on time at the maturity date of this

tranche of bonds, at least the following measures will

be taken: (1) no distribution of profits to the ordinary

Shareholders; (2) no reduction in registered capital.

During the renewable period of Renewable Corporate 8 May 2018 t0 8 May Yes Yes - -

Bonds (First Tranche) for 2018 under the Public 2023

Issuance by Metallurgical Corporation of China Ltd.*

(*2018 Corporate Bonds"), if the Company does

not expect to pay the principal and interest for this

tranche of bonds on time or fails to pay the principal

and interest on time at the maturity date of this

tranche of bonds, at least the following measures will

be taken: (1) no distribution of profits to the ordinary

Shareholders; (2) no reduction in registered capital.

The funds raised from 2017 Renewable Corporate The issuance dates  No Yes = =
Bonds, 2017 Corporate Bonds and 2018 Corporate  of 2017 Renewable
Bonds are used only for production and operating ~ Corporate Bonds,
activities of enterprises that comply with national laws, 2017 Corporate
regulations and policies. Such raised funds will be  Bonds and 2018
used strictly in accordance with the agreed purpose  Corporate Bonds
mentioned in the prospectus. Such funds will not be
used by others and will not be used as non-production
expenditures and real estate business. A practical
and effective monitoring mechanism and isolation
mechanism for raised funds will be established.
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APPOINTMENT AND DISMISSAL OF ACCOUNTING FIRM

Appointment and Dismissal of Accounting Firm

Unit: RMB
Current Appointment
Name of domestic accounting firm Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu CPA LLP (Special General Partnership)
Remuneration of domestic accounting firm 18,350,000
Term of audit by domestic accounting firm 6 years
Name Remuneration

Accounting firm for internal Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu CPA LLP (Special

control audit General Partnership) 2,000,000

Upon approval at the 2018 annual general meeting of the Company, the Company appointed Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu CPA LLP (“Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu”) as its auditor for the year 2019, which was responsible for the
annual audit and interim review of the financial statements of the Company prepared in accordance with the
Accounting Standard for Business Enterprises. Meanwhile, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu also provided the Company
with internal control audit services in relation to financial reports and provided statutory financial audit services for
part of the subsidiaries.

The audit and review fees for the financial statements for the year are RMB18.35 million, while the internal control
audit fees for the year are RMB2.0 million.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu has provided annual audit services for the Company for 6 consecutive years. The signing
certified public accountants for the 2019 audited report are Chen Wenlong and Zhou Hongyu, who have acted as
the signing certified public accountants and have been providing audit services for the Company for 6 consecutive
years and 1 year, respectively.

Explanation on change in appointment of accounting firm during the audit period

D Applicable Not Applicable

Explanation on the “non-standard audit report” issued by the accounting firm

D Applicable Not Applicable

Explanation on the “non-standard audit report” issued by the certified public accountant in respect of the financial
report contained in the annual report for the previous year

D Applicable Not Applicable
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VI.

VII.

VIII.

IX.

EVENTS IN RELATION TO BANKRUPTCY AND REORGANISATION
|:| Applicable Not Applicable

MATERIAL LITIGATION AND ARBITRATION

D The Company has material litigation and arbitration during the Reporting Period

The Company does not have material litigation or arbitration during the Reporting Period

THE PENALTIES AND RECTIFICATION OF THE LISTED COMPANY AND
ITS DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT, CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER, DE FACTO CONTROLLERS AND ACQUIRERS OF THE
COMPANY

|:| Applicable Not Applicable

INTEGRITY OF THE COMPANY AND ITS CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER
AND DE FACTO CONTROLLERS DURING THE REPORTING PERIOD

During the Reporting Period, the Company and its Controlling Shareholder, CMGC, did not have any court ruling
that was yet to be executed, or any debt with a relatively large amount that is due but remained unpaid.

EQUITY INCENTIVE PLAN, EMPLOYEE STOCK OWNERSHIP PLAN OR
OTHER EMPLOYEE INCENTIVE MEASURES OF THE COMPANY AND
THEIR IMPACT

(U} Relevant equity incentive events disclosed in temporary announcements without further development
or change in subsequent implementation

Event overview Enquiry index

After CISDI Group Co., Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, For details, please refer to the

has been included in the list of “Double Hundred Enterprises” in 2018, “Announcement of MCC on the
China ENFI Engineering Co., Ltd., China MCC 17 Group Co., Ltd. and Inclusion of A Subsidiary into
WISDRI Engineering & Research Incorporation Limited, the subsidiaries “Double Hundred Enterprises”
of the Company, have been newly added to the list of “Double Hundred of Reform of State-owned
Enterprises” in 2019. Enterprises” disclosed by the

Company on 15 May 2019.

The Company will, as required by the overall arrangement and guidance
of the SASAC, thoroughly study and understand “1+N” documents
on reform of state-owned enterprises and the Work Plan for “Double
Hundred Program” of Reform of State-owned Enterprises, and will
consider and develop equity incentive plan and employee stock
ownership plan as stipulated by relevant documents based on the actual
conditions of the Company. As the plan is being developed, specific
plan contents and schedule are to be determined. Relevant plan is to
be implemented after it has been submitted to and approved by the
institutions at high levels. The Company will perform the obligation of
information disclosure in a timely fashion according to work progress.
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()} Incentive events not disclosed in temporary announcements or with subsequent progress
Equity incentives
|:| Applicable Not Applicable

Other explanations

|:| Applicable Not Applicable

Employee stock ownership plan

|:| Applicable Not Applicable

Other incentives measures

|:| Applicable Not Applicable
X. MATERIAL CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(U} Connected transactions related to daily operation

1. Events disclosed in temporary announcements without further development or change in
subsequent implementation

Overview of the Matter Query indexes

The Company convened the 2018 annual general meeting For details, please refer to the
on 26 June 2019, at which the Resolution related to the Continuing Connected Transaction
Application of Annual Caps for Daily Connected Transaction/ and Disclosable Transaction with
Continuing Connected Transaction for 2020 to 2022 China Minmetals disclosed by the
and Signing of Connected Transaction Agreement was Company on 28 April 2019 and Poll
considered, approving the Mutual Supply of Comprehensive  Results of the 2018 Annual General
Raw Materials, Products and Services Agreement entered into  Meeting Held on 26 June 2019
by the Company with China Minmetals on 28 April 2019, and disclosed by the Company on 26
approving the annual caps of daily connected transactions June 2019.

with China Minmetals and its subsidiaries (except MCC) for

2020 to 2022.

2. Events disclosed in interim announcements and with further development or change in
subsequent implementation

|:| Applicable Not Applicable
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3. Events not disclosed in interim announcements
Unit: RMB’'000
Reason for
the significant
difference
between
Payment transaction
Type of Content of Pricing principle ~ Priceof ~ Amountof  Percentage method for price and
Connected  connected  connected of connected ~ connected  connected  tosimilar connected Market ~ reference
Party to connected transaction relationship  transaction transaction transaction transaction  transaction transactions transaction price  market price
(%)
China Minmetals and its Indirect Sales of Purchase and  Agreed price - 232,622 3% - - -
subsidiaries (Except MCC) controlling commodities  sales of
Shareholder supplies -
income
China Minmetals and its Indirect Purchase of ~ Purchaseand  Agreed price - 23281% 503 - - -
subsidiaries (Except MCC) controlling commodities  sales of
Shareholder supplies -
expenditure
China Minmetals and its Indirect Provision Engineering Agreed price - 1,060,894 079 - - -
subsidiaries (Except MCC) controlling of labour construction
Shareholder  services services
-income
China Minmetals and its Indirect Acceptance  Engineering Agreed price - 252,403 039 - - -
subsidiaries (Except MCC) controlling of labour construction
Shareholder  services services
-expenditure
China Minmetals and its Indirect Provision Production Agreed price - 2,213 008 - - -
subsidiaries (Except MCC) controlling of labour maintenance
Shareholder  services services -
income
China Minmetals and its Indirect Provision Metallurgical ~ Agreed price - 876 003 - - -
subsidiaries (Except MCC) controlling of labour services -
Shareholder  services income
China Minmetals and its Indirect Provision Management  Agreed price - 11,849 038 - - -
subsidiaries (Except MCC) controlling of labour services -
Shareholder  services income
China Minmetals and its Indirect Acceptance  Management  Agreed price - 2,054 059 - - -
subsidiaries (Except MCC) controlling of labour services -
Shareholder  services expenditure
China Minmetals and its Indirect Interest Property Agreed price - 1,658 1581 - - -
subsidiaries (Except MCC) controlling expenditure  financing
Shareholder services -
financing
charges -
financial
leasing
China Minmetals and its Indirect Interest Property Agreed price - 82,432 390 - - -
subsidiaries (Except MCC) controlling expenditure  financing
Shareholder services -
financing
charges -
financial
subsidy
China Minmetals and its Indirect Otheroutflow ~ House leasing - Leases Contract = 19,814 2043 - - -
subsidiaries (Except MCC) controlling expenditure
Shareholder

|
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Reason for
the significant
difference
between
Payment transaction
Type of Content of Pricing principle ~ Priceof ~ Amountof  Percentage method for price and
Connected  connected  connected of connected ~ connected  connected  tosimilar connected Market ~ reference
Party to connected transaction relationship  transaction  transaction transaction transaction  transaction transactions transaction price  market price
(%)
MCC Ruimu Amperex Technology - Holding Borrowings to  Financial Agreed price = 350,000 - - - -
subsidiaries  related parties  services-
of the parent daily
company maximum
balance of
provision of
loan and bill
discounting
services
MCC Ruimu Amperex Technology - Holding Borrowingsto  Financial Agreed price - 275,198 - - - -
subsidiaries  related parties  services-
of the parent daily
company maximum
balance of
provision
of financial
leasing
services
MCC Ruimu Amperex Technology  Holding Interest income ~ Financial Agreed price - 14,092 181 - -
subsidiaries services-
of the parent interest and
company rental
Total / [ 4,629,840 | Il
Details of return of sold goods in large quantities N/A
Description of connected transaction N/A

Note:

Since 1 January 2019, the Company has implemented the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises No. 21

- Leases modified by the MOF in 2018. From January to June 2019, the Company recognized the fees in relation
to property lease trading amounting to RMB19,814 thousand. For details of the amount of right-of-use assets
recognized by the Company as lessee due to the newly signed property leasing contract, please refer to note
“related party transactions” in the financial report.

(1

|:| Applicable Not Applicable
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(nry Material connected transactions in relation to joint investment in external parties

|:| Applicable Not Applicable

(1v) Related creditors’ rights and debt transactions

|:| Applicable Not Applicable

V) Other material connected transactions

|:| Applicable Not Applicable
Xl. MATERIAL CONTRACTS AND THE PERFORMANCE THEREOF

(U} Custody, contracting and leasing
|:| Applicable Not Applicable
(L)) Guarantees
Unit: RMB

External guarantees provided by the Company (excluding guarantees provided for subsidiaries)

Total amount of guarantees incurred during the Reporting Period 0
(excluding guarantees to subsidiaries)
Total balance of guarantees as at the end of the Reporting Period (A) 0

(excluding guarantees to subsidiaries)

Guarantees provided by the Company to its subsidiaries

Total amount of guarantees provided to its subsidiaries

during the Reporting Period 1,083,489,550.34
Total balance of guarantees provided to its subsidiaries as
at the end of the Reporting Period (B) 19,077,752,027.30

Total guarantees provided by the Company (including guarantees to subsidiaries)

Total amount of guarantees (A+B) 19,077,752,027.30
Total amount of guarantees as a percentage of the Company’s net assets (%) 22.16
Including:
Amount of guarantees provided to Shareholders, the de facto controllers and
their related parties (C) 0
Debt guarantees directly or indirectly provided to guaranteed parties
with gearing ratio of over 70% (D) 17,993,107,568.17
Guarantees with the total amount exceeding 50% of the net assets (E) 0
Total amount of guarantees of the three above items (C+D+E) 17,998,107,568.17
Explanation on the potential joint repaying liability arising from
outstanding guarantees Nil
Explanation on guarantees Nil
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(ULD) Other material contracts

Please refer to the section headed “Report of Directors” for details of material contracts signed by the
Company during the Reporting Period.

PERFORMANCE OF POVERTY ALLEVIATION BY THE COMPANY

1. Targeted poverty alleviation programs
|:| Applicable Not Applicable
2. Overview of targeted poverty alleviation during the Reporting Period
|:| Applicable Not Applicable
3. Achievements of targeted poverty alleviation
|:| Applicable Not Applicable
4. Staged progress of the fulfilment of social responsibility regarding targeted poverty alleviation
(1) Initiation of Research and Studies on Poverty Alleviation

On 3 and 4 April 2019, a group led by Lin Jinzhen, the Employee Director, Chairman of the Labour
Union and Secretary of the Organ Party Committee, carried out a two-day research and study work in
Yanhe County and Dejiang County of Guizhou Province, for the following main tasks:

1. The third batch of temporary cadres for targeted poverty alleviation were dispatched to report
for duty. Leng Xuzhong from China MCC 20 Group and Guo Xiaochun from China MCC 17
Group reported to duty in Yanhe Tujia Autonomous County and Dejiang County successively
along with the research team, to replace the second batch of temporary cadres for targeted
poverty alleviation whose term of office has expired and to be responsible for implementing
the arrangement of targeted poverty alleviation program.

2. Assessment on temporary cadres whose term of office has expired was conducted. The
research group conducted assessment on the second batch of temporary cadres whose term
of office has expired — Xu Yi from China Metallurgical Construction Engineering Group and
Chen Yu from China MCC 5 Group. Relevant leaders and government officers of Tongren
City, Yanhe County and Dejiang County and colleagues of the temporary cadres said that
they have seen from the two temporary cadres the commitment of a central enterprise to
carry out poverty alleviation work with “devotion of true feelings and real intention, financial
input and solid work”.

8. The research group visited a poverty alleviation project in Tengxi Village, Chaodi Town,
Dejiang County — a navel orange industrial park benefiting over 1,460 poverty-stricken
people. The research group and accompanying county, town and village cadres carried
out proper communication on a number of issues including further implementation of
poverty alleviation project and rapid development of poverty alleviation through industrial
development.

4. The research group visited comrade Yang Cong who recently was dispatched to Changyi
Village, Xinjing Town, Yanhe County to act as “Major Secretary”, and donated RMB50,000 to
Changyi Village to support education.
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2) Implementation of poverty alleviation through consumption

The Labour Union of MCC issued a notice to call upon all subordinated labour unions at all levels
to carry out poverty alleviation through consumption. According to incomplete statistics, in the first
half of the year, departments of the headquarters of MCC and its subsidiaries procured agricultural
products of RMB1.8308 million from counties under targeted poverty alleviation.

3) Implementation of poverty alleviation by subsidiaries

Subsidiaries of MCC actively undertook the poverty alleviation tasks assigned by local governments.
According to incomplete statistics, subsidiaries have undertaken paired support tasks for 8 villages,
dispatched 31 temporary cadres and resident personnel, provided 734 job posts for poverty
alleviation, donated money and materials of RMB1.2592 million, made an aggregate financial input of
RMBO0.4026 million in poverty alleviation projects, and organized training programs attended by more
than 200 persons.

5. Subsequent targeted poverty alleviation programs

|:| Applicable Not Applicable

Xlll. CONVERTIBLE CORPORATE BONDS
|:| Applicable Not Applicable

XIV. INFORMATION ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION OF THE COMPANY

(U} Environmental protection of the Company and its subsidiaries categorized as major sewage discharge
enterprises as published by the environmental protection department

In accordance with the Name List of Enterprises under Special Supervision and Enterprises with Significant
Waste Disposal for 2019 published by the Ministry of Environmental Protection and provincial and
municipal departments of environmental protection, among all subsidiaries of the Company, Xiangyang Enfi
Environmental Protection Energy Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of China Nonferrous Engineering Co., Ltd. (hereinafter
referred to as “China Non-ferrous”), Ganzhou Enfi Environmental Protection Energy Co., Ltd. (88N B3E3R
REEJRAB R A R]), Wuxi Xidong Environmental Protection Energy Co., Ltd. (B RRREFRERAR]) and
China City New Energy Development Dafeng Co., Ltd. (BBTERIRFTAEIRFZH R LER A F), a subsidiary of
WISDRI Engineering & Research Incorporation Limited, were included in the list of enterprises under special
supervision of exhaust gas, China Silicon Corporation Ltd. (&5 EmEHEBRAR]), a subsidiary of China
Non-ferrous was included in the list of enterprises under special supervision of wastewater treatment plants,
and 27 sewage treatment plants under MCC Huatian Engineering & Technology Co., Ltd., China Non-ferrous
and WISDRI Engineering & Research Incorporation Limited were included in the list of enterprises under
special supervision of sewage treatment. During the Reporting Period, each environmental protection
facility of all units under the Name List of Enterprises with Significant Waste Disposal operated normally,
and the emission of key pollutants reached the emission standard without excessive emission, achieving the
objective of total emission reduction.
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MCC has been adhering to the scientific outlook of development of “serving environmental protection by
technology, promoting development by energy conservation and emission reduction”, firmly establishing the
concept of construction and production of “green construction and clean production”, constantly promoting
structural reform, transformation and upgrading of the Company, regarding the concept of greenery
development as a long-term goal. It formulated the “Administrative Measures for Energy Conservation and
Environmental Protection of MCC” (R EIHIREIREIRIREIZPIE)), the “Implementation Rules for Energy
Conservation and Environmental Protection Organization System and Job Responsibilities of MCC” ({
B REIREIRIRAGE R L EUB S EEME)), the “Implementation Rules for Energy Conservation and
Environmental Protection Inspections of MCC” ({FREIFVAEIEEIRRIBEEMAMEI)), the “Implementation
Rules for Energy Conservation and Environmental Protection Reports of MCC” (Bl A EiREIRIR TR S B 1

S oo

#4881 )), the “Integrated Emergency Response Plan of Environmental Emergencies of MCC” ({ Bl /AR 338
BEFGEATEZTER)), the “Work Manual of Energy Conservation and Emission Reduction of MCC” ({Fr Bl
JRETREREE TEF M )), and the “Green Construction Demonstration Atlas of MCC” (¥ Bl /A 4% &2 it T = 80 &)
£)) and other documents, which covered such contents as overall requirements of energy conservation and
environmental protection management, supervision and inspection, responsibility of reporting, education
and training, assessment, rewards and punishment, as well as integrated emergency response management
of environmental emergencies. Such rules and regulations could satisfy the latest national requirements on
energy conservation and environmental protection management, proactively advocate energy conservation
and emission reduction of the Company, and promote green construction and related work, so as to fully
accomplish the management objectives on energy conservation and environmental protection during the
year. Proactively devoting itself to environmental governance and environmental protection and advocating
the concept of environmental protection for years, MCC strived to enhance the efficiency of energy utilization
and establish a resource-conserving and environment-friendly enterprise.

7 Information about pollution discharge
(1) 27 enterprises under special supervision of sewage treatment

Major

pollutants and Total
Company characteristic Emission Actual  emission Discharge
No.  name Discharge vent pollutants Executive standard standard ™ emission rate flow

(10,000
(mgl) (mgl) aay)

1 Chuzhou Huatian Water Corporation - Main vent from Chuzhou ~ COD Discharge Standard of Pollutants 50 251 10.8 Qingliu River
MCC Huatian Water for Municipal Wastewater (BR)
(BMmRAERABBRAR) Corporation MCC WS- Ammoniacal Treaiment 5(8) 0.65

01904 nitrogen Plant (GB18918-2002)
Level | Standard A

2 Lai'an Huatian Water Vent from Lai'an Huatian ~ COD Discharge Standard of Pollutants 50 38.13 566 LaiRiver
Corporation MCC Water Corporation MCC for Municipal Wastewater (M)
(REEFRERKBERAR) Wastewater Ammoniacal Treatment 5(8) 0.81

nitrogen Plant (GB18918-2002)
Level | Standard A

3 MCC Qinhuangdao Water Co., Ltd.  Vent from Shanhaiguan CoD Discharge Standard of Pollutants 50 20.44 2.96 Chao River

(FRRESKBERAT) Water Treatment Plant for Municipal Wastewater (4
(LEESKELkA)  Ammoniacal Treatment Plant (GB18918- 5(8) 0.10
nitrogen 2002) Level | Standard A

4 Shouguang North Water Vent outside Shouguang ~ COD Discharge Standard of Pollutants 40 2542 476 Zhangseng
Corporation MCC North Water Corporation for Municipal Wastewater River
(BT kBERAR) MCC Ammoniacal Treatment 2 0.50 (R

nitrogen Plant (GB18918-2002)

Level | Standard A"®
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Major
pollutants and Total
Company characteristic Emission Actual  emission Discharge
No.  name Discharge vent pollutants Executive standard standard ™ emission rate flow
(10,000
(mg/L) (mg/L) aay)

5 Tianchang Huatian Water Vent No. WS-009 CoD Discharge Standard of Pollutants 50 26.90 459  Chuangiao
Corporation MCC (Tianchang for Municipal Wastewater River
Wastewater Treatment Plant) Ammoniacal Treatment 5(8) 1.81 (&)
(RRTFIRERKBERAR nitrogen Plant (GB18918-2002) Level |
(RRTAKRER) Standard A

6 Qinlan Wastewater Treatment Plant ~ Mixed inflow of sewage CoD Discharge Standard of Pollutants 50 26.08 0.59 Qinlan River
of Tianchang Huatian Water emission in Qinlan Town for Municipal Wastewater (FH)
Corporation MCC and Jiangwei County of ~ Ammoniacal Treatment 5(8) 0.86
(REMPREXKBERAA(RZ  Tianchang City nitrogen Plant (GB18918-2002) Level |
REKEERE) Standard A

7 Yangcun Water Treatment Plant Mixed inflow of sewage CoD Discharge Standard of Pollutants 50 26.30 0.42 Yangcun River
of Tianchang Huatian Water emission in Yangeun for Municipal Wastewater ()
Corporation MCC Wastewater Treatment ~ Ammoniacal Treatment 5(8) 1.53
(REMHPRERKBEERAA(E  Plant of Tianchang City  nitrogen Plant (GB18918-2002) Level |
RERKEERE) Standard A

8 Wastewater Treatment Plant Vent No. WS-04303 CoD Discharge Standard of Pollutants 50 29.65 146 New
of Tianchang Economic for Municipal Wastewater Chuangiao
Development Zone of Tianchang Treatment River
Huatian Water Corporation MCC Ammoniacal Plant (GB18918-2002) Level | 5(8) 0.98 ()IE)
(RRMPRERKHERAT(K nitrogen Standard A
RMEERLRTKEIER)

9 Tongcheng Water Treatment Plant ~ Vent No. WS-04305 COD Discharge Standard of Pollutants 50 14.00 0.62 Tonglong River
of Tianchang Huatian Water for Municipal Wastewater (SE)
Corporation MCC Ammoniacal Treatment 5(8) 0.21
(REMPRERKBERAA nitrogen Plant (GB18918-2002) Level |
(BB kRIER)) Standard A

10 MCC Xinglong Water Co., Ltd. Vent of disinfecting tank ~ COD Discharge Standard of Pollutants 50 15.69 2.5 LiuRiver
(RBEHakBERAR) WS-001 for Municipal Wastewater ()

Ammoniacal Treatment 5(8) 1.42
nitrogen Plant (GB18918-2002) Level |
Standard A
11 MCC Dingyuan Water Co., Ltd. Wastewater discharge vent  COD Discharge Standard of Pollutants 50 13.37 2.77 Magiao River
(ERERKBERAR) WS-50004 for Municipal Wastewater (55)
Ammoniacal Treatment 5(8) 0.87
nitrogen Plant (GB18918-2002) Level |
Standard A
12 Lu'an Water Corporation MCC Main vent WS00075 CoD Discharge Standard of Pollutants 50 22.30 1.42 SuDaYan
(NETHIRkBERAR) for Municipal Wastewater (BB
Ammoniacal Treatment 5(8) 0.36
nitrogen Plant (GB18918-2002) Level |
Standard A
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Major
pollutants and Total
Company characteristic Emission Actual  emission Discharge
No.  name Discharge vent pollutants Executive standard standard ™ emission rate flow
(10,000
(mg/L) (mg/L) day)
13 ChaHe Water Treatment Plantof  Vent from Cha He Water ~ COD Discharge Standard of Pollutants 60 21.74 0.88 Chu River
Lai'an Huatian Water Corporation  Treatment Plant Ammoniacal for Municipal Wastewater ()
MCC (RZRERRERKBERDE  (NTSKEEMSKE  nirogen Treatment 8(15) 0.79
ANk RIER) #0) Plant (GB18918-2002) Level |
Standard A
14 Ma'anshan Water Corporation MCC ~ Ma'anshan Huatian Water ~ COD Discharge Standard of Pollutants 50 17.14 1.51 Xiangcheng
(B&RILTAkBERAT) Corporation MCC (B for Municipal Wastewater River
TRRERKBERLE)  Ammoniacal Treatment 5(8) 0.38 (BHT)
WS-090801 nitrogen Plant (GB18918-2002) Level |
Standard A
15 Huangshi Water Corporation MCC  Vent from Huangshi CoD Discharge Standard of Pollutants 50 15.15 3.78 Ci-hu Lake
(BRTakBERAR) Tuanchengshan for Municipal Wastewater (H#)
Wastewater Treatment ~ Ammoniacal Treatment 5(8) 1.44
Plant (EEEFILSKE  nitrogen Plant (GB18918-2002) Level |
BRH#ERA) Standard A
16 Shouguang MCC Huatian Water ~ Vent from Shouguang MCC  COD Discharge Standard of Pollutants 40 33.12 12,99 Xiaoging River
Co., Lid. (BAWHRERKES  Huatian Water Co., Lid, for Municipal Wastewater (V&)
:NG) WS-37078309 Ammoniacal Treatment 2 0.82
nitrogen Plant (GB18918-2002) Level |
Standard A
17 Qinhuangdao Funing District MCC  Vent from Funing CoD Discharge Standard of Pollutants 50 28.28 4.32 Discharged
Water Co., Ltd. Wastewater (£~ Wastewater Treatment for Municipal Wastewater into artificial
EMBEERPAKBERRAR) Plant (BZS5KEHA)  Ammoniacal Treatment 5(8) 043 river
nitrogen Plant (GB18918-2002) Level |
Standard A
18 Fuzhou MCC Changle District Vent from Fuzhou MCC CoD Discharge Standard of Pollutants 50 34.75 519 Min River
Water Co., Ltd. (RMWRZES  Changle District Water for Municipal Wastewater (BI)
IAkBERAR) Co., Ltd. (BMTRLE  Ammoniacal Treatment 5(8) 0.30
IR KBBRARSNA)  nitrogen Plant (GB18918-2002) Level |
WS-26616 Standard A
19 MCC Xuancheng Water Co., Ltd.  Vent from Xuancheng / / / / | Shuiyang River
(ERmHIakBAERAR) Wastewater Treatment (KT
Plant (E%557k B4 F)
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Major
pollutants and Total
Company characteristic Emission Actual  emission Discharge
No.  name Discharge vent pollutants Executive standard standard ™ emission rate flow
(10,000
(mg/L) (mg/L) day)
20 Beijing Zhongshe Water Treatment ~ Main vent (Phase 1) CoD Discharge Standard of Pollutants 50 22.0 431 Ciwei River
Co, Ltd. ERHFKEEERA for Municipal Wastewater ()
a) Ammoniacal Treatment Plant (Level 58) 07
nitrogen 1 Standard A of current
Total phosphorus ~ wastewater 0.5 0.29
plant) DB11/890-2012
Main vent (Phase Il) CoD Discharge Standard of Pollutants 20 15.5 487
e for Municipal Wastewater 10(15) 03
nitrogen Treatment Plant (Level 1
Total phosphorus Standard A of new wastewater 02 012
plant)
DB11/890-2012
21 Lanzhou Zhongtou Water Main vent CoD Discharge Standard of Pollutants 60 233 231 Yellow River
Corporation (BMFRABERL for Municipal Wastewater
7)) Ammoniacal Treatment Plant (GB18918- 8(15) 440
nitrogen 2002) Level | Standard B
Total phosphorus 1 0.35
22 Xiaogan Zhongshe Water Co., Ltd. ~ Main vent CoD Discharge Standard of Pollutants 60 209 12.38  Gunzi River
(ERFRKBERAR) for Municipal Wastewater (EF)
Ammoniacal Treatment Plant (GB18918- 8(15) 15
nitrogen 2002) Level | Standard B
Total phosphorus 1 0.70
23 Wenxian Zhongtou Water Co., Ltd. ~ Main vent of the First CoD Discharge Standard of Pollutants 50 17.3 4,02 Laomang River
(RERRKBERAR) Wastewater Treatment for Municipal Wastewater (8
Plant Ammoniacal Treatment Plant (GB18918- 5(8) 05
nitrogen 2002) Level | Standard A
Total phosphorus 0.5 0.15
Main vent of the Second ~ COD Discharge Standard of Pollutants 50 226 1.77
Wastewater Treatment for Municipal Wastewater
Plant Ammoniacal Treatment Plant (GB18918 - 5(8) 1118
nitrogen 2002) Level | Standard A
Total phosphorus 0.5 0.15
24 Changzhou Enfi Water Co., Ltd. Main vent CoD Discharge Standard of Main 60 493 2.32 Cailing Port
(FNEFEKBARAR) Water Pollutants for Municipal (RE%)
Ammoniacal Wastewater Treatment Plant & 5) 05
nitrogen Key Industries of Taihu Area
DB32/1072 - 2007
Total phosphorus 0.5 0.11
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Major
pollutants and Total
Company characteristic Emission Actual  emission Discharge
No.  name Discharge vent pollutants Executive standard standard ™ emission rate flow
(10,0004
(mg/L) (mg/L) day)
25 Zhejiang Chunnan Sewage Main vent CoD Discharge Standard of Main Water 60 468 7.23 Yang Pu Qu
s T NS
Treatment (/3\07 Ltd. (fIERES Ammoniacal Pollutants for Pg\p and nger 5 0w (%%
KERERAR) niragen Industry of Zhejiang Province
Total phosphorus DHJB!-2001 05 0.03
26 Wuhan Baoxie Wastewater Vent from Wuhan Baoxie ~ PH Discharge Standard of Pollutants 6-9 7.47 1.94 Yangtze River
Treatment Plant (FEMH#EK  Wastewater Treatment coD for Municipal Wastewater 50 8.45 (RI)
RER) Plant (RETHESKE , Treatment Plant (GB18918-
£5) Ammoniacal  90p) Level | Sendard A AR e
nitrogen
Total phosphorus 0.5 0.16
Total nitrogen 15 7.87
27 Wuhan Urban Environmental Water ~ Main vent of Zuoling PH Discharge Standard of Pollutants 6-9 7.89 4.86 Yangtze River
Co. Lid. (SMRREEAHER  Westewater Treatment 1y for Municipal Wastewater 50 e (BT
) Plant of Wuhan Urban . Treatment Plant (Level 1
Environmental Waer ~ Ammoniacal Standard A) (GB18918-2002) 5(8) 008
Co.. Litd. nitrogen
Total phosphorus 0.5 0.21
Total nitrogen 15 9.48
Fluoride 10 474

Note:

The values outside the brackets of the standard GB18918-2002 represent control objectives
when water temperature is higher than 12 degrees Celsius. The value inside the brackets of the
standard GB18918-2002 is control objectives whose water temperature is equal to or below 12
degrees Celsius. Pursuant to Shou Huan Wei Fa [2018] No. 4 Document issued by Shouguang
City Environmental Protection Committee, the required water output indicators of COD and
ammoniacal nitrogen for Shouguang North Water Corporation MCC and Shouguang MCC Huatian
Water Co., Ltd. were 40mg/L and 2mg/L, respectively. As Xuancheng Water Treatment Plant of
MCC Xuancheng Water Co., Ltd. is currently being monitored but not in operation, no wastewater

discharge statistic can be recorded.
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2) Enterprise under special supervision of wastewater treatment plants (1 enterprise)
Key
pollutants and
characteristic Discharge Actual Overall rate of
No.  Company name Discharge vent pollutants  Executive standard standard discharge disch{;r% Discharge flow
9
1 China Silicon Corporation Ltd. - Main vent of PH Integrated Wastewater 6-9 8.22 | Sewage treatment
The First Subsidiary wastewater Discharge Standard plant of New
(RERERMBARAF-H47) (GB8978-1996) (Level Three) District, Luoyang
S Integrated Wastewater 400mg/L 48.11 0.26
Discharge Standard
(GB8978-1996) (Level Three)
CoD Integrated Wastewater 500mg/L 45,535 022
Discharge Standard
(GBB978-1996) (Level Three)
Ammoniacal  Integrated Wastewater / 0.1325 0.0007
nitrogen Discharge Standard
(GBB978-1996) (Level Three)
Cr Discharge Standard of Chlorides  350mg/L 2175 1.14
for Salt and Alkali Industry
DB41/276-2011
F Integrated Wastewater 20mg/L 218 0.01
Discharge Standard
(GBB978-1996) (Level Three)
Chimney of Exhaust ~ HCI Integrated Emission Standards ~ 100mg/Nm? 15.45 019 Atmosphere
Washing Tower of Air Pollutants Level Two
0.915kg/h
Chimney of Acid Fume HF Integrated Emission Standards ~ 9mg/Nm® 0.1947 0.06
Purification Tower of Air Pollutants Level Two
0.38kgh
NO, Integrated Emission Standards ~ 240mg/Nm® & 1.32
of Air Pollutants Level Two ~ 2.85kg/h

Metallurgical Corporation of China Ltd.
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(3) Enterprises under special supervision of exhaust gas (4 enterprises)
Key
pollutants and
characteristic Overall rate of
No. Company name Discharge vent pollutants Executive standard Emission standard  Actual emission emission  Emission flow
(kgh)

1 Xiangyang Enfi Environmental ~ Xiangyang Enfi CoD Integrated wastewater discharge 500mg/L 23915 047 Wastewater
Protection Energy Co., Ltd. Household Waste standard (GB8978-1996) Level Treatment
(ERBFRREEARLA)  Incineration Power Three Emission limit Plant of

Plant (Wastewater PH Integrated wastewater discharge 6-9 | | Yujiahu
vent) standard (GB8978-1996) Level
Three Emission limit
Exhaust vent from S0, Standard for pollution control on e~ 100mg/Nm* 21.54 186 Atmosphere
Xiangyang Enfi Waste municipal solid waste incineration
Incineration Power (GB18485-2014)
Plant #1 NOy Standard for pollution control on the ~ 300mg/Nm? 1134 7.71
municipal solid waste incineration
(GB18485-2014)
Smokeand  Standard for pollution control onthe  30mg/Nm® 331 022
dust municipal solid waste incineration
(GB18485-2014)
Exhaust vent from S0, Standard for pollution control on the ~ 100mg/Nm? 32.01 248
Xiangyang Enfi Waste municipal solid waste incineration
Incineration Power (GB18485-2014)
Plant #2 NOy Standard for pollution control on e~ 300mg/Nm* 121.73 9.28
municipal solid waste incineration
(GB18485-2014)
Smokeand  Standard for pollution control onthe ~ 30mg/Nm? 253 0.19
dust municipal solid waste incineration
(GB18485-2014)
Exhaust vent from S0, Standard for pollution control on the ~ 100mg/Nm* 26.73 1.99
Xiangyang Enfi Waste municipal solid waste incineration
Incineration Power (GB18485-2014)
Plant #3 NOy Standard for pollution control on the ~ 300mg/Nm? 1421 10.35
municipal solid waste incineration
(GB18485-2014)
Smokeand  Standard for pollution control onthe  30mg/Nm* 1.66 012

dust municipal solid waste incineration
(GB18485-2014)
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Key
pollutants and
characteristic Overall rate of
No.  Company name Discharge vent pollutants Executive standard Emission standard ~ Actual emission emission  Emission flow
(kgh)

2 Wuxi Xidong Environmental ~ Wuxi Xidong CoD Integrated water waste discharge  500mg/L 397 078 Xibei Town
Protection Energy Co., Ltd. Environmental standards (GB8978-1996) Level Wastewater
(BHHFRRERARL  Protection Energy Co., Three Emission limit Treatment
i) Ltd. (Wastewater vent) PH Integrated water waste discharge 6-9 7-8 | Plant

standards (GB8978-1996) Level
Three Emission limit
Exhaust vent i 1 S0, Standard for pollution control on e~ 100mg/Nm* 20.25 133 Atmosphere
from Wuxi Xidong municipal solid waste incineration
Environmental (GB18485-2014)
Protection Energy Co., NOy Standard for pollution control on e~ 300mg/Nm* 154.14 0.82
Ltd. municipal solid waste incineration
(GB18485-2014)
Smokeand  Standard for pollution control onthe ~ 30mg/Nm® 433 0.11
dust municipal solid waste incineration
(GB18485-2014)
Exhaust vent#2 S0, Standard for pollution control on the ~ 100mg/Nm* 45.85 0.85
from Wuxi Xidong municipal solid waste incineration
Environmental (GB18485-2014)
Protection Energy Co., NOy Standard for pollution control on e~ 300mg/Nm* 138.78 897
Ltd. municipal solid waste incineration
(GB18485-2014)
Smokeand  Standard for pollution control onthe ~ 30mg/Nm? 173 0.1
dust municipal solid waste incineration
(GB18485-2014)
Exhaust vent#3 S0, Standard for pollution control on e~ 100mg/Nm* 18.45 1.21
from Wuxi Xidong municipal solid waste incineration
Environmental (GB18485-2014)
Protection Energy Co.,  NOy Standard for pollution control on the ~ 300mg/Nm? 190.64 9.5
Ltd. municipal solid waste incineration
(GB18485-2014)
Smokeand  Standard for pollution control onthe  30mg/Nm® 1.83 0.16
dust municipal solid waste incineration
(GB18485-2014)
Exhaust vent#4 S0, Standard for pollution control on the ~ 100mg/Nm? 23.82 0.86
from Wuxi Xidong municipal solid waste incineration
Environmental (GB18485-2014)
Protection Energy Co., NOy Standard for pollution control on e 300mg/Nm* 156,92 9.08
Ltd. municipal solid waste incineration
(GB18485-2014)
Smokeand  Standard for pollution control onthe ~ 30mg/Nm? 1.38 0.08
dust municipal solid waste incineration

(GB18485-2014)
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Key
pollutants and
characteristic Overall rate of
No.  Company name Discharge vent pollutants Executive standard Emission standard  Actual emission emission  Emission flow
(kgth)
3 Ganzhou Enfi Environmental  Exhaust vent# 1from S0, Standard for pollution control on e 100mg/Nm* 6.7 04 Atmosphere
Protection Energy Co., Ltd. Ganzhou Enfi Waste municipal solid waste incineration
(ENBERREFER Incineration Power (GB18485-2014)
R Plant NOy Standard for pollution control on the ~ 300mg/Nm® 128.7 94
municipal solid waste incineration
(GB18485-2014)
Smokeand  Standard for pollution control onthe  30mg/Nm® 42 027
dust municipal solid waste incineration
(GB18485-2014)
Exhaust vent#2from SO, Standard for pollution control on the ~ 100mg/Nm? 8.7 067
Ganzhou Enfi Waste municipal solid waste incineration
Incineration Power (GB18485-2014)
Plant NOx Standard for pollution control on e~ 300mg/Nm* 166.1 125
municipal solid waste incineration
(GB18485-2014)
Smokeand  Standard for pollution control onthe  30mg/Nm? 6.2 04
dust municipal solid waste incineration
(GB18485-2014)
4 China City New Energy China City 1# gas S0, Discharge Standard of Pollutants for ~ 100mg/m? 45 092 Atmosphere
Development Dafeng Co., exhaust gas O, Thermal Power Plant (GB13223- oomgi’ 579 1188
Ltd. 2011)
2. Construction and operation of pollution prevention facilities
@ The wastewater treatment facility of China Silicon Corporation Ltd. — The First Subsidiary is

equipped with a three-wastes treatment station, an integrated system for domestic sewage;
the exhaust gas treatment facility is equipped with exhaust washing tower, acid fume
purification tower and dust collecting bag. With respect to solid waste treatment facility,
general solid waste storage yard, sludge yard for wastewater treatment, hydrogenated
residues yard and hazardous waste temporary storage yard are provided.

@) All incineration power plants kept increasing control over percolate, fly ash, flue gas
purification system, etc., in order to guarantee waste water treatment and smoke and dust
emission compliant with requirements.

® During the Reporting Period, all project companies of Beijing ENFI Environmental Protection
Co., Ltd. kept increasing management and control over wastewater treatment facility,
operation, etc., in order to guarantee all effluent meets standards.

@ Wastewater treatment process used in 19 wastewater treatment plants operated by MCC
Huatian Engineering & Technology Co., Ltd. mainly adopted primary treatment (physical
and chemical treatment process) + secondary treatment (biochemical treatment process) +
tertiary treatment (advanced treatment process), in which 18 plants executed the Discharge
Standard of Pollutants for Municipal Wastewater Treatment Plant (Level 1 Standard A)
(GB18918-2002) for effluent quality.

2019 Interim Report



74

Significant Events

® Baoxie Wastewater Treatment Plant of Wuhan Urban Environmental Water Co., Ltd. adopted
hydrolytic acidification + modified A/A/O + coagulation and filtration process with enhanced
biological denitrification and phosphorus removal function. Effluent disinfection adopted
disinfection by sodium hypochliorine.

® Zuoling Wastewater Treatment Plant of Wuhan Urban Environmental Water Co., Ltd. adopted
modified MSBR + coagulation and filtration process with enhanced biological denitrification
and phosphorus removal function. Effluent disinfection adopted disinfection by sodium
hypochliorine.

@ China City New Energy Development Dafeng Co., Ltd. currently is equipped with “SNCR
(urea injection at high temperature section of furnace, selective non-catalytic reduction
denitrification system)”, “furnace desulfurization system (injection of dry lime powder into
high temperature combustion zone in the furnace)” and “two-level dust removal system
comprising of cyclone dust remover + dust collection bag”.

In the first half of 2019, pollution prevention and control facilities of the above enterprises were
in normal and stable operation with perfect production operation management, guaranteeing the
meeting of applicable emission standards.

All sewage treatment companies attached high importance to energy conservation and consumption
reduction so that operation of pollution prevention facilities was normal. By continuously
strengthening the management and control of sewage treatment facilities, operation and other
aspects, the standards of stable water discharge quality were guaranteed. Some companies
reinforced their technology innovation and continued to develop new techniques and products.
For example, China Non-ferrous “high quality reclaimed water treatment technology-urban sewage
biochemical-physicochemical multi-section coupling” (W E5/KE1L- WMt ZHBE NS RE BAEKE
IET) has been successfully operated in Phase Il Engineering Project of Wastewater Treatment
Plant in Liangxiang, Fangshan District, Beijing (3t =WE L& R 45 /KERBS/K _HIRR) for
nearly 3 years, with stable water output, which has made outstanding contribution to the capital’s
environmental protection. Upon the application of such technology, the concentrations of CODCer,
BODS5, SS, TN, NH3-N and TP in relation to water output were reduced by 60.0%, 60.0%, 50.0%,
33.3%, 80.0% and 60.0%, respectively as compared with those adopting national emission standard
of Level | Standard A. Taking Phase Il Wastewater Engineering Project in Liangxiang, Beijing (3t
AR5k —HiT#2) as an example, the reduction of CODCr was 4,088 tons/year; the reduction
of BOD5 was 2,278 tons/year; the reduction of SS was 2,555 tons/year; the reduction of TN was
730 tons/year while the reduction of TP was 77 tons/year. In addition, such technology has good
economic benefits, and the water treatment cost per ton has been reduced by more than 15% as
compared with the conventional high-quality water treatment process.

Environmental impact assessment of construction projects and other permits granted by
environmental protection administrative departments

All enterprises with significant waste disposal have obtained approvals from relevant environmental
protection departments in respect of environmental impact assessment.

Contingency plans for environmental emergencies

The contingency plan for environmental emergencies set out by a subsidiary of China Silicon
Corporation Ltd. (ZF5HhiE= R AR A F)) was filed with Luoyang Environmental Protection Bureau,
Luoyang Urban and Rural Integration Commission and Bureau of Land and Resources of Luoyang on
9 January 2017, with reference number of 410311-2017-H-1.

The contingency plan for environmental emergencies set out by Xiangyang Enfi Environmental
Protection Energy Co., Ltd. was filed with Xiangyang Environmental Protection Bureau Xiangcheng
District Branch Office on 15 August 2017, with reference number of 420602-2017-003-M.

Metallurgical Corporation of China Ltd.
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The contingency plan for environmental emergencies set out by Ganzhou Enfi Environmental
Protection Energy Co., Ltd. (3| BIEERIRAEIRA PR A 7]) was filed with Ganxian District Environmental
Protection Bureau in Ganzhou on 7 December 2018, with reference number of 360721-2018-021-M.

The contingency plan for environmental emergencies set out by Wuxi Xidong Environmental
Protection Energy Co., Ltd. (E#BHRIRIREFEABR A E]) was filed with Wuxi Xishan District
Environmental Supervision Brigade on 18 August 2017, with reference number of 320205-2017—-
087-H.

The contingency plan for environmental emergencies set out by China City New Energy Development
Dafeng Co., Ltd. (EBTIRIR#T8EIRFAZE AN E B R A A]) was filed with Yancheng Environmental
Protection Bureau Dafeng District Branch Office on 13 November 2018, with reference number of
320982-2018-057-L.

All 27 sewage treatment companies have worked out contingency plans for environmental
emergencies

5. Environmental self-monitoring plans

China Silicon Corporation Ltd., Xiangyang ENFI Environmental Protection Energy Co., Ltd., Ganzhou
Enfi Environmental Protection Energy Co., Ltd., Wuxi Xidong Environmental Protection Energy Co.,
Ltd., China City New Energy Development Dafeng Co., Ltd. (BBTRRFTAERFAZEALER A F]) and
27 sewage treatment companies have worked out environmental self-monitoring plans. All sewage
treatment plants have installed online COD and ammoniacal nitrogen monitoring facilities at their
intakes and vents, respectively, ensuring that monitoring data is transmitted and monitored in
real time by local environmental protection authorities via the Internet. At the same time, the local
monitoring station regularly selects and tests samples from sewage treatment plants to ensure
understanding and handling the sewage treatment situation of the plants.

6. Other information about environmental protection that should be made public

All companies with Significant Waste Disposal have timely submitted environment monitoring data to
the Environmental Statistics Reporting System for Enterprises under Special Supervision ({ B E 2,
B M EAIRIBAETE R A S )) or published on relevant online platforms.

Information on environmental protection of companies not under the Name List of Enterprises with
Significant Waste Disposal

|:| Applicable Not applicable

Undisclosed information on environmental protection of companies not under the Name List of
Enterprises with Significant Waste Disposal

|:| Applicable Not applicable

Disclosed information on subsequent progress or changes of environmental protection in the
Reporting Period

|:| Applicable Not applicable

Other explanations

In 2019, CISDI Equipment Co., Ltd. (/8 E@FEHAFR A F), a subsidiary of CISDI, was not included in the
Name List of Enterprises under Special Supervision or Enterprises with Significant Waste Disposal published
by the governments at the country, provincial, municipal and county level and departments of environmental
protection, which was not calculated into the Company.
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XV.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY

During the Reporting Period, the Company continued to comply strictly with the laws and regulations including
the Company Law and the Securities Law of China, and relevant laws and regulations of the place where the
domestic and oversea shares are listed, and requirements of corporate governance in relation to the regulatory
rules, constantly optimized the corporate governance systems. The Shareholders’ Meeting, the Board and its
Special Committees, as well as the Supervisory Committee of the Company operated and disclosed information in
compliance with the laws and regulations in an efficient manner, actively expanded communication channels with
investors and steadily improved the corporate governance level of the Company.

The Board of the Company has reviewed the corporate governance report of the Company. The Board is of the view
that during the Reporting Period, the Company has complied with the requirements of the Corporate Governance
Code, except for the code provisions E.1.2 and A.4.2 of the Corporate Governance Code. Pursuant to the code
provision E.1.2 of the Corporate Governance Code, the chairman of the Board shall attend the annual general
meeting. Mr. Guo Wenging, the Chairman of the Company, was not able to attend the 2018 annual general meeting
due to business engagement. Pursuant to relevant requirements, Mr. Zhang Zhaoxiang, an executive Director
and the Vice Chairman of the Company, as jointly elected by a majority of Directors of the Company, presided
over the meeting. Pursuant to the requirements of the code provision A.4.2 of the Corporate Governance Code,
each of the directors shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once for every three years. From November
2014 to November 2017, the second session of the Board and the Supervisory Committee of the Company have
been serving for three years. Pursuant to the provisions of the Articles of Association of the Company, prior to the
establishment of the third session of the Board and the Supervisory Committee, the members of the second session
of the Board and the Supervisory Committee shall continue to discharge their duties. During the Reporting Period,
pursuant to the provisions of the Articles of Association, the Company completed the change of session of the Board
and the Supervisory Committee, and the third session of the Board and the Supervisory Committee were established
and new session of the Directors and Supervisors were elected. On 12 March 2019, the Company convened the
2019 first extraordinary general meeting, at which 6 non-employee representative Directors of the third session
of the Board were elected to jointly constitute the third session of the Board of the Company with 1 employee
representative Director elected at the employee representative congress held on 11 March 2019. On 12 March
2019, the Company convened the first meeting of the third session of the Board, at which the Chairman and Vice
Chairman were elected. The third session of the Board of the Company comprised of 7 Directors with Guo Wenging
as the Chairman and an executive Director, Zhang Zhaoxiang as the Vice Chairman and an executive Director,
Zhou Jichang, Yu Hailong, Ren Xudong and Chan Ka Keung Peter as Independent Non-executive Directors, and
Lin Jinzhen as the employee representative Director (non-executive Director). Two non-employee representative
Supervisors for the third session of the Supervisory Committee were elected at the 2019 First Extraordinary General
Meeting of the Company held on 12 March 2019, and one employee representative Supervisor was elected at
the employee representative meeting held on 11 March 2019, who jointly constituted the third session of the
Supervisory Committee. Chairman of the Supervisory Committee was elected at the first meeting of the third session
of the Supervisory Committee on 12 March 2019. The third session of the Supervisory Committee of the Company
comprised three Supervisors with Cao Xiuyun as the Chairman, Zhang Yandi as a Supervisor and Chu Zhigi as an
employee representative Supervisor.

Besides, the Company actively responded to the regulatory requirements to improve the corporate governance
of the Company. The Company made amendments to the Articles of Association and the Rules of Procedures for
General Meeting of MCC in accordance with the latest requirement under Guidelines on Articles of Association of
Listed Companies and Hong Kong Listing Rules, which were approved by the general meeting of shareholders of
the Company. Meanwhile, on the basis of production and operation of the Company, the Company has updated and
improved the provisions on the Proxy Form of President (President Office) by the Board of Metallurgical Corporation
of China Ltd..

During the Reporting Period, the convening of each meeting is in compliance with the relevant requirements of the
Company Law and the Articles of Association. During the Reporting Period, the Company convened 2 Shareholders'
meetings, 5 Board meetings, 6 meetings of Special Committees, and 3 meetings of Supervisory Committee in total.

Metallurgical Corporation of China Ltd.
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The Company has adopted the Model Code as the code governing the dealings in the Company’s securities by
Directors and Supervisors. Having made specific enquiries with all the Directors and Supervisors, the Company is
of the view that all Directors and Supervisors fully complied with the Model Code and requirements set out thereof
during the six months ended 30 June 2019.

XVI. REVIEW OF INTERIM RESULTS BY THE FINANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Finance and Audit Committee has reviewed the unaudited interim results of the Company for the six months
ended 30 June 2019. The committee was of the opinion that the unaudited interim results for the six months ended
30 June 2019 had been in compliance with the applicable accounting principles as well as laws and regulations,
and had made proper disclosures.

XVIILEXPLANATION ON OTHER SIGNIFICANT EVENTS

(U} Explanation, reasons and impacts of the changes in accounting policy, accounting estimation and
auditing method when compared with the previous accounting period

In 2018, the Ministry of Finance newly revised the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises No. 21
— Leases, and revised the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises No. 7 — Non-monetary Assets
Exchange and Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises No. 12 — Debt Restructuring in 2019, and
issued the Notice on Revising and Issuing the Format of Financial Statements of General Enterprises for the
Year 2019 on 30 April 2019. For details of the impact on the financial statements of the Company, please
refer to Note V 28 to the “Financial Statements and Review Report” of this report.

()} Explanation, correction amounts, reasons and impacts of retroactive restatement made for the
corrections to the substantial accounting errors during the Reporting Period

|:| Applicable Not applicable
(nry Others

|:| Applicable Not applicable
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I. CHANGES IN SHARE CAPITAL

[U) Changes in shares
72 Changes in shares

During the Reporting Period, there were no changes in the total number of shares and share capital
structure of the Company.

Explanation on the changes in shares

|:| Applicable Not applicable

2. Impacts on financial indicators including earnings per share, net assets per share, etc. from
changes in shares during the period from the end of the Reporting Period to the issuance of
interim report (if any)

|:| Applicable Not applicable

3. Other information the disclosure of which is deemed necessary by the Company or is required
by securities regulatory authorities

|:| Applicable Not applicable

(1 Changes in shares subject to selling restrictions

|:| Applicable Not applicable
II. PARTICULARS OF SHAREHOLDERS

m Total number of Shareholders:

Total number of ordinary Shareholders as at the end of the

Reporting Period (Person) 424,999
Total number of Shareholders of preferred shares whose voting
rights have been restored as at the end of the Reporting Period (Person) 0

~y4:4 Metallurgical Corporation of China Ltd.
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(1)

Table of shareholding of the top 10 Shareholders and top 10 Shareholders with tradable shares (or
Shareholders not subject to selling restrictions) as at the end of the Reporting Period

Unit: share
Shareholding of the top 10 Shareholders
Number of Number of
Change during Shares held Shares subject Pledged or frozen
Name of Shareholder the Reporting at the end of toselling  Status of Nature of
(full name) Period the period  Percentage restrictions  Shares Amount  Shareholder
(%)

China Metallurgical Group Corporation 0 11,643,400,100 56.18 0 Ni 0 State-owned

(FEREHIKEARAA) legal person
HKSCC Nominees Limited @ 83,101 2,841,549,101 13.71 0 Ni 0 Others

(BATALE(RBA)ERAR)
China Securities Finance Corporation 0 620,195,642 2.9 0 Ni 0 State-owned

Limited (FEEH 2 BRHABAR) legal person
Hong Kong Securities Clearing 19,882,603 132,595,763 0.64 0 Ni 0 Others

Company Limited

(BATALEARAT)
China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd. -118,569,972 121,198,133 0.58 0 Nl 0 Others

- Bosera CSI State-Owned

Enterprises Structural Adjustment

Index ETF Security Investment Fund

(BARTRNERAR - EHRE

PERERER SR ERESRE

£%)
Central Huijin Asset Management Ltd. 0 90,087,800 043 0 Nil 0 State-owned

(PRESEEEREREMLAR) legal person
Zhang Jingchun (RS%) 200,000 72,815,002 0.35 0 Ni 0 Domestic

natural
person

Bosera Funds - Agricultural Bank 0 63,516,600 0.31 0 Nl 0 Others

- Bosera China Securities and

Financial Assets Management

Program (BE &% - BERIT -k

hESHEEEEHE)
EFund - Agricultural Bank - EFund 0 63,516,600 0.31 0 N 0 Others

China Securities and Financial

Assets Management Program (577

EES-RERT-SRETELR

BEEEHE)
Da Cheng Fund - Agricultural Bank 0 63,516,600 0.31 0 NI 0 Others

- Da Cheng China Securities and
Financial Assets Management
Program (KEVE S - BE KT A
hECHEEEETE)
Harvest Fund - Agricultural Bank 0 63,516,600 0.31 0 N 0 Others
- Harvest China Securities and
Financial Assets Management
Program (REES -BEHRT-2%
hESRHEEEE )
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Number of Number of
Change during Shares held Shares subject Pledged or frozen
Name of Shareholder the Reporting at the end of toselling  Status of Nature of
(full name) Period the period  Percentage restrictions ~ Shares Amount  Shareholder

(%)

GF Fund - Agricultural Bank - GF 0 63,516,600 0.31 0 Ni 0 Others
China Securities and Financial
Assets Management Program (E%
EE-REBT-BEPECRER
BE)
Zhong Ou Fund - Agricultural Bank 0 63,516,600 0.31 0 Ni 0 Others
- Zhong Ou China Securities and
Financial Assets Management
Program (FEES - BEET-HE
hEERAEEETE)
ChinaAMC Fund - Agricultural Bank 0 63,516,600 0.31 0 Ni 0 Others
- ChinaAMC China Securities and
Financial Assets Management
Program (524 -B¥H1-%8
hECHAREEETE)
Yinhua Fund - Agricultural Bank 0 63,516,600 0.31 0 Ni 0 Others
- Yinhua China Securities and
Financial Assets Management
Program (FE£EE - BERIT-HZ
hECHAEERETE)
China Southern Fund - Agricultural 0 63,516,600 0.31 0 Ni 0 Others
Bank - China Southern China
Securities and Financial Assets
Management Program (754~ &
$B-EHTEEREEERNE)
ICBC Credit Suisse Fund - Agricultural 0 63,516,600 0.31 0 N 0 Others
Bank - ICBC Credit Suisse China
Securities and Financial Assets
Management Program (T Fifs &
$-BERT-TIHREPESRE
EER:E)

m Metallurgical Corporation of China Ltd.



Shareholding of top 10 Shareholders not subject to selling restrictions

Name of Shareholder

Number of tradable
Shares held not
subject to selling
restrictions

Changes in Ordinary Shares and Particulars of Shareholders

Unit: share

Types and number of Shares

Types of shares

Number of shares

China Metallurgical Group Corporation
(HEAEHTERARAT)

HKSCC Nominees Limited®
(BERAEE(RBA)ERRA)

11,643,400,100

2,841,5649,101

RMB-denominated
ordinary shares

Overseas-listed
foreign shares

11,643,400,100

2,841,549,101

China Securities Finance Corporation Limited 620,195,642  RMB-denominated 620,195,642
(FEEHSBRNHEBAR) ordinary shares

Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited 132,595,763  RMB-denominated 132,595,763
(BATPREEERAR) ordinary shares

China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd. - Bosera CSI State-Owned 121,198,133  RMB-denominated 121,198,133
Enterprises Structural Adjustment Index ETF Security ordinary shares
Investment Fund (BERITRHER AR —EHHERPLEE
HAELGUFIGIREESREED)

Central Huijin Asset Management Ltd. 90,087,800  RMB-denominated 90,087,800
(FrESEEEREREMLLA) ordinary shares

Zhang Jingchun (RS%) 72,815,002  RMB-denominated 72,815,002

ordinary shares

Bosera Funds - Agricultural Bank — Bosera China Securities 63,516,600  RMB-denominated 63,516,600
and Financial Assets Management Program ordinary shares
(BRES-RERT-BRTELREEEENE)

EFund - Agricultural Bank - EFund China Securities 63,616,600  RMB-denominated 63,516,600
and Financial Assets Management Program ordinary shares
(PHERG-RERT-FHETECREEERHE)

Da Cheng Fund - Agricultural Bank - Da Cheng China 63,516,600  RMB-denominated 63,516,600
Securities and Financial Assets Management Program ordinary shares
(RkES-RERT- AP ECHEEERAHE)

Harvest Fund - Agricultural Bank — Harvest China 63,516,600  RMB-denominated 63,516,600
Securities and Financial Assets Management Program ordinary shares
(FEES-RERT-FETECREEERHE)

GF Fund - Agricultural Bank — GF China Securities 63,516,600  RMB-denominated 63,516,600
and Financial Assets Management Program ordinary shares
(BERES-RERT-ERTECREEETRNE)

Zhong Ou Fund - Agricultural Bank — Zhong Ou China 63,516,600  RMB-denominated 63,516,600
Securities and Financial Assets Management Program ordinary shares
(PEBES-RERT-THPELHEEERHE)

ChinaAMC Fund - Agricultural Bank - ChinaAMC China 63,516,600  RMB-denominated 63,516,600
Securities and Financial Assets Management Program ordinary shares
(BEES-RERT-ZEETECREAEETEAHE)

Yinhua Fund - Agricultural Bank - Yinhua China 63,516,600  RMB-denominated 63,516,600
Securities and Financial Assets Management Program ordinary shares
(REES-RERT-BEPELNEEETRHE)

China Southern Fund - Agricultural Bank — China Southern 63,516,600  RMB-denominated 63,516,600
China Securities and Financial Assets Management Program ordinary shares
(AHEL-RERT-BHATECHEEERHE)

ICBC Credit Suisse Fund - Agricultural Bank — 63,516,600  RMB-denominated 63,516,600

ICBC Credit Suisse China Securities and

Financial Assets Management Program
(IRRiEES - BERT - IRRETEEREETEHE)

ordinary shares

Explanations on the connections or parties acting in concert
among the aforesaid Shareholders

Explanations on the shareholders of preferred shares whose
voting rights have been restored and the number of Shares

The Company is not aware of the existence of any connections or
parties acting in concert among the aforesaid Shareholders
Not applicable

held
Note (1): Figures in the table were extracted from the Company’s register of Shareholders as at 30 June 2019.
Note (2): The H Shares held by HKSCC Nominees Limited are those held on behalf of their multiple equity owners.
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Changes in Ordinary Shares and Particulars of Shareholders

Number of Shares held by top 10 shareholders subject to selling restrictions and information on the selling
restrictions

|:| Applicable Not applicable

(nry Strategic investors or general legal persons became one of the top 10 Shareholders as a result of the
placing of the new Shares

|:| Applicable Not applicable

lll. CHANGES IN CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER OR DE FACTO
CONTROLLERS

|:| Applicable Not applicable

On 8 December 2015, the SASAC of the State Council approved the strategic restructuring between China
Minmetals and CMGC, the controlling shareholders of the Company. After the completion of the strategic
restructuring, the entire CMGC would be consolidated into China Minmetals, and China Minmetals would become
the indirect controlling shareholder of the Company. On 10 May 2019, the Company received notice from CMGC
that CMGC has completed the change of industrial and commercial registration, whose contributor changed from
the SASAC of the State Council to China Minmetals. Therefore, the Company has become the indirect controlling
subsidiary of China Minmetals. It remains unchanged that CMGC is the controlling shareholder of MCC and the
SASAC of the State Council is the ultimate controller of MCC.

IV. PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY

Save as disclosed in “Corporate Bonds” of this report, neither the Company nor its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company during the Reporting Period.
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Particulars of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

(U]

PARTICULARS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDING

Particulars of changes in shareholding of current and resigned Directors, Supervisors and senior

management during the Reporting Period

Unit: share
Number of Changes
Shares held Number of in Shares
at the Shares held during the
beginning of at the end of Reporting Reason for
Name Position the period the period Period the changes
Current
Guo Wenging Chairman and Executive 130,000 130,000 0 -
Director
Zhang Zhaoxiang Vice Chairman and 80,000 80,000 0 -
Executive Director
Zhou Jichang' Independent Non- 0 0 0 -
executive Director
Yu Hailong Independent Non- 0 0 0 =
executive Director
Ren Xudong Independent Non- 0 0 0 -
executive Director
Chan Ka Keung Independent Non- 0 0 0 =
Peter executive Director
Lin Jinzhen Employee Representative 60,000 60,000 0 =
Director
Cao Xiuyun" Chairman of Supervisory 0 0 0 -
Committee
Zhang Yandi®" Supervisor 0 0 0 -
Chu Zhigi™ Employee Representative 0 0 0 -
Director
Zhang Mengxing  President 60,032 60,032 0 =
Zou Hongying Vice President and Chief 40,000 40,000 0 -
Accountant
Wang Shilei Vice President 0 =
Qu Yang Vice President 70,000® 70,000®) 0 -
Yan Aizhong!" Vice President 0 0 0 -
Zeng Jianzhong  Vice President 0 0 0 =
Zhang Ye Vice President 0 0 0 -
Liu Fuming™ Vice President 0 0 0 -
Zeng Gang'" Secretary to the Board 0 0 0 -
Resigned
Jing Tianliang™  Non-executive Director 117,500 117,500 0 -
Peng Haiging'"” Supervisor 41,500 41,500 0 -
Shao Bo'" Employee Representative 34,800 34,800 0 -
Director
Li Yuzhuo!" Secretary to the Board 55,000 55,000 0 -
Notes (1): Please refer to the section headed “Il. Changes of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

of the Company” of this chapter for details of changes in duties of Mr. Zhou Jichang,
Mr. Jing Tianliang, Mr. Cao Xiuyun, Ms. Zhang Yandi, Mr. Chu Zhiqi, Mr. Liu Fuming, Mr. Peng Haiging, Mr.
Shao Bo, Mr. Yan Aizhong, Mr. Zeng Gang and Ms. Li Yuzhuo during the Reporting Period.

(2):  Mr. Shao Bo directly held 33,800 A Shares of the Company, and his spouse held 1,000 A Shares of the
Company.

(3):  The shares of the Company held by Mr. Qu Yang are H Shares.
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Particulars of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

(1)

Share incentives granted to Directors, Supervisors and senior management during the Reporting
Period

|:| Applicable Not applicable

CHANGES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
OF THE COMPANY

Name Position Change
Zhou Jichang Independent Non-executive Director Elected
Cao Xiuyun Chairman of Supervisory Committee Elected
Zhang Yandi Supervisor Elected
Chu Zhiqi Employee Representative Supervisor Elected
Yan Aizhong Vice President Appointed
Liu Fuming Vice President Appointed
Zeng Gang Secretary to the Board Appointed
Jing Tianliang Non-executive Director Resigned
Yan Aizhong Supervisor Resigned
Peng Haiging Supervisor Resigned
Shao Bo Supervisor Resigned
Li Yuzhuo Secretary to the Board Resigned

Description of changes of Directors, Supervisors and senior management of the Company

(1) On 12 March 2019, the Company completed the election of the new session of the Board and Supervisory
Committee, the third session of the Board and the Supervisory Committee were established and new
Directors and Supervisors were elected.

(2) On 3 April 2018, the Supervisory Committee of the Company received the written resignation tendered by
Mr. Yan Aizhong, a Supervisor. Due to adjustment of work arrangements, Mr. Yan Aizhong resigned from his
position as a Supervisor of the Company. Since the resignation of Mr. Yan Aizhong will result in the number
of Supervisors on the Supervisory Committee of the Company falling below the quorum as required by law,
Mr. Yan Aizhong, in accordance with the requirements of the Articles of Association and relevant laws and
regulations, continued to perform his duty as a Supervisor until a nearly elected Supervisor takes office until
the new session of the Supervisory Committee were elected by the Company on 12 March 2019. On 3 April
2018, the Board of the Company approved the resolution in relation to the appointment of Mr. Yan Aizhong as
the vice president of the Company with the term of office commencing on 12 March 2019.

(3) On 30 August 2018, the Supervisory Committee of the Company received the written resignation tendered
by Mr. Peng Haiging, a Supervisor. Due to adjustment of work arrangements, Mr. Peng Haiqing resigned
from his position as a Supervisor of the Company. Since the resignation of Mr. Peng Haiging will result in the
number of Supervisors on the Supervisory Committee of the Company falling below the quorum as required
by law, Mr. Peng Haiqing, in accordance with the requirements of the Articles of Association and relevant
laws and regulations, continued to perform his duty as a Supervisor until a newly elected Supervisor takes
office, until the new session of Supervisory Committee was elected by the Company on 12 March 2019.

|
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Particulars of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 30 June 2019, the Company employed a total of 94,997 employees.

Number of Current Employees (in persons) 94,997
Level of Education
Categories of Educational Level Number Percentage
(in persons)
Above Postgraduate 10,553 11.1%
Undergraduate 43,560 45.9%
College Degree 16,746 17.6%
Below College Degree 24,138 25.4%
Structure of Ages
Structure of Ages Number Percentage
(in persons)
Aged 56 and above 4,180 4.4%
Aged 51-55 11,477 12.1%
Aged 46-50 15,306 16.1%
Aged 41-45 11,233 11.8%
Aged 36-40 14,589 15.4%
Aged 35 and below 38,212 40.2%

The Company implements a remuneration system on the basis of market-orientation and performance appraisal.
In accordance with applicable regulations, the Company established the basic pension contribution plan, basic
medical insurance, unemployment insurance, maternity insurance, workers’ injury compensation insurance and
housing fund for employees. In accordance with applicable laws and regulations, the amount of contribution to the
aforesaid social securities and housing fund are strictly based on state, provincial and municipal requirements.
As approved by higher authorities, the Company also set up its enterprise annuity for employees according to

applicable regulations.
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Particulars of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

IV. DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S INTERESTS
IN SECURITIES

(U} Directors’, Supervisors’ and chief executive’s interests and short positions in the Shares, underlying
Shares and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations

As at 30 June 2019, as far as the Company is aware, interests or short positions of the Directors, Supervisors
and the chief executive of the Company or their associates in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were
required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or otherwise
notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange by the Directors and Supervisors pursuant to
the Model Code or the rights granted for the purchase of shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations are as follows:

Unit: share

Percentage of Percentage
the relevant of the total

Long/ class of number of
Class of short Number of Shares in Shares in
Name Position Shares  position  Capacity Shares issue issue
(%) (%)
Directors
Guo Wenging Chairman and Executive A Shares  Long Beneficial owner 130,000 0 0
Director position
Zhang Zhaoxiang  Vice Chairman and A Shares  Long Beneficial owner 80,000 0 0
Executive Director position
Lin Jinzhen Employee Representative A Shares  Long Beneficial owner 60,000 0 0
Director (Non-executive position
Director)
Chief executive (President)
Zhang Mengxing  President A Shares  Long Beneficial owner 60,032 0 0
position

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2019, as far as the Company is aware, none of the Directors,
Supervisors or the chief executive of the Company or their associates had any interests or short positions in
the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered
in the register referred to therein, or otherwise required to be notified to the Company and the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange by the Directors and Supervisors pursuant to the Model Code.
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Particulars of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

(1 Other senior management’s interests and short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations

As at 30 June 2019, as far as the Company is aware, interests of other senior management of the Company
in the Shares of the Company are as follows:

Unit: share
Percentage of ~ Percentage
the relevant of the total
Long/ class of number of
Class of short Number of Shares in Shares in
Name Position Shares  position  Capacity Shares issue issue
(%) (%)
Zou Hongying  Vice President and Chief A Shares Long Beneficial owner 40,000 0 0
Accountant position
Qu Yang Vice President H Shares Long Beneficial owner 70,000 0 0
position
(nry Interests and short positions of substantial Shareholders and other persons in the Shares and

underlying Shares of the Company

As at 30 June 2019, the Company was informed that the following persons had interests or short positions
in the Shares or underlying Shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO:

Holders of A Shares

Unit: share

Approximate
percentage of

Approximate
percentage of

Name of substantial Nature of the total issued the total
Shareholder Capacity Number of A Shares interest A Shares issued shares
(%) (%)
China Metallurgical Group Beneficial owner 11,643,400,100  Long position 65.22 56.18
Corporation
Holders of H Shares
Unit: share

Approximate
percentage of

Approximate
percentage of

Name of substantial Nature of the total issued the total
Shareholder Capacity Number of H Shares interest H Shares issued shares
(%) (%)

BlackRock, Inc. Interest of a controlled 200,265,604  Long position 6.98 0.97

corporation

Save as disclosed above, as far as the Directors, Supervisors and chief executives of the Company are
aware, as at 30 June 2019, in accordance with the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the
SFO, no other person or corporation has an interest or short position in the Company’s share capital that
would require disclosure to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.
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Corporate Bonds

I.  BASIC INFORMATION ON CORPORATE BONDS

Detailed information of all corporate bonds, which were publicly issued by the Company, all listed on a stock
exchange and had not yet expired as at the date of publication of this report, are set out as follows:

Expiry date

Outstanding
bonds

Interest rate

(%)

Unit:

Method to pay principal
and interests

RMB 100 million

Stock exchange

Stock

Name of bonds Short name  code Issue date

2017 Renewable 17MCC Y1 136987
Corporate Bonds 1 March 2017
(First Tranche)

2017 Renewable 17TMCCY3 136972 10 March 2017 to
Corporate Bonds 13 March 2017
(Second Tranche)

2017 Renewable 17MCCY5 143902 10 July 2017 to 11
Corporate Bonds July 2017
(Third Tranche)

28 February 2017t Where the issuer opts to pay

in full for bonds in a particular
year of exercising renewal option
under this issuance of this tranche
of bonds, the value date (1 March)
of such interest-bearing year
shall be the payment date of this
tranche of bonds (If it is a non-
trading day, payment shall be
made on the first following trading
day, during which no additional
interest shall be charged on such
postponed period)

Where the issuer opts to pay in full
for bonds in a particular year of
exercising renewal option under
this issuance of this tranche of
bonds, the value date (13 March)
of such interest-bearing year
shall be the payment date of this
tranche of bonds (If it is a non-
trading day, payment shall be
made on the first following trading
day, during which no additional
interest shall be charged on such
postponed period)

Where the issuer opts to pay in full
for bonds in a particular year of
exercising renewal option under
this issuance of this tranche of
bonds, the value date (11 July) of
such interest-bearing year shall be
the payment date of this tranche
of bonds (If it is a non-trading day,
payment shall be made on the
first following trading day, during
which no additional interest shall
be charged on such postponed
period)

21

20

20

499 This tranche of bonds shall bear SSE

498

interest on a yearly basis at single
rate rather than compound rate
and interest shall be paid each
year if the issuer does not exercise
the right to postpone the payment
of interest. At the end of each
period, the issuer shall have the
right to extend the term of this type
of bonds for another period (i.e.
another three years) or opt to pay
in full such type of bonds upon
expiry at the end of such period
This tranche of bonds shall bear
interest on a yearly hasis at single
rate rather than compound rate
and interest shall be paid each
year if the issuer does not exercise
the right to postpone the payment
of interest. At the end of each
period, the issuer shall have the
right to extend the term of this type
of bonds for another period (i.e.
another three years) or opt to pay
in full such type of bonds upon
expiry at the end of such period

SSE

510 This tranche of bonds shall bear SSE

interest on a yearly basis at single
rate rather than compound rate
and interest shall be paid each
year if the issuer does not exercise
the right to postpone the payment
of interest. At the end of each
period, the issuer shall have the
right to extend the term of this type
of bonds for another period (i.e.
another three years) or opt to pay
in full such type of bonds upon
expiry at the end of such period

Metallurgical Corporation of China Ltd.



Corporate Bonds

Stock Outstanding Method to pay principal
Name of bonds Short name code Issue date Expiry date bonds Interest rate and interests Stock exchange
(%)

2017 Renewable 17TMCCY7 143907 27 July2017t028  Where the issuer opts to pay in full 13 510 This tranche of bonds shall bear SSE
Corporate Bonds July 2017 for bonds in a particular year of interest on a yearly hasis at single
(Fourth Tranche) exercising renewal option under rate rather than compound rate

this issuance of this tranche of and interest shall be paid each
bonds, the value date (28 July) of year if the issuer does not exercise
such interest-bearing year shall be the right to postpone the payment
the payment date of this tranche of interest. At the end of each
of bonds (If it is a non-trading day, period, the issuer shall have the
payment shall be made on the right to extend the term of this type
first following trading day, during of bonds for another period (i.e.
which no additional interest shall another three years) or opt to pay
be charged on such postponed in full such type of bonds upon
period) expiry at the end of such period

2017 Corporate Bonds 17 MCC 01 143361 24 October 201710 25 October 2022 (If it is a non- 57 499 This tranche of bonds shall bear SSE
(First Tranche) 25 Qctober 2017 trading day, payment shall be interest on a yearly hasis at single
under the Public made on the first following trading rate rather than compound rate
Issuance day, during which no additional and interest shall be paid each

interest shall be charged on such year. Upon expiry at the end of

postponed period) such period, the principal shall be
repaid on one-off basis and the
interest for the last tranche shall
also be paid at the same time

2018 Corporate Bonds 18 MCC 01 143634 7 May 201810 8 May 2021 (If it is a non-trading day, 8.7 4.78 This tranche of bonds shall bear SSE
(First Tranche) 8 May 2018 payment shall be made on the interest on a yearly basis at single
under the Public first following trading day, during rate rather than compound rate
Issuance which no additional interest shall and interest shall be paid each

be charged on such postponed year. Upon expiry at the end of
period) such period, the principal shall be
18MCC02 143635 8 May 2023 (If it is a non-trading day, 2.2 498  repaid on one-off basis and the

payment shall be made on the
first following trading day, during
which no additional interest shall
be charged on such postponed
period)

interest for the last tranche shall
also be paid at the same time

Payment of interest principal amount of corporate bonds

As of the date of publication of this report, the interest on 2017 Renewable Corporate Bonds (First Tranche) was
paid on 1 March 2019, the interest on 2017 Renewable Corporate Bonds (Second Tranche) was paid on 13 March
2019, the interest on 2017 Renewable Corporate Bonds (Third Tranche) was paid on 11 July 2019, the interest on
2017 Renewable Corporate Bonds (Fourth Tranche) was paid on 29 July 2019, and the interest on 2018 Corporate
Bonds (First Tranche) under the Public Issuance was paid on 8 May 2019.

The interest on 2017 Corporate Bonds (First Tranche) under the Public Issuance was paid on 25 October 2018
and the date of interest payment for the year is 25 October 2019 (where it is a non-trading day, payment shall
be postponed to the following trading day, during which no additional interest shall be accrued on the interest
payment).
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Other Explanation on corporate bonds

2017 Renewable Corporate Bonds (First Tranche), 2017 Renewable Corporate Bonds (Second Tranche), 2017
Renewable Corporate Bonds (Third Tranche), 2017 Renewable Corporate Bonds (Fourth Tranche), 2017 Corporate
Bonds (First Tranche) under the Public Issuance and 2018 Corporate Bonds (First Tranche) under the Public
Issuance are all targeted at qualified investors through public issuance.

II. AUTHORIZED CONTACT PERSONS AND CONTACT DETAILS OF
CORPORATE BONDS AND CONTACT DETAILS OF CREDIT RANKING

INSTITUTIONS
Bond trustee Name China Merchants Securities Co., Ltd.
Office address 17th Floor, 3rd Building, China Merchant Bank Mansion,
No. 1 Yuetan South Street, Xicheng District, Beijing,
PRC
Contact persons Zhang Hao, Yang Dong
Contact No. 010-60840906
Credit ranking institution Name China Chengxin Securities Rating Co., Ltd.
Office address Anji Building, No. 760 Tibet South Road, Huangpu District,

Shanghai, PRC

lll. USE OF PROCEEDS OF CORPORATE BONDS

As of the date of publication of this report, proceeds from 2017 Renewable Corporate Bonds (First Tranche),
2017 Renewable Corporate Bonds (Second Tranche), 2017 Renewable Corporate Bonds (Third Tranche), 2017
Renewable Corporate Bonds (Fourth Tranche), 2017 Corporate Bonds (First Tranche) under the Public Issuance
and 2018 Corporate Bonds (First Tranche) under the Public Issuance have been utilized. The use of the entire
proceeds of the corporate bonds of the Company is in line with the intended use, plan of use and other purposes as
stipulated in the prospectuses.

The deposit and use of the proceeds from corporate bonds have been implemented pursuant to the “Special
Account for Proceeds and Special Repayment Account Agreement” entered into between the regulatory bank and
the bond trustee. The use of proceeds is in line with the relevant undertakings provided in the bond prospectus, the
account for proceeds is operating under governance, and the withdrawal and use of proceeds from each tranche
have complied with the approval formalities of the Company.
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IV.

Corporate Bonds

RANKING OF CORPORATE BONDS

According to the credit ranking report (Xin Ping Wei Han Zi [2017] No. G081-X) issued by China Chengxin Securities
Rating Co., Ltd. on 16 February 2017, “2017 Renewable Corporate Bonds (First Tranche) under the Public Issuance
by Metallurgical Corporation of China Ltd.” of the Company was ranked AAA with stable outlook. The ranking of
indebtedness for the period is AAA.

According to the credit ranking report (Xin Ping Wei Han Zi [2017] No. G112-F1) issued by China Chengxin
Securities Rating Co., Ltd. on 3 March 2017, “2017 Renewable Corporate Bonds (Second Tranche) under the Public
Issuance by Metallurgical Corporation of China Ltd.” of the Company was ranked AAA with stable outlook. The
ranking of indebtedness for the period is AAA.

According to the credit ranking report (Xin Ping Wei Han Zi [2017] No. G293-F2) issued by China Chengxin
Securities Rating Co., Ltd. on 27 June 2017, “2017 Renewable Corporate Bonds (Third Tranche) under the Public
Issuance by Metallurgical Corporation of China Ltd.” of the Company was ranked AAA with stable outlook. The
ranking of indebtedness for the period is AAA.

According to the credit ranking report (Xin Ping Wei Han Zi [2017] No. G346-F3) issued by China Chengxin
Securities Rating Co., Ltd. on 19 July 2017, “2017 Renewable Corporate Bonds (Fourth Tranche) under the Public
Issuance by Metallurgical Corporation of China Ltd.” of the Company was ranked AAA with stable outlook. The
ranking of indebtedness for the period is AAA.

According to the credit ranking report (Xin Ping Wei Han Zi [2017] No. G457-1) issued by China Chengxin
Securities Rating Co., Ltd. on 9 October 2017, “2017 Corporate Bonds (First Tranche) under the Public Issuance
by Metallurgical Corporation of China Ltd.” of the Company was ranked AAA with stable outlook. The ranking of
indebtedness for the period is AAA.

According to the credit ranking report (Xin Ping Wei Han Zi [2018] No. G195-F2) issued by China Chengxin
Securities Rating Co., Ltd. on 23 April 2018, “2018 Corporate Bonds (First Tranche) under the Public Issuance
by Metallurgical Corporation of China Ltd.” of the Company was ranked AAA with stable outlook. The ranking of
indebtedness for the period is AAA.

The debt financing instruments issued by the Company in the interbank bond market were all ranked AAA with no
difference existing.

China Chengxin Securities Rating Co., Ltd. disclosed a follow-up and ranking report for the above corporate bonds
on the website of SSE on 28 May 2019 to inform investors in this regard.

According to the credit ranking report (Xin Ping Wei Han Zi [2019] Gen Zong No. 230) issued by China Chengxin
Securities Rating Co., Ltd. on 23 May 2019, “2017 Renewable Corporate Bonds (First Tranche) under the Public
Issuance by Metallurgical Corporation of China Ltd.”, “2017 Renewable Corporate Bonds (Second Tranche) under
the Public Issuance by Metallurgical Corporation of China Ltd.”, “Renewable Corporate Bonds (Third Tranche)
for 2017 under the Public Issuance by Metallurgical Corporation of China Ltd.” and “2017 Renewable Corporate
Bonds (Fourth Tranche) under the Public Issuance by Metallurgical Corporation of China Ltd.” of the Company was
remained the ranking of AAA with stable outlook. The above credit ranking of indebtedness for the period remained
as AAA.

According to the credit ranking report (Xin Ping Wei Han Zi [2019] Gen Zong No. 229) issued by China Chengxin
Securities Rating Co., Ltd. on 23 May 2019, “2017 Corporate Bonds (First Tranche) under the Public Issuance by
Metallurgical Corporation of China Ltd.” and “2018 Corporate Bonds (First Tranche) under the Public Issuance by
Metallurgical Corporation of China Ltd.” of the Company was remained the ranking of AAA with stable outlook. The
credit ranking of indebtedness for the period remained as AAA.



Corporate Bonds

V. CREDIT ENHANCEMENT MECHANISM FOR CORPORATE BONDS, DEBT
REPAYMENT PLANS AND OTHER RELEVANT MATTERS DURING THE
REPORTING PERIOD

As of the date of publication of this report, the Company did not establish any credit enhancement mechanism
for corporate bonds, and the debt repayment plans and other debt repayment protective measures for corporate
bonds of the Company were in line with the provisions and relevant undertakings provided in the prospectuses and
there was no change in the abovementioned. During the Reporting Period, the Company strictly implemented debt
repayment plans and debt repayment protection mechanism in accordance with the undertakings provided in the
prospectuses.

VI. CONVENTION OF CORPORATE BONDHOLDERS’ MEETINGS

Since the issuance date of corporate bonds and up to the date of publication of this report, there were no matters
that fall within the scope of authority of the bondholders’ meetings of the Company. As such, no bondholders’
meetings were convened by the bond trustee.

VIl. PERFORMANCE OF DUTIES OF THE TRUSTEE OF CORPORATE BONDS

China Merchants Securities Co., Ltd. is the bond trustee of corporate bonds “17 MCC Y1”, “17 MCC Y3”, “17 MCC
Y5”, “17 MCC Y77, 17 MCC 017, “18 MCC 01” and “18 MCC 02”. As stipulated under the “Bond Trustee Agreement”
entered into between the Company and China Merchants Securities Co., Ltd. upon the declaration of each of such
corporate bonds, such company performed its relevant duties as a bond trustee.

The bond trustee of corporate bonds “17 MCC Y1”, “17 MCC Y3”, “17 MCC Y5”, “17 MCC Y7”, “17 MCC 01", “18

MCC 01" and “18 MCC 02" issued 2018 trustee reports in relation to respective corporate bonds on the website of
Shanghai Stock Exchange on 29 June 2019 to remind investors for concern.

m Metallurgical Corporation of China Ltd.



Corporate Bonds

VIIl. ACCOUNTING INFORMATION AND FINANCIAL INDICATORS AS OF THE

IX.

END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD AND THE END OF THE PREVIOUS
YEAR (OR THE REPORTING PERIOD AND THE CORRESPONDING

PERIOD OF THE PREVIOUS YEAR)

As at the end of the

Major Indicators Reporting Period

As at the end of the
previous year

Increase/decrease
for the end of the
Reporting Period as
compared to the end
of the previous year

Current Ratio 1.12 1.14  Decreased by 0.02
Quick Ratio 0.69 0.72 Decreased by 0.03
Asset-liability Ratio (%) 76.76 76.61 Increased by 0.15
percentage point
Loan Repayment Ratio (%) 100 100 0
Increase/decrease

Reporting Period

Major Indicators (January - June)

Corresponding period
of the previous year

for the Reporting
Period as compared
to the corresponding
period of the
previous year

EBITDA/Interest Protection Multiples 2.77
Interest Payment Ratio (%) 100

2.91
100

Decreased by 0.14
0

OVERDUE DEBT
|:| Applicable Not Applicable
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Corporate Bonds

X. PAYMENT OF INTEREST PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF OTHER BONDS AND
DEBT FINANCING INSTRUMENTS OF THE COMPANY

During the Reporting Period, in addition to corporate bonds, the Company was also in possession of other debt
financing instruments, such as medium-term notes, all of which were paid on schedule and did not have any delay
or failure in the payment of interest and principal.

Xl. CREDIT FACILITIES OBTAINED FROM BANKS BY THE COMPANY
DURING THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Company maintained good long-term relationship with banks and other financial institutions and obtained credit
facilities with relatively greater amount, and also had relatively stronger ability in indirect debt financing. As at the
end of the Reporting Period, the Company obtained a total of RMB538.7 billion from various financial institutions, of
which RMB202.1 billion were utilized and RMB336.6 billion were unutilized.

During the Reporting Period, the Company made repayment for bank loans on schedule and did not arrange any
extension or reduction.

XIl. IMPLEMENTATION OF RELEVANT PROVISIONS OR UNDERTAKINGS
MADE BY THE COMPANY IN THE CORPORATE BOND PROSPECTUS
DURING THE REPORTING PERIOD

During the Reporting Period, the Company has strictly performed relevant undertakings and provisions under the
Corporate Bond Prospectus of each tranche of bonds.

XIll. SIGNIFICANT EVENTS OF THE COMPANY AND THEIR IMPACTS ON THE
OPERATING CONDITION AND SOLVENCY OF THE COMPANY

During the Reporting Period, the Company did not have any significant events as indicated under Article 45 of the
Administrative Measures for Issuing and Trading Corporate Bonds.

m Metallurgical Corporation of China Ltd.



Financial Statements and Review Report

REPORT ON REVIEW OF INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Applicable  [] Not Applicable
De Shi Bao (Yue) Zi (19) No. R00045
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF METALLURGICAL CORPORATION OF CHINA LTD.:

We have reviewed the accompanying interim financial statements of Metallurgical Corporation of China Ltd.
(the “Company”), which comprised the consolidated and Company’s balance sheets as at 30 June 2019, the
consolidated and Company’s income statements, the consolidated and Company’s statements of changes in
shareholders’ equity and the consolidated and Company’s cash flow statements for the six months then ended,
and notes to the financial statements (hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Interim Financial Statements”).
The preparation of the Interim Financial Statements is the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our
responsibility is to deliver a report on review of these Interim Financial Statements based on our review.

We conducted our review in accordance with China Certified Public Accountant Review Standard No.2101-Review
of Financial Statements. This Standard requires us to plan and perform the review to obtain limited assurance
about whether the Interim Financial Statements are free from material misstatements. A review is limited primarily
to procedures as enquiry of entity’s personnel and analytical review procedures applied to the financial information
and thus provides less assurance than an audit. We have not performed an audit, and therefore we do not express
an audit opinion.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the Interim Financial
Statements of Metallurgical Corporation of China Ltd. are not prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with
China Accounting Standards, and cannot present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated and Company’s
financial positions as at 30 June 2019 and the consolidated and Company’s operating performance and cash flows
for the six months then ended.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu CPA LLP. Chinese Certified Public Accountants:
Shanghai, China Chen Wen Long
Zhou Hong Yu
30 August 2019

This review report of the financial statements and the accompanying financial statements are English translations
of the auditor’s report and the financial statements prepared under accounting principles and practices generally
accepted in the People’s Republic of China. These financial statements are not intended to present the balance
sheet and results of operations and cash flows in accordance with accounting principles and practices generally
accepted in other countries and jurisdictions. In case the English version does not conform to the Chinese version,
the Chinese version prevails.



Financial Statements and Review Report

For the six months period ended 30 June 2019

II. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
30 JUNE 2019

30 June 2019

38,385,580
1,039
15,236,839
66,567,677
5,722,634
23,185,396
62,213,693
58,244,261
74,694,725
3,002,921
2,472,497

Items Notes

Current Assets:
Cash and bank balances VIl 1
Financial assets held for trading Vil 2
Derivative financial assets
Bills receivable VI3
Accounts receivable VIl 4
Receivables at FVTOCI VIl 5
Prepayments VIl 6
Other receivables VIl 7
Inventories VII 8
Contract assets VIl 9
Non-current assets due within one year VII 10
Other current assets VII 11

Total Current Assets

Non-current Assets:
Long-term receivables VIl 12
Long-term equity investments VIl 13
Investments in other equity instruments VIl 14
Other non-current financial assets VII 15
Investment properties VIl 16
Fixed assets VII 17
Construction in progress VIl 18
Right-of-use assets VIl 19
Intangible assets VIl 20
Goodwill VIl 21
Long-term prepayments VIl 22
Deferred tax assets VIl 23
Other non-current assets VII 24

23,310,519
15,736,055
1,875,161
4,425,069
5,312,446
26,397,894
4,564,895
533,030
16,308,295
163,096
232,310
5,272,171
117,152

Total Non-current Assets

104,248,093

TOTAL ASSETS

453,975,355

m Metallurgical Corporation of China Ltd.

All amounts in RMB’000

31 December 2018

44,477,302
1,124,150
2,365
18,363,632
66,958,297
2,072,511
20,285,773
56,385,242
57,608,321
66,719,549
3,498,610
1,924,819

339,420,571

21,620,682
13,854,855
1,867,964
4,214,624
5,392,133
27,370,040
3,379,971
16,133,729
163,179
269,670
5,152,432
75,993

99,495,272

438,915,843




Financial Statements and Review Report

For the six months period ended 30 June 2019

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)

30 JUNE 2019

49,148,469
2,615
29,887,558
118,549,687
246,541
55,175,962
2,112,890
2,478,075
30,167,254
19,176,150
5,131,361

312,076,562

Items Notes

Current Liabilities:
Short-term borrowings VIl 25
Derivative financial liabilities VIl 26
Bills payable VIl 27
Accounts payable VIl 28
Receipts in advance VII 29
Contract liabilities VII 30
Employee benefits payable VII 31
Taxes payable VIl 32
Other payables VIl 33
Non-current liabilities due within one year VIl 34
Other current liabilities VII 35

Total Current Liabilities

Non-current Liabilities:
Long-term borrowings VIl 36
Bonds payable VII 37
Lease liabilities VII 38
Long-term payables VII 39
Long-term employee benefits payable VIl 40
Provisions VII 41
Deferred income VIl 42
Deferred tax liabilities VII 23
Other non-current liabilities VIl 43

27,650,188
1,660,000
322,474
1,093,495
3,428,525
790,488
1,325,110
104,584
14,600

Total Non-current Liabilities

36,389,464

TOTAL LIABILITIES

348,466,026

All amounts in RMB’000

<[l 31 December 2018

47,973,564
496
27,751,007
113,260,891
191,783
58,918,293
1,958,161
3,794,064
23,558,227
14,772,502
4,811,859

296,985,847

23,793,236
8,512,091
1,180,520
3,496,853

861,739
1,290,126
111,387
14,600

39,260,552

336,246,399
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Financial Statements and Review Report

For the six months period ended 30 June 2019

II. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)
30 JUNE 2019

All amounts in RMB’000

IRl 31 December 2018

Items Notes

Shareholders’ Equity:

Share capital VIl 44 20,723,619 20,723,619
Other equity instruments VIl 45 16,524,290 15,924,290
Including: Perpetual bond 16,524,290 15,924,290
Capital reserve VII 46 22,512,969 22,492,676
Other comprehensive income VIl 47 (230,748) (212,142)
Special reserve VII 48 12,550 12,550
Surplus reserve VII 49 1,455,419 1,455,419
Retained earnings VII 50 25,091,129 23,546,950
Total shareholders’ equity attributable to shareholders
of the Company 86,089,228 83,943,362
Non-controlling interests 19,420,101 18,726,082
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 105,509,329 102,669,444
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 453,975,355 438,915,843

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Legal Representative: General Accountant: Financial Controller:
Guo Wenging Zou Hongying Fan Wanzhu

m Metallurgical Corporation of China Ltd.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

THE COMPANY’S BALANCE SHEET

30 JUNE 2019

For the six months period ended 30 June 2019

All amounts in RMB’000

<Nl 31 December 2018

2,503,804
198,757
418,026

38,642,012

992
1,424,648
1,860,707

45,048,946

Items Notes
Current Assets:
Cash and bank balances
Accounts receivable XVI 1
Prepayments
Other receivables XVI 2
Inventories
Contract assets
Non-current assets due within one year XVI 3
Total Current Assets
Non-current Assets:
Long-term receivables XVI 3
Long-term equity investments XVI 4

Other equity instrument investments
Fixed assets

Right-of-use assets

Intangible assets

513,980
88,474,615
247

11,730
50,910
7,807

Total Non-current Assets

89,059,289

TOTAL ASSETS

134,108,235

2,623,125
318,972
421,651
37,484,465
998
1,039,354

1,357,037

43,145,602

1,723,980
87,862,027
212
12,755

8,777

89,607,751

132,753,353
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Financial Statements and Review Report

For the six months period ended 30 June 2019

II. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

THE COMPANY’S BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)
30 JUNE 2019

All amounts in RMB’000

IRl 31 December 2018

Items Notes

Current Liabilities:

Short-term borrowings XVI 5 30,508,307 28,364,963
Accounts payable 1,290,137 941,091
Contract liabilities 1,173,823 1,068,383
Employee benefits payable 14,163 13,276
Taxes payable 43,203 57,306
Other payables XVI 6 14,093,143 14,060,124
Non-current liabilities due within one year XVI7 1,959,493 2,074,231
Other current liabilities 627 -

Total Current Liabilities 49,082,896 46,579,374

Non-current Liabilities:

Long-term borrowings XVI 8 5,900,000 5,875,000
Bonds payable VII 37 1,660,000 1,660,000
Lease liabilities 29,763 -
Long-term payables 378,980 300,000
Long-term employee benefits payable 17,044 17,915
Provisions 121,879 128,054
Deferred income 4,411 4,411

Total Non-current Liabilities 8,112,077 7,985,380

TOTAL LIABILITIES 57,194,973 54,564,754

Shareholders’ Equity:

Share capital 20,723,619 20,723,619
Other equity instruments VII 45 16,524,290 15,924,290
Including: Perpetual bond 16,524,290 15,924,290
Capital reserve 38,001,042 38,001,042
Other comprehensive income 645 609
Special reserve 12,550 12,550
Surplus reserve 1,455,419 1,455,419
Retained earnings 195,697 2,071,070

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 76,913,262 78,188,599

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 134,108,235 132,753,353

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Legal Representative: General Accountant: Financial Controller:
Guo Wenging Zou Hongying Fan Wanzhu

m Metallurgical Corporation of China Ltd.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE SIX MONTHS PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

For the six months period ended 30 June 2019

All amounts in RMB’000

Amount for the
current period

Amount for the

Items Notes prior period
I. Total operating revenue 159,017,379 126,112,573
Including: Operating revenue VIl 51 159,017,379 126,112,573
Il. Total operating costs 153,294,197 119,373,832
Including: Operating costs VIl 51 141,523,492 110,641,099
Taxes and levies VII 52 1,191,138 1,190,698
Selling expenses VII 53 1,030,968 830,485
Administrative expenses VIl 54 4,147,974 3,826,959
Research and development expenses VII 55 3,716,817 1,447,867
Financial expenses VII 56 1,683,808 1,436,724
Including: Interest expenses 2,386,058 1,953,929
Interest income 1,149,521 1,009,496
Add: Other income VII 57 76,097 72,940
Investment (losses) income VIl 58 (198,337) 62,708
Including: Losses from investments in
associates and joint ventures (41,053) (36,310)
Losses from derecognition of
financial assets at amortised
cost (249,984) (28,441)
(Losses) gains from changes
in fair values VIl 59 (3,711) 8,189
Impairment losses of credit VIl 60 (764,520) (1,039,010)
Impairment losses of assets VIl 61 (28,970) (970,746)
Gains on disposal of assets VIl 62 20,560 36,944
Ill. Operating profit 4,824,301 4,909,766
Add: Non-operating income VIl 63 103,259 203,788
Less: Non-operating expenses VIl 64 45,371 449,906
IV. Total profit 4,882,189 4,663,648
Less: Income tax expenses VII 65 1,103,931 1,164,680
V. Net profit 3,778,258 3,498,968
() Net profit classified by operating continuity
Net profit from continuing operations 3,778,258 3,498,968
Net profit from discontinued operations - -
(1) Net profit classified by ownership ascription
Net profit attributable to shareholders of
the Company 3,156,882 2,907,197
Profit or loss attributable to
non-controlling interests 621,376 591w
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Financial Statements and Review Report

For the six months period ended 30 June 2019

II. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE SIX MONTHS PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

All amounts in RMB’000

Amount for the Amount for the
Items Notes current period prior period

VI. Other comprehensive income, net of income tax VIl 66 (2,596) (171,555)
Other comprehensive income attributable to
shareholders of the Company, net of income tax (1,921) (163,855)
()] ltems that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss 19,427 (203,907)
1. Re-measurement of defined
benefit obligations 410 (120,171)
2. Changes in fair values of investments
in other equity instruments 19,017 (83,736)
(11 ltems that may be reclassified to profit or

loss (21,348) 40,052
1. Other comprehensive income that
can be reclassified to profit or loss

under the equity method (27) 20
2. Changes in fair value of
receivables at FVTOCI (43,335) -

3. Exchange differences on translating
financial statements in foreign

currencies 22,014 40,032
Other comprehensive income attributable to
non-controlling interests, net of income tax (675) (7,700)
VIIl. Total comprehensive income 3,775,662 3,327,413
Total comprehensive income attributable to
shareholders of the Company 3,154,961 2,743,342
Total comprehensive income attributable to
non-controlling interests 620,701 584,071
VIIIl. Earnings per share XV 3
(1 Basic earnings per share (RMB/share) 0.13 0.12
(11 Diluted earnings per share (RMB/share) Not Applicable Not Applicable

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Legal Representative: General Accountant: Financial Controller:
Guo Wenging Zou Hongying Fan Wanzhu

m Metallurgical Corporation of China Ltd.
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For the six months period ended 30 June 2019

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

THE COMPANY’S INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE SIX MONTHS PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

All amounts in RMB’000

Amount for the
current period

Items Notes
I. Operating revenue XVI 9
Less: Operating costs XVI 9
Taxes and levies
Administrative expenses
Financial expenses
Including: Interest expenses
Interest income
Add: Investment income (losses) XVI 10
Including: Gains (losses) from investments
in associates and joint ventures
Impairment losses of credit XVI 11

(Losses) gains from disposal of assets

Amount for the
prior period

2,264,878
2,217,721
1,000
82,865
193,937
1,018,392
812,788
1,620

1,620
(2,006)
(38)

Operating profit
Add: Non-operating income
Less: Non-operating expenses

2,074,739
1,976,167
1,557
72,750
347,885
832,852
744,577
(3,094)

(3,094)
(1,158)
2

(231,069)
661
757

Total profit
Less: Income tax expenses

(327,870)
6
22

(231,165)
14,820

Net profit
Net profit from continuing operations
Net profit from discontinued operations

(327,886)
6,272

(245,985)
(245,985)

Other comprehensive income, net of income tax
(1 ltems that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss
1. Changes in re-measurement of
defined benefit obligations
2. Changes in fair value of investments
in other equity instruments

(334,158)
(334,158)

VI.

Total comprehensive income

(640)
(640)

(640)

(245,949)

(334,798)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Legal Representative:

General Accountant:

Guo Wenging Zou Hongying

Financial Controller:
Fan Wanzhu
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For the six months period ended 30 June 2019

II. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE SIX MONTHS PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

All amounts in RMB’000

Amount for the
Items Notes current period

Amount for the

prior period
I. Cash Flows from Operating Activities:

Cash receipts from the sale of goods and the

rendering of services 154,739,444 127,628,770
Receipts of tax refunds 457,092 491,011
Other cash receipts relating to operating activities VII 67(1) 2,031,605 1,362,746
Sub-total of cash inflows from operating activities 157,228,141 129,482,527
Cash payments for goods purchased and services

received 136,242,339 112,538,657
Cash payments to and on behalf of employees 10,633,165 9,270,649
Payments of various types of taxes 6,936,841 6,363,212
Other cash payments relating to operating activities  VII 67(2) 8,647,824 9,416,601
Sub-total of cash outflows from operating activities 162,460,169 137,589,119
Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities VIl 68(1) (5,232,028) (8,106,592)

Il. Cash Flows from Investing Activities:

Cash receipts from disposals and recovery of

investments 1,292,991 37,507
Cash receipts from investment income 152,138 61,509
Net cash receipts from disposal of fixed assets,

intangible assets and other long-term assets 181,509 71,844
Net cash receipts from disposal of subsidiaries and

other business units - 41,452
Other cash receipts relating to investing activities VII 67(3) 778,879 1,068,770
Sub-total of cash inflows from investing activities 2,405,517 1,281,082
Cash payments to acquire or construct fixed assets,

intangible assets and other long-term assets 1,451,598 2,695,714
Cash payments to acquire investments 2,333,054 4,386,523
Other cash payments relating to investing activities VIl 67(4) 1,966,634 558,670
Sub-total of cash outflows from investing activities 5,751,286 7,640,907
Net Cash Flows from Investing Activities (3,345,769) (6,359,825)

m Metallurgical Corporation of China Ltd.
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For the six months period ended 30 June 2019

II. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE SIX MONTHS PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

All amounts in RMB’000

Amount for the Amount for the

Items Notes current period prior period
Ill. Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Cash receipts from capital contributions 1,098,369 3,299,355

Including: Cash receipts from capital contributions
by non-controlling interests of

subsidiaries 498,369 3,299,355
Cash receipts from issue of perpetual
bond 600,000 -
Cash receipts from borrowings 64,458,282 69,391,175
Sub-total of cash inflows from financing activities 65,556,651 72,690,530
Cash repayments of borrowings 58,483,741 51,691,916
Cash payments for distribution of dividends or

profits or settlement of interest expenses 4,305,203 3,570,832
Including: Payments for distribution of dividends

or profits to non-controlling interests of

subsidiaries 323,944 171,010

Other cash payments relating to financing activities  VII 67(5) 935,430 695,296

Sub-total of cash outflows from financing activities 63,724,374 55,958,044

Net Cash Flows from Financing Activities 1,832,277 16,732,486

IV. Effect of Foreign Exchange Rate Changes

on Cash and Cash Equivalents 87,088
V. Net (Decrease) Increase in Cash and
Cash Equivalents (6,733,470) 2,303,802
Add: Opening balance of Cash and Cash
equivalents 33,151,002 36,464,134
VI. Closing Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents VIl 68(2) 26,417,532 38,767,936

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Legal Representative: General Accountant: Financial Controller:
Guo Wenging Zou Hongying Fan Wanzhu
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For the six months period ended 30 June 2019

II. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

THE COMPANY’S CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE SIX MONTHS PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

All amounts in RMB’000

Amount for the
Items Notes current period

Amount for the

prior period
I. Cash Flows from Operating Activities:

Cash receipts from the sale of goods and the

rendering of services 2,150,730 2,195,678
Receipts of tax refunds 661 -
Other cash receipts relating to operating activities 303,569 13,729
Sub-total of cash inflows from operating activities 2,454,960 2,209,407
Cash payments for goods purchased and services

received 1,908,719 2,155,671
Cash payments to and on behalf of employees 44,265 40,175
Payments of various types of taxes 38,098 34,433
Other cash payments relating to operating activities 61,136 142,606
Sub-total of cash outflows from operating activities 2,052,218 2,372,885
Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities XVI12(1) 402,742 (163,478)

Il. Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Cash receipts from investment income 138,564 268,514
Net cash receipts from disposal of fixed assets,

intangible assets and other long-term assets 19
Other cash receipts relating to investing activities 6
Sub-total of cash inflows from investing activities 138,661 268,539
Cash payments to acquire or construct fixed assets,

intangible assets and other long-term assets 1,079 1,916
Cash payments to acquire investments 613,950 710,738
Other cash payments relating to investing activities 464,822 6,247,265
Sub-total of cash outflows from investing activities 1,079,851 6,959,919
Net Cash Flows from Investing Activities (941,190) (6,691,380)

m Metallurgical Corporation of China Ltd.
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For the six months period ended 30 June 2019

II. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

THE COMPANY’S CASH FLOW STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE SIX MONTHS PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

Items

Amount for the
Notes current period

All amounts in RMB’000

Ill. Cash Flows from Financing Activities:

Cash receipts from investments

Including: Cash receipts from issue of perpetual
bond

Cash receipts from borrowings

600,000

600,000
39,395,114

Sub-total of cash inflows from financing activities

39,995,114

Cash repayments of borrowings

Cash payments for distribution of dividends or
profits or settlement of interest expenses

Other cash payments relating to financing activities

37,842,206

1,629,510
10,989

Sub-total of cash outflows from financing activities

39,482,705

Net Cash Flows from Financing Activities

512,409

Effect of Foreign Exchange Rate Changes on
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Net Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Add: Opening balance of Cash and
Cash equivalents

(19,341)

2,511,810

VI.

Closing Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents

XVI 12(2)

2,492,469

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Legal Representative:

General Accountant:

Guo Wenging Zou Hongying

Amount for the
prior period

45,000,388

45,000,388

38,812,051

1,245,880
98

40,058,029

4,942,359

(3,688)

(1,916,187)

4,648,065

2,731,878

Financial Controller:
Fan Wanzhu
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For the six months period ended 30 June 2019

II. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

All amounts in RMB’000

For the six months period ended 30 June 2019

Attributable to shareholders of the Company

ltems

. Closing balance of the preceding period
Add : Changes in accounting policies
Corrections of prior period errors
Others

II. Opening balance of the current period

IIl. Changes for the period
(I) Total comprehensive income
() Shareholders' contributions and
reduction in capital
1. Capital contribution from owners
2. Capital contribution from holders of

other equity instruments (Abfe V1l 45)

3. Others
(11l Profit distribution
1. Transfer to surplus reserve
2. Distributions to shareholders
3. Others
(IV) Transfers within shareholders' equity
1. Capitalization of capital reserve
2. Capitalization of surplus reserve
3. Loss offset by surplus reserve
4. Changing amount of defined henefit
plan carried forward to
retained earnings
5. Other comprehensive income carried
forward to retained eamings
(Note Vi 14)
6. Others
(V) Special reserve
1. Transfer to special reserve in the
current period
2. Amount utilized in the current period
(V1) Others

IV. Closing balance of the current period

Other equity
instruments
Share capital (Perpetual bond)

20,723,619 15,924,290

15,924,290

600,000

600,000

600,000

20,723,619 16,524,290

Other
Capital - comprehensive

reserve income

2492676 (212,142)

(212,142)

(18,606)
(1,921)

(16,685)

(16,685)

22,512,969

(230,749)

Special
reserve

12,550

2209732
(2,200732)

12,550

Surplus
reserve

1,455,419

1,455,419

Retained Non-controlling
profits interests

23,546,950 18,726,082

23,546,950 18,726,082

1,544,179
3,156,882

694,019
620,701

397,262
498,369

- (o007
(1629388  (323.04)

(1620388)  (328.004)
16,685

188,331
(188,331)

25,091,129 19,420,101

Total
shareholders'
equity

102,669,444

102,669,444

2,839,885
3,775,662

1,017,555
498,369

00,000
(80814)
(1,9533%2)

2,398,063
(2,398,063)

105,509,329
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For the six months period ended 30 June 2019

II. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY (CONTINUED)
All amounts in RMB'000

For the six months period ended 30 June 2018

Attributable to sharefolders of the Company

Qther equity QOther Total
Share instruments Capital ~ comprehensive Special Surplus Retained ~ Non-controling  shareholders'
Items capital ~ (Perpetual bond) reserve income reserve reserve profits interests equity
. Closing balance of the preceding period 20,723,619 17,884,240 22,527,667 5218 12,550 1,338,615 20,007,920 14,820,652 97,320,481
Add : Changes in accounting policies - - - (95,082) - - (143,226) (33,626) (271,884)
Corrections of prior period errors - - - - - - - - -
Others - - - - - - - - -
II. Opening balance of the current period 20,723,619 17,884,240 22,527,667 (89,814) 12,550 1,338,615 19,864,694 14,787,026 97,048 597
IIl. Changes for the period - - 3 (152,340 - - 1,032,590 3,674,536 4,554,789
(1) Total comprenensive income - - - (163,855) - - 2,907,197 584,071 3,327413
(1) Shareholders' contributions and reduction
in capital - - 3 - - - - 3,261,475 3261478
1. Capital contribution from owners - - - - - - - 2,965 2,965
2. Capital contribution from holders of
other equity instruments - - - - - - - 3,296,390 3,296,390
3. Others - - 3 - - - - (37,880) (37,877)
(11l Profit distribution - - - - - - (1,863,092) (171,010) (2,034,102)
1. Transfer to surplus reserve - - - - - - - - -
2. Distributions to shareholders - - - - - - (1,863,092) (171,010) (2,034,102)
3. Others - - - - - - - - -
(IV) Transfers within shareholders' equity - - - 11515 - - (11,515) - -
1. Capitalization of capital reserve - - - - - - - - -
2. Capitalization of surplus reserve - - - - - - - - -
3. Loss offset by surplus reserve - - - - - - - - -
4. Changing amount of defined benefit
plan carried forward to
retained eamings - - - - - - - - -
5. Other comprehensive income carried
forward to retained earnings - - - 11,515 - - (11,515) - -
6. Others - - - - - - - - -
(V) Special reserve - - - - - - - - -
1. Transfer to special reserve in the
current period - - - - 1,413,261 - - 95,048 1,508,309
2. Amount utilized in the current period - - - - (1,413,261) - - (95,048) (1,508,309)
(V) Others - - - - - - - - -
IV. Closing balance of the current period 20,723,619 17,884,240 2,521,610 (242,154) 12550 1,338,615 20,897,284 18461562 101,603,386

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Legal Representative: General Accountant: Financial Controller:
Guo Wenging Zou Hongying Fan Wanzhu
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For the six months period ended 30 June 2019

II. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

THE COMPANY’S STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

All amounts in RMB’000

For the six months period ended 30 June 2019

Other equity
instruments Other Total
(Perpetual Capital comprehensive Special Surplus Retained  shareholders'
Items Share capital bond) reserve income reserve reserve profits equity

1. Closing balance of the preceding period 20,723,619 15,924,290 38,001,042 12,550 1,455,419 2,071,070 78,188,599
Add : Changes in accounting policies
Corrections of prior period errors

Others
Il Opening balance of the current period 2,071,070 78,188,599
Ill. Changes for the period 600,000 (1,875,373) (1,275,337)
() Total comprehensive income - (245,985) (245,949)
Iy Shareholders' contributions and
reduction in capital 600,000 600,000

1. Capital contribution from owners - -
2. Capital contribution and reduction of

holders of other equity instruments 600,000 - 600,000
3. Others - - -
() Profit distribution - (1,629,388) (1,629,388)
1. Transfer to surplus reserve - - -
2. Distributions to shareholders - (1,629,388) (1,629,388)
3. Others

(V) Transfers within shareholders’ equity
1. Capitalization of capital reserve
2. Capitalization of surplus reserve
3. Loss offset by surplus reserve
4. Changing amount of defined benefit plan
carried forward to retained earnings
5. Other comprehensive income carried
forward to retained earnings
6. Others
(V) Special reserve
1. Transfer to special reserve in the current
period
2. Amount utilized in the current period
(VI)  Others

IV. Closing balance of the current period 20,723,619 16,524,290 38,001,042 645 12,550 1,455,419 195,697 76,913,262

m Metallurgical Corporation of China Ltd.
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For the six months period ended 30 June 2019

II. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
THE COMPANY’S STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY (CONTINUED)
All amounts in RMB'000

For the six months period ended 30 June 2018

Other equity
instruments Other Total
Share (Perpetual Capital comprehensive Special Surplus Retained  shareholders'
ltems capital bond) reserve income reserve reserve profits equity

I. Closing balance of the preceding period 20,723,619 17,884,240 38,041,092 718 12,550 1,338,615 3,580,082 81,580,916
Add : Changes in accounting policies - - = = - - - _
Corrections of prior period errors - - = = L - - _

Others - = = = . - - -

II. Opening balance of the current period 20,723,619 17,884,240 38,041,092 718 12,550 1,338,615 3,580,082 81,580,916

III. Changes for the period - - - (640) - - (2,197,250)  (2,197,890)
(I} Total comprehensive income - - - (640) - - (334,158) (334,798)
() Shareholders' contributions and

reduction in capital = = = = - - - =
1. Capital contribution from owners - - = = = - - _
2. Capital contribution and reduction of
holders of other equity instruments - - - = - = - _
3. Others - = = = . - . =
(Il) Profit distribution - - - - - - (1863,092)  (1,863,092)
1. Transfer to surplus reserve - - - = = - - -
2. Distributions to shareholders - - - - - - (1,863,092) (1,863,092
3. Others - = = = = - L .
(IV) Transfers within shareholders’ equity - - = = = - - _
1. Capitalization of capital reserve - - = = . = - =
2. Capitalization of surplus reserve - - - = = - & .
3. Loss offset by surplus reserve - - = = E = - =
4. Changing amount of defined
benefit plan carried forward to
refained eamings - - = = & 2 - L]
5. Other comprehensive income carried
forward to retained eamings = = - = = = . .
6. Others - = = 5 - - - -
(V) Special reserve - = = = . - _ .
1. Transfer to special reserve in the
current period - = = = £ - - =
2. Amount utilized in the current period - - = = = = = 3
(VI) Others - = = = 5 - = =

IV. Closing balance of the current period 20,723,619 17,884,240 38,041,002 8 12,550 1,338,6

9 1,382,832 79,383,026

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Legal Representative: General Accountant: Financial Controller:
Guo Wenging Zou Hongying Fan Wanzhu
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lll. BASIC CORPORATE INFORMATION

1. Basic information of the Company

Metallurgical Corporation of China Ltd. (the “Company”) was established as a joint stock limited liability
company by China Metallurgical Group Corporation (“*CMGC”) and China Baowu Steel Group Corporation
(“CBSGC”, formerly named as Baosteel Group Corporation) as promoters on 1 December 2008 and was
registered in Beijing in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). Upon the approval by the State-owned
Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of the State Council of the PRC (the “SASAC”) of Guozi
Reform [2008] 528 Approval for CMGC’s Group Restructuring and Dual Listing in Domestic and Overseas
Markets, issued on 10 June, 2008. CMGC is the parent company of the Company and the SASAC is the
ultimate controlling party of the Company. Upon establishment of the Company, the registered capital of
the Company was RMB13 billion, representing 13 billion ordinary shares of RMB1.0 each. On 14 September
2009, the Company issued 3,500 million A shares of the Company to domestic investors and these A shares
of the Company were listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange on 21 September 2009, and 2,610 million
H shares of the Company were issued on 16 September 2009 and listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Ltd. (the “Hong Kong Stock Exchange”) on 24 September 2009. During the course
of the issue of A shares and H shares of the Company, CMGC and CBSGC have transferred a total amount
of 350 million shares of the Company to National Council for State Security Fund (“NSSF”) of the PRC and
converted 261 million domestic shares into H shares and transferred to NSSF, among which 261 million H
shares were offered for sale upon issuance of H shares of the Company. Upon completion of the public
offering of A shares and H shares above, the total registered capital of the Company increased to RMB19.11
billion.

Pursuant to the special mandate granted by the shareholders at the 2016 First Extraordinary General
Meeting, the 2016 First A Shareholders’ Class Meeting and the 2016 First H Shareholders’ Class Meeting,
having received the Approval in relation to the Non-public Issuance of Shares by Metallurgical Corporation
of China Ltd. (Zheng Jian Xu Ke [2016] No. 1794) from the China Securities Regulatory Commission (the
“CSRC”), the Company started the non-public issuance of 1,613,619,000 A Shares of the Company (the
“Non-Public Issuance”) to certain specific investors on 26 December 2016. Upon completion of the Non-
Public Issuance, the share capital of the Company increases to RMB20,723,619,000, and CMGC remains
the controlling shareholder of the Company.

In October 2018, CMGC purchased the structure adjusting funds for central enterprises at a consideration of
3% shares it held in the Company. The proportion of shareholding and voting upon the Company decreased
from 59.18% to 56.18% subsequent to the completion of purchase and CMGC is still the controlling
shareholder of the Company.

On 8 December 2015, the Strategic Restructuring between CMGC and China Minmetals Corporation (“CMC”)
started upon the approval of the SASAC, whereby CMGC will be merged into CMC. In May 2019, CMGC
completed changes of business registration and its contributor was then changed to CMC from SASAC. The
status of CMGC as controlling shareholder and the SASAC as the ultimate controlling shareholder of the
Company does not change before or after the Strategic Restructuring.

The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are principally engaged in the following activities (Core

Operations): engineering contracting, property development, equipment manufacture, and resource
development.

m Metallurgical Corporation of China Ltd.
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lll. BASIC CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

1. Basic information of the Company (Continued)

The Group provide services and products as follows: provision of engineering, construction and other
related contracting services for metallurgical and non-metallurgical projects (“engineering contracting”);
development and sale of residential and commercial properties, affordable housing and primary land
development (“property development”); development and production of metallurgical equipment, steel
structures and other metal products (“equipment manufacture”); and development, mining and processing
of mineral resources and the production of nonferrous metal and polysilicon (“resource development”).

During the reporting period, the Group did not have material changes on principal business activities.

The Company and consolidated financial statements had been approved by the Board of Directors of the
Company on 30 August 2019.

2. Scope of consolidated financial statements

Details of the scope of consolidated financial statements are set out in Note IX “Interest in other entities”,
whereas the changes of the scope of consolidation are set out in Note VIII “Changes of the scope of
consolidation”.

IV. BASIS OF PREPARATION

1. Basis of preparation

The Group has adopted the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises issued by the Ministry of
Finance (the “MoF”) and the implementation guidance, interpretations and other relevant provisions issued
or revised subsequently by the MoF (collectively referred to as “CASBE”").

According to Acceptance of Mainland Accounting and Auditing Standards and Mainland Audit Firms for
Mainland Incorporated Companies Listed in Hong Kong and other Hong Kong Listing Rules Amendments
issued by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange in December 2010, also referring to the relevant provisions issued
by the MoF and the CSRC, and approved by the general meeting of stockholders of the Company, from
fiscal year 2014, the Company no longer provides the financial statements prepared in accordance with
the CASBE and the International Financial Reporting Standards (the “IFRS”) separately to stockholders of A
shares and H shares. Instead, the Company provides the financial statements prepared in accordance with
the CASBE to all stockholders, taking the relevant disclosure standards of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and Hong Kong Listing Rules into consideration.

In addition, the Group has disclosed relevant financial information in these financial statements in

accordance with /nformation Disclosure and Presentation Rules for Companies Offering Securities to the
Public No. 15-General Provisions on Financial Reporting (revised by CSRC in 2014).
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IV. BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

2. Accrual basis and measurement principle

The Group has adopted the accrual basis of accounting. Except for certain financial instruments set out
in Note XI1 which are measured at fair value, the Group adopts the historical cost as the principle of
measurement in the financial statements. Where assets are impaired, provisions for asset impairment are
made in accordance with relevant requirements.

In the historical cost measurement, assets obtained shall be measured at the amount of cash or cash
equivalents or fair value of the purchase amount paid. Liabilities shall be measured at the actual amount
of cash or assets received or the contracted amount assume the current obligation, or measured at the
prospective amount of cash or cash equivalents paid to discharge the liabilities according to business
activities.

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between
knowledgeable, willing market participants in an arm’s length transaction at the measurement date. Fair
value measured and disclosed in the financial statements are determined on this basis whether it is

observable or estimated by valuation techniques.

The following table provides an analysis, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair
value input is observable and significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either directly or indirectly;

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

3. Going concern
The Group has performed an assessment of the going concern for the following 12 months from 30 June

2019 and does not identify any significant doubtful matter or event on the going concern. As such, these
financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

m Metallurgical Corporation of China Ltd.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

1. Statement of compliance

These financial statements are in compliance with the CASBE to truly and completely reflect consolidated
and the Company'’s financial position as at 30 June 2019 and consolidated and the Company’s operating
results and cash flows for the six months period then ended.

2. Accounting period
The Group has adopted the calendar year as its accounting year, i.e. from 1 January to 31 December.
3. Business cycle

Business cycle refers to the period that starts from the purchase of assets for production and ends with
the realization of cash or cash equivalent. The business cycle of infrastructure and property development
business of the Group is normally over one year because the duration of construction and infrastructure
warranty is relatively long. The business cycles of other businesses are in 12 months in general.

4. Reporting currency

The Company and its domestic subsidiaries choose RMB as their functional currency. The functional
currency of the overseas subsidiaries of the Company is selected based on the primary economic
environment where they operate. The Company adopts RMB to present its financial statements.

58 Business combinations
(1) Business combinations involving enterprises under common control

A business combination involving enterprises under common control is a business combination in
which all of the combining enterprises are ultimately controlled by the same party or parties both
before and after the combination, and that control is not transitory. Assets and liabilities obtained
shall be measured at their respective carrying amounts as recorded by the combining entities at the
date of the combination. The difference between the carrying amount of the net assets obtained and
the carrying amount of the consideration paid for the combination is adjusted to the share premium
in capital reserve. If the share premium is not sufficient to absorb the difference, any excess shall
be adjusted against retained earnings. Costs that are directly attributable to the combination are
charged to profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred. Direct issue costs incurred in
respect of equity instruments or liabilities issued pursuant to the business combination should be
charged to the respect equity instruments or liabilities upon initial recognition of the underlying
equity instruments or liabilities.
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V. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

5. Business combinations (Continued)
2) Business combinations not involving enterprises under common control

A business combination not involving enterprises under common control is a business combination
in which all of the combining enterprises are not ultimately controlled by the same party or parties
before and after the combination.

The costs of business combination are the fair value of the assets paid, liabilities happened or bore
and equity instruments issued by the acquirer for the purpose of achieving the control rights of the
acquiree. If the business combination is achieved in stages, the cost of business combination is the
sum of total consideration paid at the acquisition date and the re-measured fair value of acquirer’s
previously held equity interests in the acquire at the acquisition date. The acquisition date carrying
value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured to fair value at
the acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising from such re-measurement are recognized in profit
or loss. Other comprehensive income associated with equity interest in the acquiree already held
by the acquirer before the acquisition date is reclassified to investment income at the date on which
acquisition is made.

The intermediary costs such as audit, legal services and assessment consulting costs and other
related management costs that are directly attributable to the combination by the acquirer are
charged to profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred. Direct issue costs incurred in
respect of equity instruments or liabilities issued pursuant to the business combination should be
charged to the respect equity instruments or liabilities upon initial recognition of the underlying
equity instruments or liabilities.

The acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired by the acquirer in
a business combination, that meet the recognition criteria shall be measured at fair value at the
acquisition date. Where the cost of combination exceeds the acquirer’s interest in the fair value
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets, the difference is treated as an asset and recognized as
goodwill, which is measured at cost on initial recognition. Where the cost of combination is less than
the acquirer’s interest in the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets, the acquirer firstly
reassesses the measurement of the fair values of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities and measurement of the cost of combination. If after that reassessment, the cost
of combination is still less than the acquirer’s interest in the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets, the acquirer recognizes the remaining difference immediately in profit or loss for the
current year.

The goodwill raised because of the business combination should be separately disclosed in the

combination financial statement and measured by the amount of costs deducted by the accumulative
provision for impairment.
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V. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

6.

Basis for preparation of consolidated financial statements

The scope of consolidation in consolidated financial statements is determined on the basis of control.
Control is achieved when the Company has power over the investee; is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee; and has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

For a subsidiary disposed of by the Group, the operating results and cash flows before the date of disposal
(the date when control is lost) are included in consolidated income statement and consolidated statement of
cash flows, as appropriate.

For a subsidiary acquired through a business combination not involving enterprises under common control,
the operating results and cash flows from the acquisition date (the date when control is obtained) are
included in consolidated income statement and consolidated statement of cash flows.

For a subsidiary acquired through a business combination involving enterprises under common control, it
will be fully consolidated into consolidated financial statements from the date on which the subsidiary was
ultimately under common control by the same party or parties.

The significant accounting policies and accounting years adopted by the subsidiaries are determined based
on the uniform accounting policies and accounting years set out by the Company. For those subsidiaries
acquired through business combinations not involving enterprises under common control, the identifiable
assets and liabilities recorded in the financial statements of the acquired subsidiaries should be adjusted
based on the fair value determined at the acquisition date.

All significant intra-group balances, transactions and unrealized profits are eliminated on consolidation. The
portion of subsidiaries’ equity that is not attributable to the Company is treated as non-controlling interests
and presented as “non-controlling interests” in the shareholders’ equity in consolidated balance sheet.
The portion of net profits or losses of subsidiaries for the period attributable to non-controlling interests is
presented as “non-controlling interests” in consolidated income statement below the “net profit” line item.

When the amount of loss for the period attributable to the non-controlling shareholders of a subsidiary
exceeds the non-controlling shareholders’ portion of the opening balance of owners’ equity of the subsidiary,
the excess amount is still allocated against non-controlling interests.

Acquisition of non-controlling interests or disposal of equity interest in a subsidiary that does not result
in the loss of control over the subsidiary is accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of
shareholders’ interests and non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiary. The difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests are
adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is adjusted to capital reserve under owners’
equity. If the capital reserve is not sufficient to absorb the difference, the excess is adjusted against retained
earnings.

When the Group loses control over a subsidiary due to disposal of certain equity interest or other reasons,
any retained interest is re-measured at its fair value at the date when control is lost. The difference between
(i) the aggregate of the consideration received on disposal and the fair value of any retained interest
and (ii) the share of the former subsidiary’s net assets cumulatively calculated from the acquisition date
according to the original proportion of ownership interest is recognized as investment income in the period
in which control is lost. Other comprehensive income associated with investment in the former subsidiary is
reclassified to investment income in the period in which control is lost.
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V. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Us Classification of joint arrangement and accounting methods for joint management

Joint arrangement involves by two or more parties jointly control. Joint control is the contractually agreed
sharing of control over an economic activity, and exists only when the strategic financial and operating
decisions relating to the activity require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control (the ventures).

The Group makes the classification of the joint arrangements according to the rights enjoyed and obligations
bored in the joint arrangements. There are only two types of joint arrangements - joint operations and joint
ventures.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have
rights to the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method.

A joint operation refers to whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the assets, and obligations for the liabilities, relating to the arrangement. When the Group undertakes its
activities under joint operations, the Group as a joint operator recognized in relation to its interest in a joint
operation: its assets, including its share of any assets held jointly; its liabilities, including its share of any
liabilities incurred jointly; its revenue from the sale of its share of the output arising from the joint operation;
its share of the revenue from the sale of the output by the joint operation; and its expenses, including its
share of any expenses incurred jointly. The Group accounts for the assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses
relating to its interest in a joint operation in accordance with the provision applicable to the particular assets,
liabilities, revenues and expenses.

8. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand and deposits that can be readily withdrawn on demand. Cash equivalents are
the Group’s short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

9. Translation of transactions and financial statements denominated in foreign currencies
(1) Transactions denominated in foreign currencies

On initial recognition, foreign currency transactions are translated into RMB using the spot exchange
rate prevailing at the date of transaction.

At the balance sheet date, foreign currency monetary items are translated into RMB using the
spot exchange rates at the balance sheet date. Exchange differences arising from the differences
between the spot exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet date and those on initial recognition
or at the previous balance sheet date are recognized in profit or loss for the period, except that
exchange differences related to a specific-purpose borrowing denominated in foreign currency
that qualify for capitalization are capitalized as part of the cost of the qualifying asset during the
capitalization period are recognized as other comprehensive income.

When preparing financial statements involving foreign operations, if there is any foreign currency
monetary items which in substance forms part of the net investment in the foreign operations,
exchange differences arising from the changes of foreign currency should be recorded as other
comprehensive income, and will be reclassified to profit or loss upon disposal of the foreign
operations.
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V. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

9. Translation of transactions and financial statements denominated in foreign currencies (Continued)

(1)

2)

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies (Continued)

Foreign currency non-monetary items measured at historical cost are translated to the amounts in
functional currency at the spot exchange rates on the dates of the transactions and the amounts
in functional currency remain unchanged. Foreign currency non-monetary items measured at fair
value are re-translated at the spot exchange rate on the date the fair value is determined. Difference
between the re-translated functional currency amount and the original functional currency amount is
treated as changes in fair value (including changes of exchange rate) and is recognized in profit and
loss or as other comprehensive income.

Translation of financial statements denominated in foreign currency

For the purpose of preparing consolidated financial statements, financial statements of a foreign
operation are translated from the foreign currency into RMB using the following method: assets and
liabilities on the balance sheet are translated at the spot exchange rate prevailing at the balance
sheet date; shareholders’ equity items except for retained earnings are translated at the spot
exchange rates at the dates on which such items arose; all items in the income statement as well
as items reflecting the distribution of profits are translated at the spot exchange rates on the dates
of the transactions; the opening balance of retained earnings is the translated closing balance
of the previous year’s retained earnings; the closing balance of retained earnings is calculated
and presented on the basis of each translated income statement and profit distribution item. The
difference between the translated assets and the aggregate of liabilities and shareholders’ equity
items is recorded as other comprehensive income.

Cash flows arising from a transaction in foreign currency and the cash flows of a foreign subsidiary
are translated at the spot exchange rate on the date of the cash flows. The effect of exchange
rate changes on cash and cash equivalents is regarded as a reconciling item and presented
separately in the cash flow statement as “effect of foreign exchange rate changes on cash and cash
equivalents”.

The opening balances and the comparative figures of prior year are presented at the translated
amounts in the prior year’s financial statements.

On disposal of the Group’s entire equity interest in a foreign operation, or upon a loss of control
over a foreign operation due to disposal of certain equity interest in it or other reasons, the Group
transfers the accumulated exchange fluctuation reserve, which is attributable to the owners’ equity
of the Company and presented under other comprehensive income to profit or loss in the period in
which the disposal occurs.

In case of a disposal or other reason that does not result in the Group losing control over a foreign
operation, the proportionate share of accumulated exchange fluctuation reserve is re-attributed
to non-controlling interests and is not recognized in profit and loss. For partial disposals of equity
interest in foreign operations which are associates or joint ventures, the proportionate share of the
accumulated exchange fluctuation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.
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V. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

10. Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. For
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs are immediately
recognized in profit or loss. For other financial assets and financial liabilities, transaction costs are included
in their initial recognized amounts. When the Group recognizes the accounts receivable excluding significant
financing component or does not consider the financing component in the contract within one year in
accordance with the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises No. 14 - Revenue (hereinafter referred
to as the “Revenue Standards”), the accounts receivable on initial recognition is measured at transaction
price defined in the Revenue Standard.

The amortized cost of a financial asset or a financial liability is an accumulatively amortized amount arising
from the initially recognized amount of the financial asset or the financial liability deducting repaid principals
plus or less amortization of balances between the initially recognized amount on initial recognition and the
amount on maturity date using the effective interest method, and then deducting accumulated provisions for
losses (only applicable to financial assets).

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial asset or a financial
liability and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant accounting period.

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash flows through the expected
life of the financial asset or financial liability or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Group
estimates future cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial asset or financial liability
without considering expected credit losses.

(1) Classification and measurement of financial assets

On initial recognition, the Group’s financial assets are classified into the following categories,
including financial assets measured at amortized cost, financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

(a) Categorized into financial assets measured at amortized cost

If the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding and the
financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by collecting
contractual cash flows, the Group shall classify the financial asset into the financial asset
measured at amortized cost. The Group’s financial assets measured at amortized cost
include cash and bank balances, bills and accounts receivable, other receivables, non-
current assets due within one year and long-term receivables.

Financial assets measured at amortized cost are subsequently measured at amortized cost

using the effective interest method. Gain or loss arising from impairment or derecognition is
recognized in profit or loss.
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V. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

10. Financial instruments (Continued)
(1) Classification and measurement of financial assets (Continued)
(a) Categorized into financial assets measured at amortized cost (Continued)
- Effective interest method and amortized cost

For financial assets measured at amortized cost, the Group recognizes interest
income using effective interest method. The Group calculates and recognizes interest
income through book value of financial assets multiplying effective interest, except for
the following circumstances:

(i) For purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets with credit
impairment, the Group calculates and recognizes its interest income based on
amortized cost of the financial asset and the effective interest through credit
adjustment since initial recognition.

(ii) For purchased or originated financial assets without credit impairment incurred
while with credit impairment incurred in subsequent periods, the Group
calculates and recognizes its interest income based on amortized cost of the
financial asset and the effective interest in subsequent periods. If the credit
risk of the financial asset is reduced during subsequent periods and credit
impairment does not exist, the Group shall calculate and recognize interest
income through book value of financial assets multiplying effective interest.

(b) Categorized into financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOC!")

If the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding, and the
financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets, the Group shall classify the financial
asset into the financial assets at FVTOCI.

Impairment losses or gains related to financial assets, interest income measured using
effective interest method and exchange gains or losses are recognized into profit or loss
for the current period, Except for the above circumstances, changes in fair value of the
financial assets are included in other comprehensive income. When the financial asset is
derecognized, the cumulative gains or losses previously recognized in other comprehensive
income shall be removed from other comprehensive income and recognized in profit or loss.

The financial assets classified as at FVTOCI by the Group are presented under the line item
of “receivables at FVTOCI” in the balance sheet.
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V. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

10. Financial instruments (Continued)
(1) Classification and measurement of financial assets (Continued)
(c) Categorized into financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”)

Financial assets at FVTPL include financial assets at FVTPL and those designated as at
FVTPL.

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being measured at amortized cost or FVTOCI
are categorized into financial assets measured at FVTPL.

On initial recognition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset as measured at
FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.

Other than financial assets included in a portion of hedging relations, the Group subsequently
measured these financial assets at fair value, gains or losses arising from changes in fair
value and dividends and interest income related to these financial assets shall be recognized
into profit or loss for the period.

The Group’s financial assets measured at FVTPL include monetary funds, tradable equity
instrument investments and investments in private funds, which are presented under the
items “tradable financial assets” and “other non-current financial assets” in the balance
sheet. The Group has no financial assets designated as at FVTPL.

(d) Designated as financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOC!”)

On initial recognition, the Group may irrevocably designate a non-tradable equity instrument
investments as financial asset measured at FVTOCI.

The financial assets designated as financial assets measured at FVTOCI are set out under
the item “investments in other equity instrument”. Changes in fair value of non-tradable
equity investments should be recognized in other comprehensive income, when the financial
assets are derecognized, the accumulative gains or losses previously recognized in other
comprehensive income shall be removed from other comprehensive income and recognized
in retained earnings. During the period that the Group holds these non-tradable equity
instrument, the Group has established the right of collecting dividends, whose economic
benefit is probably flow into the Group, and the amount of the dividends can be reliably
measured, then the Group will recognize dividends in profit or loss.
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V. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

10. Financial instruments (Continued)
2) Impairment of financial instruments

The Group shall recognize an impairment loss for expected credit losses on financial assets
measured at amortized cost, financial assets at FVTOCI, contract assets and financial guarantee
contracts.

The Group makes a loss allowance against amount of expected credit losses during the whole life of
the contract assets and accounts receivable that exclude significant financing component or do not
consider the financing component in the contract within one year arising from transactions adopting
Revenue Standard.

For other financial instruments, the Group assesses changes in credit risks of the relevant financial
instruments since initial recognition at each balance sheet date. If the credit loss of the financial
instruments has been significantly increased since initial recognition, the Group will make a loss
allowance at an amount of expected credit loss during the whole life; if not, the Group will make a
loss allowance for the financial instruments at an amount in the future 12-month expected credit
losses. The increased or reversed amount of credit is recognized in profit or loss as impairment loss
or gain. The Group has makes a loss allowance against amount of expected credit losses during the
whole life in the prior accounting period. However, at the balance sheet date, the credit risk on a
financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition; the Group will measure
the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount in the future 12-month expected credit
losses. Reversed amount of loss allowance arising from such circumstances shall be included in
profit or loss as impairment gains.
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V. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(CONTINUED)

10. Financial instruments (Continued)

2) Impairment of financial instruments (Continued)

(a)

Significant increase of credit risk

The Group will make use of reasonable and supportable forward-looking information that is
available to determine whether credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition
through comparing the risk of a default occurring on the financial instruments as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instruments as at the
date of initial recognition. For financial guarantee contracts, when applying the provision of
impairment of financial instruments, the Group shall take the date when it becomes the party
making an irrevocable undertaking as the initial confirmation date.

The Group will take the following factors into consideration when assessing whether credit
risk has increased significantly:

= Significant changes in internal price indicators of credit risk as a result of a change in
credit risk;

- Adverse changes in business, financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant change in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

- An actual or expected significant change in the operating results of the debtor;

- Significant adverse change in the regulatory, economic, or technological environment
of the debtor;

- Significant changes in the value of the collateral supporting the obligation or in the
quality of third-party guarantees or credit enhancements, which are expected to
reduce the debtor’s economic incentive to make scheduled contractual payments or
to otherwise have an effect on the probability of a default occurring;

- Significant changes in circumstances expected to reduce the debtor’'s economic
incentive to make scheduled contractual payments;

- Expected changes in the loan documentation including an expected breach of
contract that may lead to covenant waivers or amendments, interest payment
holidays, interest rate step-ups, requiring additional collateral or guarantees, or other
changes to the contractual framework of the financial instruments;

= Significant changes in the expected performance and behavior of the debtor;
- Past due period of contract payment exceeds (includes) 30 days.

At balance sheet date, if the Group judges that the financial instruments solely has lower
credit risk, the Group will assume that the credit risk of the financial instruments has not been
significantly increased since initial recognition. If the risk of default on financial instruments
is low, the borrower’s ability to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the short term is
strong, and even if the economic situation and operating environment are adversely changed
over a long period of time, it may not necessarily reduce the borrower’s ability to fulfill its
contractual cash flow obligations, the financial instrument is considered to have a lower
credit risk.
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V. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

10. Financial instruments (Continued)
2) Impairment of financial instruments (Continued)
(b) Credit-impaired financial assets

When the Group expected occurrence of one or more events which may cause adverse
impact on future cash flows of a financial asset, the financial asset will become a credit-
impaired financial asset. Objective evidence that a financial asset is impaired includes the
following observable events:

= Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or debtor;

- A breach of contract by the debtor, such as a default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments;

- The creditor, for economic or legal reasons relating to the debtor’s financial difficulty,
granting a concession to the debtor;

- It becoming probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganizations;

- The disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial
difficulties of the issuer or the debtor;

- Purchase or originate a financial asset with a large scale of discount, which reflects
facts of credit loss incurred.

(c) Determination of expected credit loss

The Group determines expected credit losses of relevant financial instruments using the
following methods:

- For a financial asset, a credit loss is the present value of the difference between the
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group under the contract and the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive;

- For a financial guarantee contract, the credit loss is the present value of the
difference between estimated amount paid by the Group for the credit loss incurred
by the contract holder and the amount the Group expects to receive from the contract
holder, the debtor or any other party;

- For a financial asset with credit-impaired at the balance sheet date, the credit loss
is the difference between the asset’s gross carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate.

The factors reflected in methods of measurement of expected credit losses include an
unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range of
possible outcomes; time value of money; reasonable and supportable information about past
events, current conditions and forecasts on future economic status at balance sheet date
without unnecessary additional costs or efforts.
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V. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

10. Financial instruments (Continued)
2) Impairment of financial instruments (Continued)
(d) Write-down of financial assets

When the Group will no longer reasonably expect that the contractual cash flows of financial
assets can be collected in aggregate or in part, the Group will directly write down the
carrying amount of the financial asset, which constitutes derecognition of relevant financial
assets.

3) Transfer of financial assets

The Group will derecognize a financial asset if one of the following conditions is satisfied: (i) the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire; (ii) the financial asset has
been transferred and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset is
transferred to the transferee; or (iii) although the financial asset has been transferred, the Group
neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset
but has not retained control of the financial asset.

If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
financial asset, and it retains control of the financial asset, the Group will recognize the financial
asset to the extent of its continuing involvement in the transferred financial asset and recognize an
associated liability.

For a transfer of a financial asset in its entirety that satisfies the derecognition criteria, for financial
asset categorized into those measured at amortized cost, the difference between the carrying
amount of the financial asset transferred and the sum of the consideration received from the transfer is
recognized in profit or loss. For the non-tradable equity instrument designated as financial assets at
FVTOCI, cumulative gain or loss that has been recognized in other comprehensive income should be
removed from other comprehensive income but be recognized in retained earnings.

For a part of transfer of a financial asset that satisfies the derecognition criteria, the carrying amount
of the transferred financial asset is allocated between the part that is derecognized and the part
that is continuously involved, based on the respective fair values of those parts on transfer date.
The difference between (1) the sum of the consideration received for the part derecognized and any
cumulative gain or loss allocated to the part derecognized which has been previously recognized
in other comprehensive income; and (2) the carrying amount allocated to the part derecognized on
derecognition date; is recognized in profit or loss or retained earnings.

For a transfer of a financial asset in its entirety that does not satisfy the derecognition criteria, the

Group will continuously recognize the transferred financial asset in its entirety. Considerations
received due to transfer of assets should be recognized as a liability upon receipts.
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V. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

10. Financial instruments (Continued)
4) Classification and measurement of financial liabilities

Financial instruments issued by the Group are classified into financial liabilities or equity instruments
on the basis of the substance of the contractual arrangements and the economic nature not only
its legal form, together with the definition of financial liability and equity instruments on initial
recognition.

On initial recognition, financial liabilities are classified into financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss and other financial liabilities.

(a) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at FVTPL consist of financial liabilities held for trading and those
designated as at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities meet one of the following conditions, indicating that the Group’s purpose
of undertaking the financial liabilities is transactional:

- The purpose of undertaking relevant financial liabilities is mainly for the recent
repurchase;

- The relevant financial liabilities are part of the centrally managed identifiable financial
instrument portfolio at initial recognition, and there is an objective evidence that there is
a short-term profits will presence in the near future;

- Related financial liabilities are derivatives, except for derivatives that meet the
definition of a financial guarantee contract and that are designated as effective
hedging instruments.

Financial liabilities held for trading are subsequently measured at fair value. Any gains or
losses arising from changes in the fair value and any dividend or interest expenses paid on

the financial liabilities are recognized in profit or loss.

The Group’s financial liabilities measured at FVTPL are derivatives classified as financial
liabilities which are presented as” derivative financial liabilities” in the balance sheet.
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V. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

10. Financial instruments (Continued)
4) Classification and measurement of financial liabilities
(b) Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities, except for financial liabilities arising from transfer of financial
assets does not satisfy derecognition criteria or continue involvement of transferred financial
assets and financial guarantee contracts liability, are subsequently measured at amortized
cost, with gain or loss arising from derecognition or amortization recognized in profit or loss.
The Group’s financial liabilities measured at amortized cost include bills payable, accounts
payable, other payables, long-term payables, loans and bonds payable etc.

That the Group and its counterparty modify or renegotiate the contract does not result in
derecognition of a financial liability subsequently measured at amortized cost but result
in changes in contractual cash flows, the Group will recalculate the carrying amount of
the financial liability, with relevant gain or loss recognized in profit or loss. The Group will
determine carrying amount of the financial liability based on the present value of renegotiated
or modified contractual cash flows discounted at the financial liability’s original effective
interest rate. For all costs or expenses arising from modification or renegotiation of the
contract, the Group will adjust the modified carrying amount of the financial liability and make
amortization during the remaining term of the modified financial liability.

The term of the financial liability measured at amortized cost is under one year (inclusive), the
financial liability is presented as current liability; the financial liability with the term over one
year but will fall due within one year (inclusive) since the balance sheet date, it is present as
non-current liability due within one year; others are presented as non-current liability.

(c) Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract by which the issuer is required to compensate
specific amount to the contract holder suffering losses in case the specific debtor fails to
settle the debt in accordance with the initial or revised terms of debt instrument when the
debt falls due. After initial recognition, the Group measure financial guarantee contracts
at the higher of: (i) amount of loss allowance; and (ii) the amount initially recognized less
cumulative amortization recognized in accordance with related terms of Standards for
Revenue.
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V. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

10. Financial instruments (Continued)
(5) Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognizes a financial liability (or part of it) only when the underlying present obligation
(or part of it) is discharged. An agreement between the Group (an existing debtor) and an existing
lender to replace the original financial liability with a new financial liability with substantially different
terms is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a
new financial liability.

When the Group derecognizes a financial liability or a part of it, it recognizes the difference between
the carrying amount of the financial liability (or part of the financial liability) derecognized and the
consideration paid (including any non-cash assets transferred or new financial liabilities assumed) in
profit or loss.

(6) Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. The issuance (including refinance), repurchase, selling or cancellation
of these instruments are treated as change in equity. Change of fair value of equity instruments is not
recognized by the group. The related transaction costs are deducted from equity.

The Group recognizes the distribution to holders of the equity instruments as distribution of profits,
and divides paid do not affect total amount of shareholder equity.

(7) Derivatives

Derivatives of the Group include USD foreign exchange option. Derivatives are initially measured
at fair value at the date when the derivative contracts are entered into and are subsequently re-
measured at fair value. Changes are recognized in current profit or loss.

8) Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

Where the Group has a legal right that is currently enforceable to set off the recognized financial
assets and financial liabilities, and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the financial
asset and settle the financial liability simultaneously, a financial asset and a financial liability shall be
offset and the net amount is presented in the balance sheet. Except for the above circumstances,
financial assets and financial liabilities shall be presented separately in the balance sheet and shall
not be offset.
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V. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

11. Inventories

Applicable |:| Not Applicable

(1)

2)

3)

4
(5)

(6)

Categories of inventories and initial measurement

The Group’s inventories are initially measured at cost. Inventories mainly include raw materials,
material procurement, outsourced processing materials, work in progress, finished goods, materials
in transit, costs to fulfil a contract, properties under development, completed properties held for sale
etc.

Valuation method of inventories upon delivery

The actual cost of inventories upon delivery is calculated using the first-in-first-out or weighted
average method. Cost of finished goods and work in progress comprise all costs of materials, direct
labor costs and other manufacturing overheads allocated on a normal production capacity and
systematic basis.

Basis for determining net realizable value of inventories and provision methods for decline in
value of inventories

At the balance sheet date, inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value. If
the net realizable value is below the cost of inventories, a provision for decline in value of inventories is
made. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion, the estimated costs necessary to make the sale and relevant taxes.
Net realizable value is determined based on clear evidence obtained, and takes into consideration
the purposes of holding inventories and effect of post balance sheet events.

After the provision for decline in value of inventories is made, if the circumstances that previously
caused inventories to be written down below cost no longer exist so that the net realizable value of
inventories is higher than their carrying amount, the original provision for decline in value is reversed
and the reversal is included in profit or loss for the period.

The perpetual inventory system is maintained for stock system.
Amortization method for low cost and short-lived consumable items and packaging materials

Materials in transit include packaging materials and low cost and short-lived consumable items.
Packaging materials and low cost and short-lived consumable items are using either one-off
amortization method or multiple-stage amortization method.

Properties under development and completed properties held for sale

Costs of properties under development and completed properties held for sale mainly consist
of acquisition cost of land use rights, expenditures of land development, infrastructure costs,
construction costs, capitalized borrowing costs and other relevant costs. The expenditure of
development land is included in the development cost. The construction expenditures of public
facilities (the facilities approved by the relevant government departments such as roads) form part
of property development costs and are allocated to respective individual properties projects. Cost of
property development product is calculated based on actual costs incurred.
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V. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

12.

Long-term equity investments

Applicable |:| Not Applicable

Long-term equity investments include investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates.

Subsidiaries are the companies that are controlled by the Company. Associates are the companies over
which the Group has significant influence. Joint ventures are joint arrangements over which the Group has
joint control along with other investors and has rights to the net assets of the joint arrangement.

The Company accounts for the investment in subsidiaries at historical cost in the Company’s financial
statements. Investments in associates and joint ventures are accounted for under equity method.

(1) Determination of investment cost

For a long-term equity investment acquired through a business combination involving enterprises
under common control, the investment cost of the long-term equity investment is the share of the
carrying amount of the shareholders’ equity of the acquiree attributable to the ultimate controlling
party at the date of combination. For a long-term equity investment acquired through business
combination not involving enterprises under common control, the investment cost of the long-term
equity investment is the cost of acquisition. For a business combination not involving enterprises
under common control achieved in stages that involves multiple exchange transactions, the initial
investment cost is carried at the aggregate of the carrying amount of the acquirer’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree and the new investment cost incurred on the acquisition date.

Regarding the long-term equity investment acquired otherwise than through a business combination,
if the long-term equity investment is acquired by cash, the historical cost is determined based on
the amount of cash paid and payable; if the long-term equity investment is acquired through the
issuance of equity instruments, the historical cost is determined based on the fair value of the equity
instruments issued.

2) Subsequent measurement and recognition of profit or loss

If the long-term equity investment is accounted for at cost, it should be measured at historical cost.
Dividend declared by the investee should be accounted for as investment income.

Under the equity method, where the initial investment cost of a long-term equity investment exceeds
the Group’s share of the fair value of the investee’s identifiable net assets at the time of acquisition,
no adjustment is made to the initial investment cost. Where the initial investment cost is less than
the Group’s share of the fair value of the investee’s identifiable net assets at the time of acquisition,
the difference is recognized in profit or loss for the period, and the cost of the long-term equity
investment is adjusted accordingly.
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V. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

12. Long-term equity investments (Continued)
2) Subsequent measurement and recognition of profit or loss (Continued)

Under the equity method, the Group recognizes its share of the net profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the investee for the period as investment income or loss and other
comprehensive income for the period. The Group recognizes its share of the investee’s net profit
or loss based on the fair value of the investee’s individual separately identifiable assets, etc. at the
acquisition date after making appropriate adjustments to be confirmed with the Group’s accounting
policies and accounting period. The Group discontinues recognizing its share of net losses of the
investee after the carrying amount of the long-term equity investment together with any long-term
interests that in substance form part of its net investment in the investee is reduced to zero. If the
Group has incurred obligations to assume additional losses of the investee, a provision is recognized
according to the expected obligation, and recorded as investment loss for the period. For the
changes in equity in addition to the net profit or loss, other comprehensive income and profits
distribution, adjust the carrying value of long-term equity investment when the investee declares
dividend distribution and included in shareholders’ equity. The Group recognizes its share of the
dividends of the investee should be adjusted, and reduces the carrying value of the investment.
Unrealized profits or losses resulting from the Group’s transactions with its associates and joint
ventures are recognized as investment income or loss to the extent that those attributable to the
Group’s equity interest are eliminated if the trading assets do not form a business. Unrealized losses
are resulted from the Group’s transactions with its associates and joint ventures, the impairment
losses on the transferred assets are not eliminated.

3) Basis for determining control, joint control and significant influence over investee

Control is achieved when the Company has power over the investee; is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and has the ability to use its power to affect
its returns.

Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control over an economic activity, and exists
only when the strategic financial and operating policy decisions relating to the activity require the
unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the
investee but is not control or joint control over those policies.

When determining whether an investing enterprise is able to exercise control or significant influence
over an investee, the effect of potential voting rights of the investee (for example, warrants and
convertible debts) held by the investing enterprises or other parties that are currently exercisable or
convertible shall be considered.

4) Methods of impairment assessment and determining the provision for impairment loss
If the recoverable amounts of the investments to subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are

less than their carrying amounts, an impairment loss should be recognized to reduce the carrying
amounts to the recoverable amounts (Note V18).
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12.

13.

Long-term equity investments (Continued)
(5) The disposal of long-term equity investment

On disposal of a long term equity investment, the difference between the proceeds actually received
and receivable and the carrying amount is recognized in profit or loss for the period.

If the Group loses its control over the investee because of the disposal of partial equity investment
and the remaining equity investment still have joint control or significant influence on the investee,
then equity method should be adopted to record long-term equity investment when preparing the
financial statements as if the equity investment is all the way accounted for under equity method
from the date the Group acquired this investment. If the remaining equity investment does not have
joint control or significant influence on the investee, the equity investment should be recorded
according to the recognition and measurement of financial assets and the difference between
the carrying amount and fair value of the equity investment on the date of losing control shall be
included in profit or loss for the current year. The other comprehensive income recognized before
the Group had controlled over the investee under equity method or the financial assets recognition
and measurement standard should be treated referring to the same fundamental of disposing related
assets and liabilities on losing its control over the investee. The other changes in shareholders’
equity of the investee’s net assets except the net profit or loss, other comprehensive income and
profit distribution will be included in profit or loss for the current year of losing its control over the
investee. If the residual interests were measured under the equity method, the Group proportionally
carries over the other comprehensive income and other shareholders’ equity. If the residual interests
were measured under the financial assets recognition and measurement standard, the Group wholly
carries over the other comprehensive income and other shareholders’ equity.

Investment properties

Investment properties include properties held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or properties in
construction which will be used to earn rentals or for capital appreciation in the future. An investment
property is measured initially at cost. Subsequent expenditures incurred for such investment property are
included in the cost of the investment property if it is probable that economic benefits associated with an
investment property will flow to the Group and the subsequent expenditures can be measured reliably. Other
subsequent expenditures are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

The Group uses the cost model for subsequent measurement of investment property, and adopts a
depreciation or amortization policy for the investment property according to estimated useful lives and net
salvage value for buildings or land use rights. The estimated useful lives, estimated residual values and
annual depreciation rates of investment properties by category are as follows:

Annual

Estimated Estimated depreciation

useful lives residual values rate

(%) (%)

Buildings and structures 15-40 years 3-5 2.38-6.47
Land use rights 40-70 years - 1.43-2.50
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13. Investment properties (Continued)

When the purpose of the investment properties is changed to self-use, the investment properties are
transferred to fixed assets or intangible assets from the date the purpose is changed. When the purpose of
the self-use buildings or land use rights are changed to held for earning rentals or capital appreciation, the
buildings are transferred from fixed assets or intangible assets to investment properties from the date the
purpose is changed. The carrying amounts of the buildings remain unchanged before and after the purpose
change.

The estimated useful lives, estimated residual values and annual depreciation rate of investment properties
are reviewed at each year end date to assess if any change is needed.

When an investment property is sold or retired from its use and the expected not to be able to recover
economic benefits from disposal, the investment property should be de-recognized. When an investment
property is sold, transferred, retired or damaged, the Group recognizes the amount of any proceeds on
disposal net of the carrying amount and related taxes in profit or loss for the period.

The difference between recoverable amounts of the investment properties under the carrying amount is
referred to as impairment loss (Note V18).

14. Fixed assets
(1) Recognition criteria for fixed assets

Applicable D Not Applicable

Fixed assets include buildings and structures, machinery and equipment, transportation vehicles,
office equipment and others.

Fixed assets are tangible assets that are held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services, for rental to others, or for administrative purposes, and have useful lives of more than
one accounting year. A fixed asset is recognized only when it is probable that economic benefits
associated with the asset will flow to the Group and the cost of the asset can be reliably measured.
Purchased or constructed fixed assets are initially measured at cost when acquisition. During the
course of transformation of the Company into a limited liability company, the initial costs of fixed
assets injected by the State-owned shareholder were measured based on the valuation amount
approved by the State-owned assets management authority.

Subsequent expenditures incurred for the fixed asset are included in the cost of the fixed asset
and if it is probable that economic benefits associated with the asset will flow to the Group and the
subsequent expenditures can be measured reliably. Those old fixed asset items are replaced by
other new fixed asset items, the old fixed asset items should be de-recognized. Other subsequent
expenditures are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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V. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

14. Fixed assets (Continued)
2) Depreciation of each category of fixed assets

Fixed asset is depreciated based on the cost of fixed asset recognized less expected net residual
value over its useful life using the straight-line method. The fixed asset after impairment, depreciation
is calculated based on the carrying amount of the fixed asset after impairment over the estimated
remaining useful life of the asset. The estimated useful lives, estimated residual values and annual
depreciation rate of fixed assets are reviewed at each year end date to assess if any change is
needed. The estimated useful life, estimated net residual value and annual depreciation rate of each
category of fixed assets are as follows:

Applicable D Not Applicable

Annual

Residual depreciation

Category Depreciation Useful life value rate

(vear) (%) (%)

Buildings and structures the straight-line 15-40 3-5 2.38-6.47
method

Temporary buildings and the straight-line 3-5 3-5 19.00-32.33
structures method

Machinery and equipment the straight-line 3-14 3-5 6.79-32.33
method

Transportation vehicles the straight-line 5-12 3-5 7.92-19.40
method

Office equipment and others the straight-line 5-12 3-5 7.92-19.40
method

3) Other explanations

Applicable D Not Applicable

If a fixed asset is upon disposal or no future economic benefits are expected to be generated from
its use or disposal, the fixed asset is derecognized. When a fixed asset is sold, transferred, retired
or damaged, the amount of any proceeds on disposal of the asset net of the carrying amount and
related taxes is recognized in profit or loss for the period.

If the recoverable amounts of the fixed assets are less than the carrying amount, the carrying amount
will be reduced to the recoverable amounts (Note V18).

15. Construction in progress
Applicable ] Not Applicable
Construction in progress is measured at its actual costs. The actual costs include various construction,
installation costs, borrowing costs capitalized and other expenditures incurred until such time as the relevant
assets are completed and ready for its intended use. When the asset concerned is ready for its intended use,

the cost of the asset is transferred to fixed assets and depreciated starting from the following month.

If the recoverable amounts of the construction in progress are less than the carrying amount, the carrying
amount will be reduced to the recoverable amounts (Note V18).
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(CONTINUED)

16. Borrowing costs

Applicable |:| Not Applicable

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying asset are
capitalized when expenditures for such asset and borrowing costs are incurred and activities relating to the
acquisition, construction or production of the asset that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended
use or sale have commenced. Capitalization of borrowing costs ceases when the qualifying asset being
acquired, constructed or produced becomes ready for its intended use or sale. Borrowing costs incurred
subsequently should be charged to profit or loss. Capitalization of borrowing costs is suspended during
periods in which the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset is suspended abnormally
and when the suspension is for a continuous period of more than 3 months. Capitalization is suspended until
the acquisition, construction or production of the asset is resumed.

Where funds are borrowed under a specific-purpose borrowing, the amount of interest to be capitalized is
the actual interest expenses incurred on that borrowing for the period less any bank interest earned from
depositing the borrowed funds before being used on the asset or any investment income on the temporary
investment of those funds.

Where funds are borrowed under general-purpose borrowings, the Group determines the amount of interest
to be capitalized on such borrowings by applying a capitalization rate to the weighted average of the excess
of cumulative expenditures on the asset over the amounts of specific-purpose borrowings. The capitalization

rate is the weighted average of the interest rates applicable to the general-purpose borrowings.

During the capitalization period, exchange differences on foreign currency specific-purpose borrowing are

fully capitalized whereas exchange differences on foreign currency general-purpose borrowing is charged

to profit or loss.

17. Intangible assets

(1) Valuation methods, service life, impairment test
Applicable |:| Not Applicable
The Group’s intangible assets include land use rights, concession assets, mining rights, software,
patent and technology rights etc. Intangible assets are measured initially at cost. During the course
of transformation of the Company into a limited liability company, the initial costs of intangible assets
injected by the State-owned shareholder were measured based on the valuation amount approved
by the State-owned assets management authority.

(a) Land use rights

Land use rights of the Group are amortized on the straight-line basis according to the useful
lives of 40 to 70 years approved in the obtained land use rights certificates.

(b) Mining rights

Amortization is calculated based on the units of production method based only on proved
mining reserves.
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V. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(CONTINUED)
17. Intangible assets (Continued)
(1) Valuation methods, service life, impairment test (Continued)
(c) The right to use the franchise

The Group engages in certain service concession arrangements in which the Group carries
out construction work for the granting authority and receives in exchange a right to operate
the assets concerned in accordance with the pre-established conditions set by the granting
authority. The assets under the concession arrangements may be classified as intangible
assets or receivables from the granting authority.

The Group recognizes revenue and a financial asset to the extent that it has an unconditional
contractual right to receive specified or determinable amount of cash or another financial
asset from the granting authority, or to receive the shortfall from the granting authority, if any,
between amounts received from users of the public service and specified or determinable
amounts.

According to the contract, the Group has the right to charge fees from the service recipients
during a certain operating period after the related infrastructure construction is completed. If
the charge amount is undetermined, this right does not constitute any right of collecting cash
unconditionally. The Group recognizes revenue and intangible assets simultaneously.

The Group classifies the non-current assets linked to the long term investment in these
concession arrangements as “concession assets” within intangible assets on the balance
sheet if the intangible asset model is adopted. Once the underlying infrastructure of the
concession arrangements has been completed, the concession assets will be amortized over
the term of the concession on the straight-line basis under the intangible asset model.
If the financial asset model is applied, the Group recognizes financial assets resulted
from the concession arrangement in its balance sheet. The financial asset is measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method. Interest income is recognized in the profit
or loss accordingly.

(d) Software
Software is amortized on the straight-line basis over its estimated useful life of 3 to 5 years.

(e) Patent and proprietary technologies

Patent and proprietary technologies are amortized on the straight-line basis over their useful
lives of 5 to 20 years according to the contracts.

(f) Review the useful life and amortization method periodically

For an intangible asset with a finite useful life, the Group reviews the useful life and
amortization method at the end of the year, and makes adjustments when necessary.

(g9) The difference between recoverable amounts of the intangible assets under the carrying
amount is referred to as impairment loss (Note V18).
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V. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

17. Intangible assets (Continued)
2) Research and development expenditure

Applicable ] Not Applicable

Internal research and development project expenditures were classified into research expenditures
and development expenditures depending on its nature and the greater uncertainty whether the
research activities becoming to intangible assets.

Expenditure during the research phase is recognized as an expense in the period in which it is
incurred. Expenditure during the development phase that meets all of the following conditions at the
same time is recognized as intangible asset:

- It is technically feasible to complete the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or
sale;

- The Group has the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;

- The Group can demonstrate the ways in which the intangible asset will generate economic
benefits;

- The availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the
development and the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

- The expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its development phase can be
reliably measured.

Expenditures that do not meet all of the above conditions at the same time are recognized in profit
or loss when incurred. Expenditures that have previously been recognized in the profit or loss
would not be recognized as an asset in subsequent years. Those expenditures capitalized during
the development stage are recognized as development costs incurred and will be transferred to
intangible asset when the underlying project is ready for an intended use.

18. Impairment of long-term assets

Applicable ] Not Applicable

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that the fixed assets,
construction in progress, right-of-use assets, intangible assets with finite useful lives, investment properties
measured at historical cost, investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates may be impaired. If
there is any indication that such assets may be impaired, recoverable amounts are estimated for such assets.
The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and the present value of
the future cash flow estimated to be derived from the asset. The Group estimates the recoverable amount on
an individual basis. If it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of the individual asset, the Group
determines the recoverable amount of the asset group to which the asset belongs. Identification of an asset
group is based on whether major cash inflows generated by the asset group are largely independent of the
cash inflows from other assets or asset groups.
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18.

19.

20.

Impairment of long-term assets (Continued)

Goodwill arising from a business combination is tested for impairment at least at each year end, irrespective
of whether there is any indication that the asset may be impaired. For the purpose of impairment testing,
the carrying amount of goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated from the acquisition date
on a reasonable basis to each of the related asset groups; if it is impossible to allocate to the related asset
groups, it is allocated to each of the related set of asset groups. Each of the related asset groups or set
of asset groups is an asset group or set of asset group that is able to benefit from the synergies of the
business combination and shall not be larger than a reportable segment determined by the Group. If the
carrying amount of the asset group or set of asset groups is higher than its recoverable amount, the amount
of the impairment loss first reduced by the carrying amount of the goodwill allocated to the asset group or
set of asset groups, and then the carrying amount of other assets (other than the goodwill) within the asset
group or set of asset groups, pro rata based on the carrying amount of each asset.

Once the impairment loss of such assets is recognized, it is not be reversed in any subsequent period.
Long-term prepayments

Applicable D Not Applicable

Long-term prepayments include expenses on leasehold improvements and other expenses incurred that
should be amortized over the current and subsequent periods (amortization period of more than one year).
Long-term prepayments are amortized on a straight-line basis over the expected periods in which benefits
are derived, presented by the net amount of actual expenditure less accumulated amortization.

Employee benefits
(1) Short-term employee benefits

Applicable |:| Not Applicable

Short-term employee benefits include salaries, bonus, subsidies, staff benefits, social security
charges (including medical insurance, work-related injury insurance and maternity insurance, etc.),
housing funds, labor union expenditures and personal education.

During the accounting period in which the employees provide services, the Group’s actual short-
term remuneration is recognized as liabilities and included in the profits or losses of the current year
or recognized as respective assets costs. At the time of actual occurrence, The Group’s employee
benefits are recorded into the profits and losses of the current year or assets associated costs
according to the actual amount. The non-monetary employee benefits are measured at fair value.

Regarding to the health insurance, industrial injury insurance, maternity insurance and other social
insurances, housing fund and labor union expenditure and personnel education that the Group paid
for employees, the Group should recognize corresponding employees benefits payable and include
these expenses in the profits or losses of the current year or recognized as respective assets costs.
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20. Employee benefits (Continued)
2) Post-employment benefits

Applicable |:| Not Applicable
Post-employment benefits are classified into defined contribution plans and defined benefit plans.

All the employees of the Group enjoy and participate in the endowment insurance plans set by local
government, which are called defined contribution plans. The Group takes certain proportion (no
more than upper limit) out of employees’ wages as endowment insurance, and pays to local labor
and social security institutes. Corresponding expenses shall be included in the profits or losses of
the period in which employees provide services or assets associated costs.

The Group provides supplementary pension benefits to certain retired employees, which is
considered as defined benefit plans. The defined benefit plans obligation is calculated semiannually
by independent actuaries using the projected unit credit method. The Group’s defined benefit
plans include the following components: (i) Service cost include current year service cost, past-
service cost and settlement gain or loss. Current year service cost means the increase of the value
of defined benefit plans resulted from the current year service offered by employee. Past-service
cost means the increase or decrease of the value of defined benefit plans resulted from the revision
of the defined benefit plans related to the prior year service offered by employee. (ii) Interest costs
of defined benefit plans payable. (iii) Changes related to the revaluation of defined benefit plans
liabilities.

Unless other accounting standards require or permit to charge the employee benefits into assets
cost, the Group charges (i) and (ii) mentioned above into profits or losses of the current year, and
recognize (iii) mentioned above as other comprehensive income without charging into profits or
losses in later accounting periods.

Part of subsidiaries of the Group provide medical benefits to the retired employees. The costs of
benefits are determined using the same accounting policies with defined benefit plans.

3) Termination benefits

Applicable |:| Not Applicable

Liabilities arising from termination benefits and staff internal retirement plan are recognized after
the edition of the termination agreement or notice to the employee. The Group should recognize
the employee benefits liabilities related to the compensation of the labor relationship termination
and charge to profit or loss at the time when the below two signals which happens earlier: (i)The
Group cannot withdraw from the compensation plan of the labor relationship termination by itself. (ii)
The Group recognizes the costs or expenses of the reorganization involving the compensation of
termination. When the Group offers some compensation plans to encourage the employee to accept
the termination of the labor relationship voluntarily, the termination benefits are recognized based
on the expected number of employee who are willing to take the compensation plans. The specific
terms of the termination and early retirement plan varies according to the occupation, seniority and
location etc.

The Group provides internal retirement benefits to employees who are willing to retire voluntarily.
Internal retirement benefits refer to wages and social security fees the Group pays to employees
who retired earlier voluntarily with the approval of the management. Early retirement benefits are
recognized in the period in which the Group has entered into an agreement with the employee
specifying the terms of redundancy, or after the individual employee has been advised of the
specific terms. The accounting treatments of early retirement benefits are referring to termination
benefits. From the date on which the termination benefit requirements are fulfilled, the Group
recognizes monthly paid salaries and social benefits for these early retirees during the period from
the date of early retirement to the normal retirement date as employee benefits payable and charges
to profit or loss of the current year.
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(CONTINUED)

21. Provisions

Applicable |:| Not Applicable

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation related to a contingency, it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and the amount of the obligation
can be measured reliably.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the settlement date, taking into account factors pertaining to a contingency such as the risks,
uncertainties and time value of money. Where the effect of the time value of money is material, the amount
of the provision is determined by discounting the related future cash outflows. The increase in the provision
due to passage of time is recognized as interest expense.

If all or part of the provision settlements is reimbursed by third parties, when the realization of income

is virtually certain, then the related asset should be recognized. However, the amount of related asset

recognized should not be exceeding the respective provision amount.

At the balance sheet date, the amount of provision should be re-assessed to reflect the best estimation then.
22. Perpetual bonds or other financial instruments

Applicable ] Not Applicable

Perpetual bonds or other financial instruments issued by the Group are equity instruments if, and only if both
conditions (1) and (2) below are met:

(1) The instrument includes no contractual obligation: (i) to deliver cash or another financial asset to
another entity; or (ii) to exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under
conditions that are potentially unfavorable to the issuer.

(2) If the instrument will be or may be settled in the issuer’'s own equity instruments, and it is a non-
derivative that includes no contractual obligation for the issuer to deliver a variable number of its own
equity instruments.

Except for the other financial instruments as stated above which can be classified as equity, all other
financial instruments issued by the Group are classified as financial liabilities.

The interest expenses or dividends of perpetual bonds or other financial instruments classified as equity

instruments are treated as profit distribution of the Group. The repurchase or cancellation of these
instruments is treated as change in equity. The related transaction costs are deducted from equity.
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23. Revenue

Applicable ] Not Applicable

The Group’s revenue is mainly from the following business types:
- Engineering contracting

- Real estate development

- Equipment manufacturing

- Resources development

The Group shall recognize revenue when the Group satisfies a performance obligation in the Contract,
namely, when the customer obtains control over relevant goods or services. Control over the relevant goods
refers to the ability to direct the use of, and obtain substantially all of the remaining benefits from the goods
or services.

Where the contract entered into by the Group and the customer satisfies all of the following conditions at
the same time, the Group will recognize revenue when the customer obtains control over relevant goods or
services:

- The parties to the contract have approved the contract and are committed to perform their respective
obligations;

- The contract can identify each party’s rights and obligation regarding goods or services to be
transferred;

- The contract can identify the payment terms for the goods or services to be transferred;

- The contract has commercial substance (i.e. the risk, timing or amount of the Group’s future cash
flows is expected to change as a result of the contract); and

= It is probable that the Group will recover the consideration to which it will be entitled in exchange for
the goods or services that will be transferred to the customer.

If a contract meets the above criteria at contract inception, the Group shall not reassess those criteria unless
there is an indication of a significant change in facts and circumstances. If a contract does not meet the
above criteria at contract inception, the Group shall continue to assess the contract and make accounting
treatment when the above criteria are met. When a contract does not meet the above criteria, the Group
shall recognize the consideration received as revenue only when the Group has no remaining obligations
to transfer goods or services to the customers and the consideration received from the customer is non-
refundable; otherwise, the Group shall recognize the consideration received from the customer as a liability.
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(CONTINUED)
23. Revenue (Continued)
(1) Determining the transaction price

The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a customer, excluding amounts collected
on behalf of third parties and amounts expected to be refunded to a customer. The Group shall
consider the terms of the contract and its customary business practices to determine the transaction
price. When determining the transaction price, the Group may consider effects of factors such as the
variable consideration, a significant financing component, consideration payable to a customer and
non-cash considerations.

(a) Variable consideration

In case of the existence of variable consideration (performance bonuses and penalties
etc.) in the contract, the Group shall determine the best estimate of variable consideration
based on the expected value or the most probably occurred amount. The transaction price
including variable consideration shall not exceed the amount of the cumulative recognized
revenue which is the most probably to be significantly reversed when elimination of relevant
uncertainty. At each balance sheet date, the Group re-estimate the amount of variable
consideration which should be included in transaction price.

(b) A significant financing component

In case of the existence of a significant financing component in the contract, the Group shall
determine the transaction price on the assumption that the customer has paid the amount
payable by cash when obtaining the control over the goods or services. Differences between
transaction price and contract consideration are amortized using effective interest method
during the contract life. At contract inception, if the period between when the Group transfers
a promised good or service to a customer and when the customer pays for that good or
service will be one year or less, the Group would not consider the significant component in
the contract.

@) Consideration payable to a customer

In case of the existence of consideration payable to a customer in the contract, the Group
shall account for consideration payable to a customer as a reduction of the transaction
price and, therefore, of revenue unless the payment to the customer is in exchange for a
distinct good or service. The Group shall recognize the reduction of revenue at the later of
recognizing relevant revenue and paying (or promising to pay) the consideration.

(d) Non-cash consideration

In case of non-cash consideration paid by the customer, the Group shall determine
transaction price at fair value of non-cash consideration. If the fair value of the non-cash
consideration is not be estimated reasonably, the Group shall measure the consideration
indirectly by reference to the stand-alone selling price of the goods or services promised to
the customer.
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23. Revenue (Continued)
2) Identification of stand-alone performance obligations in the contract

At contract inception, the Group assesses the contract and identify stand-alone performance
obligations. Performance obligations refer to commitment of the Group to transfer a distinct good or
service to the customer.

In the following circumstances, the Group takes the commitments to transfer of a good or services to
the customer as stand-alone performance obligations: (i) commitment to transfer of a distinct good
or services (or a group of goods or services); (i) commitment to transfer of a series of distinct goods
or services with the same substances and the same transfer model.

If the goods or services committed by the Group to the customer meets the following two conditions
at the same time, those can be taken as distinct goods or services: (i) the customer is able to benefit
from the stand-alone good or services or from the good or services together with other available
source, namely, the good or services its own can be distinct; (ii) the commitment to transfer the good
or services is separated from other commitments in the contract, namely, the commitment to transfer
of the good or services is distinct in the contract.

When determining whether the commitment to transfer the good or services can be distinct, the
Group uses judgement and comprehensively considers all facts and circumstances. The following
circumstances generally reflect that the commitment to transfer the good or services is not separated
from other commitments in the contract: (i) the Group provides a significant service of integrating the
goods or services with other goods or services promised in the contract into a bundle of goods or
services that represent the combined output for which the customer has contracted; (ii) the goods or
services significantly modifies or customizes other goods or services promised in the contract; (iii)
the goods or services are highly interrelated with other goods or services promised in the contract.

3) Transaction price allocated to each stand-alone performance obligation

If there are two or more of performance obligations included in the contract, at the contract
inception, the Group allocates the transaction price to each single performance obligation based
on the proportion of stand-alone selling price of goods or services promised in each stand-alone
performance obligation. However, if there is conclusive evidence indicating that the contract
discount or variable consideration is only relative with one or more (not the whole) performance
obligations in the contract, the Group will allocate the contract discount or variable consideration to
relative one or more performance obligation. Stand-alone selling price refers to the price of single
sales of goods or services. If the stand-alone selling price cannot be observed directly, the Group
estimates the stand-alone selling price through comprehensive consideration of all reasonably
acquired relative information and maximum use of observable inputs.
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(CONTINUED)
23. Revenue (Continued)
4) Revenue recognition at satisfying each stand-alone performance obligation

At contract inception, the Group identifies each stand-alone performance obligation included in the
contract, determines whether the performance obligation satisfied during a period of time or at a
point in time, and recognizes revenue when satisfying each stand-alone performance obligation.

(a) Performance obligation satisfied during a period of time

It is a performance obligation satisfied during a period of time if one of the following
conditions is met: (i) the customer obtains and consumes economic benefits at the same time
of the Group’s performance; (ii) the customer is able to control goods or services in progress
during the Group’s performance; (iii) goods or services generated during the Group’s
performance have irreplaceable utilization, and the Group is entitled to collect amounts of
cumulative performance part which have been done up to now.

For performance obligations satisfied during a period of time, the Group will recognize
revenue according to progress of performance within such period, however, other than
circumstances that the progress of performance cannot be reasonably determined. The
Group determines progress of performance using input method, namely, determines the
progress of performance based on the proportion of the accumulative actual cost accounting
for the expected total cost. When the progress of performance cannot be reasonably
determined, the costs incurred are expected to be compensated, the Group recognizes
revenue based on the amount of costs incurred till the progress of performance can be
reasonably determined.

(b) Performance obligation satisfied at a point in time
For performance obligation satisfied not during a period of time but at a point in time, the
Group will recognize revenue at the point in time when the customer obtains control over

relative goods or services.

When judging whether the customer has obtain control over the goods or services, the Group
will consider the following indications.

- The Group has a present right of receivables for the good or services, namely, a
customer is presently obliged to pay for the good or services;

- The Group has transferred the legal title of the good to the customer, namely, the
customer has physically possessed the good;

- The Group has transferred the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the good
to the customer, namely, the customer has obtained the significant risks and rewards
of ownership of the good;

- The customer has accepted the good or services;

- Other indications reflecting that the customer has obtained the control over the good
or services.
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23. Revenue (Continued)
(5) Accounting treatment of specific transaction
(a) Sales attached with quality warranty terms

For sales attached with quality warranty terms, if such quality warranty provides an individual
service other than that the Group have made commitments that the sold goods or services
meet the established criteria, such quality warranty constitutes a single performance
obligation, otherwise, the Group will make accounting treatment for quality warranty liability in
accordance with the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises No. 13 - Contingencies.

(b) A principal or an agent

To determine whether the Group is a principal or an agent, the Group identifies the specified
goods or services to be provided to the customer, and assesses whether it controls those
goods or services before they are transferred to the customer. If the Group can control those
goods or services before they are transferred to the customer, the Group is a principal,
recognizing revenue at the total consideration received or receivable; otherwise, the Group
is an agent, recognizing revenue at the amount of commissions or service charges expected
to be entitled to collection, such amount shall be determined based on net amount of total
consideration received or receivable less amounts payable to other related parties, or on
established amounts or proportions of commissions.

(6) Contract costs

Applicable |:| Not Applicable
(a) Costs of obtaining a contract

The incremental costs of obtaining a contract (i.e. it would not have incurred if the contract
had not been obtained) which are expected to be collected shall be recognize as an asset.
If the amortization period of the asset is less than one year, it will be included in profit or loss
when incurred. Other expenditures incurred to obtain the contract are included in profit or
loss when incurred, except for expenditures clearly borne by the customer.

(b) Costs to fulfil a contract

If the costs incurred in fulfilling a contract are not within the scope of other accounting
standards for business enterprises the new revenue standards as well as satisfies the
following conditions at the same time, the costs will be recognized as an asset: (i) the costs
relate directly to a contract or to an anticipated contract; (ii) the costs enhance resources of
the Group that will be used in satisfying performance obligations in the future; (iii) the costs
are expected to be recovered.
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23. Revenue (Continued)
(6) Contract costs (Continued)
(c) Amortization of the related assets of contract costs

An asset associated with contract costs shall be amortized on the same basis as the
revenue recognition of goods or services associated with the asset, and the amortization is
recognized in the current period.

(d) Impairment of the related assets of contract costs

The Group shall make impairment allowance and recognize an impairment loss in profit
or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of an asset associated with contract costs
recognized exceeds: (i) the remaining amount of consideration that the Group expects to
receive in exchange for the goods or services to which the asset relates; less (ii) the costs
expected to be incurred to transfer the relative goods or services.

The Group shall recognize in profit or loss a reversal of an impairment loss previously
recognized when the impairment conditions have changed. The reversed carrying amount of
the asset at the reversal date shall not exceed the amount that would have been determined
if no impairment loss had been recognized previously.

(7) Contract asset and contract liability

Contract asset refers to the Group’s right to consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer when that right is conditioned on something other than
the passage of time. Please refer to Note V10(2) for accounting policies on impairment of contract
asset. The Group’s right of unconditional (i.e. solely depending on the passage of time) collection of
consideration from the customer shall be separately set out as receivables.

Contract liability refers to the Group’s obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or the amount is due) from the customer.

24. Government grants

Applicable D Not Applicable

Government grants are transferred of monetary assets and non-monetary assets from the government to
the Group at no consideration. A government grant is recognized only when the Group can comply with the
conditions attaching to it and the grant will be received.

If a government grant takes the form of a monetary asset, it is measured at the amount received or
receivable. If a government grant takes the form of a non-monetary asset, it is measured at fair value. If the
fair value cannot be reliably determined, it is measured at a nominal amount. A government grant measured
at a nominal amount is recognized immediately in profit or loss for the period. Government grants received
by the Group related to routine activities are recognized in other income or as reductions in the related costs
and expenses according to the economic nature of business; whereas government grants received by the
Group other than those related to routine activities are recognized in non-operating income.
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V. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

24. Government grants (Continued)
(1) The basis of judgment and accounting treatments of the government grants related to assets

Government grants used for creating long-term assets by purchase, construction or other ways, are
recognized by the Group as the government grants related to assets, mainly including the investment
subsidies for the purchase or construction of new equipment and other production infrastructure.

Government grants related to assets of the Group will be recognized as deferred income and
amortized to profit or loss for the current period on a reasonable and systematic basis over the useful
life of the related assets.

2) The basis of judgment and accounting treatments of the government grants related to income

The government grants related to income are those other than the ones related to assets.
Government grants of the Group related to income mainly include scientific research subsidies. As
they are mainly the compensation for related expenses of the enterprises, such government grants
are recognized as the government grants related to income. The Group classifies government grants
difficult to distinguish as the ones related to income on an entire basis.

If the government grants related to income are compensation for related expenses or losses to be
incurred in subsequent periods, they are recognized as deferred income, and will be recognized in
profit or loss or used to offset with related costs and expenses for the period when related expenses
or losses are recognized. If the government grants related to income are compensation for related
expenses or losses already incurred, they are recognized immediately in profit or loss for the current
period or used to offset related with costs and expenses.

(3) Interest subsidy received under policy loans

If the preferential low-interest loans received by the Group is subject to the fact that the government
finance authority allocates interest subsidy fund to the bank which thereafter issues loans to the
Group at preferential low-interest rates, the Group recognizes such borrowing at an amount actually
received and calculates the borrowing costs based on the principal and the preferential low-interest
rates. If the preferential low-interest loans received by the Group is the interest subsidy fund to the
Group directly from the government finance authority, the Group deducts the interest subsidy from
related borrowing costs.

4) Accounting treatment for repayments of government grants
Repayment of government grants should be applied first against any unamortized deferred income
in respect of the grants. To the extent that repayment exceeds any such deferred income, or when

no deferred income exists, the repayment should be recognized immediately in profit or loss for the
current period.
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V. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

25.

Deferred tax assets/ deferred tax liabilities

Applicable |:| Not Applicable

For temporary differences between the carrying amounts of certain assets or liabilities and their tax base, or
between the nil carrying amount of those items that are not recognized as assets or liabilities and their tax
base that can be determined according to tax laws, deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized using
the balance sheet liability method.

All taxable temporary differences are recognized as related deferred tax liabilities under normal
circumstances. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the deductible losses and tax credits can be utilized.

For deductible losses and tax credits that can be carried forward, deferred tax assets are recognized to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the deductible losses
and tax credits can be utilized. However, for deductible temporary differences associated with the initial
recognition of goodwill and the initial recognition of an asset or liability arising from a transaction (not a
business combination) that affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profits (or deductible losses) at
the time of transaction, no deferred tax asset or liability is recognized. At the balance sheet date, deferred
tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates, according to tax laws, that are expected to apply in
the period in which the asset is realized or the liability is settled.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where the Group is able to control
the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are only recognized to the extent that it is probable that
there will be taxable profits against which to utilize the benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

Except for those current income tax and deferred tax charged to comprehensive income or shareholders’
equity in respect of those transactions or events which have been directly recognized in other
comprehensive income or shareholders’ equity, and deferred tax recognized on business combinations, all
other current income tax and deferred tax items are charged to profit or loss in the current year.

At the balance sheet date, the carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed and reduced if it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available in the future to allow the benefit of deferred
tax assets to be utilized. Such reduction in amount is reversed when it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.

When the Group has a legal right to settle current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis, and deferred tax
assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the
same taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax assets and liabilities
on a net basis or to realize the assets and liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax assets or liabilities are expected to be reversed, deferred tax assets and deferred
tax liabilities are offset and presented on a net basis.
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V. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

26. Lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset
from the lessor to the lessee for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

The Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease at inception or modification date. Such
contract will not be reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the contract are subsequently changed.

(1) The Group as the lessee
(a) Separation of the lease

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or more additional lease or non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component
on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the aggregate
stand-alone price of the non-lease components.

The Group applies practical expedient not to separate non-lease components from lease
component, and instead account for the lease component and any associated non-lease
components as a single lease component for contracts containing leases for buildings and
structures, machinery and equipment, and transportation vehicles.

(b) Right-of-use assets

Except for short-term leases and leases of low value assets, the Group recognizes right-
of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e. the date the underlying asset
provided by the lessor is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost which
includes:

- the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liabilities;

- any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, less any lease
incentives received;

- any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

- an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in dismantling and removing the
underlying assets, restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the lease.

If a re-measurement of the lease liability occurs after the commencement date of the lease,
the book value of the right-of-use assets shall be adjusted accordingly.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the
underlying leased assets at the end of the lease term is depreciated from commencement
date to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-
line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

If the recoverable amount of the right-of-use asset is estimated to be less than its carrying

amount, the carrying amount of the asset will be reduced to its recoverable amount (Note
V18).
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V. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

26. Lease (Continued)
(1) The Group as the lessee (Continued)
(c) Refundable rental deposit

The refundable rental deposits paid by the Group are measured at fair value in accordance
with the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises No.22 — Recognition and
Measurement of Financial Instruments. The differences between the fair value and the
nominal value at the time of initial recognition are considered as an additional lease payments
and included in the cost of the right-of-use assets.

(d) Lease liabilities

Except for short-term leases and leases of low value assets, at the commencement date
of the lease, the Group recognizes and measures the lease liabilities at the present value
of lease payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if
the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

Lease payments refer to the payments made by the Group to the lessor for the lessee’s right
to use the leased asset over the lease term and include:

- fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable;

- variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate;

- the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the
Group;

- payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising the option to terminate;

- amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees.

Variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate are initially measured using the
index or rate at the commencement date. Variable lease payments that are not included in
the measurement of lease liabilities are recognized in profit or loss or the cost of underlying

assets in the period in which they occur.

Interest expenses on the lease liabilities in each period during the lease term are recognized
by the Group by using the fixed periodic rate of interest.
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V. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(CONTINUED)

26. Lease (Continued)

(1) The Group as the lessee (Continued)

(@)

(e)

()

Lease liabilities (Continued)

After the commencement date of the lease, the Group remeasures lease liabilities (and
makes a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets) whenever:

- the lease term has changed or there is a change in the assessment of exercise
of a purchase option, in which case the related lease liabilities is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the date of
reassessment.

- the lease payments change due to changes in expected payment under a guaranteed
residual value or a change in an index or a rate used to determine those payments,
in which cases the related lease liabilities is remeasured by discounting the revised
lease payments using the initial discount rate.

Lease liabilities are presented as “current liabilities” and “non-current liabilities” based on
their liquidity at the balance sheet. The closing balance of non-current lease liabilities due
within 1 year from the balance sheet date is reflected under the line item of “non-current
liabilities due within 1 year”.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

For short-term leases and leases of low-value items to which the recognition exemption is
applied by the Group, right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are not recognized. A short-
term lease refers to a lease that, at the commencement date, has a lease term of 12 months
or less and do not contain a purchase option. A lease of low value asset refers to a single
lease asset, when new, is of low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognized in profit or loss or the cost of underlying assets on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate lease if there is a lease
modification and both of the following apply:

- the modification increases the scope of the lease by adding the right to use one or
more underlying assets; and

- the consideration for the leases increases by an amount commensurate with the
stand-alone price for the increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments to that
stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate lease, the Group remeasures
the lease liabilities based on the lease term of the modified lease by discounting the revised
lease payments using a revised discount rate at the effective date of the modification.
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V. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

26. Lease (Continued)
2) The Group as the lessor
(a) Separation of the lease

Where a contract contains both lease and non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration of the contract in accordance with the provisions of Revenue Standards on
allocation of transaction price. The basis of the allocation is the respective stand-alone selling
price of lease component and non-lease component.

(b) Classification of the lease

The Group classifies the lease into financing lease and operating lease on the start date
of the lease. Financial lease refers to a lease that essentially transfers almost all the risks
and rewards related to the ownership of leased assets. Its ownership may or may not be
transferred eventually. Operational lease refers to the leases other than financial leases.

The Group does not reassess the classification of leases after the start of the lease unless
there is a modification in the lease. The Group shall not reassess the classification of leases
if the estimated useful life and expected residual value of leased assets change or the lessee
defaults.

(c) Rental deposit to be refunded

The lease deposit received by the Group that shall be refunded, are measured at fair value
at the time of initial recognition in accordance with Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises No.22 — Recognition and Measurement of Financial Instruments. The difference
between the fair value and the nominal value at the time of initial recognition shall be
considered as the additional lease payments from the lessee.

(d) Operating leases recorded by the Group as lessor

During the periods within the lease term, the Group recognizes the lease receipts from
operating lease as rental income. The initial direct costs incurred by the Group to obtain the
operating lease are capitalized when they are incurred, and are allocated over the lease
term on the same basis of recognition of rental income, and are included in profit or loss by
stages.

The variable lease receipts obtained by the Group from operating lease but not included in
the lease receivables are included in profit or loss when they incur.
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V. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

26. Lease (Continued)
(3) Sales and leaseback transactions (The Group acts as a seller-lessee)

The Group assesses whether the transfer of the asset in the sales and leaseback transaction
constitutes a sale in accordance with the Revenue Standards. If the transfer of the asset is not a
sale, the Group continues to recognize the transferred assets and should recognize a financial
liability equal to the transfer proceeds. Such financial liability is accounted for applying Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises No.22 — Recognition and Measurement of Financial Instruments.
If the transfer of an asset constitutes a sale, the Group shall measure the right-of-use asset arising
from the leaseback at the proportion of the previous carrying amount of the asset that relates to the
right of use and recognize only the amount of any gain or loss that relates to the rights transferred to
the lessor.

27. Other significant accounting policies and accounting estimates
Applicable  [] Not Applicable
(1) Distribution of profit

The cash dividend of the Company is recognized as a liability upon approval in the annual
shareholders’ meeting.

2) Production safety expenses

The Group accrues for production safety expenses pursuant to the Circular on Printing and Issuing
the Management Measures on the Enterprise Production Safety Expenses Appropriation and
Utilization <Cai Qi [2012] No.16>, issued by the MoF and the State Administration of Work Safety.

Production safety expenses accrued based on the aforesaid regulations shall be recorded in
the costs of related products or expenses in profit or loss for the current year, and provided as a
fund in the special reserve. When the expenditures are utilized, they should be offset against the
special reserve; when the expenditures incurred relate to fixed assets, they shall be recognized as
construction in progress. When the assets are ready for their intended use, a same amount should
be offset against the special reserve and recorded as accumulated depreciation at the same time.
The related fixed asset is not subject to any further depreciation in the subsequent periods.

(3) Segment information

The accounting policies of segment information are listed in Note XV1 (1).
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V. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

27. Other significant accounting policies and accounting estimates (Continued)
4) Discontinued operation

Discontinued operation refers to the separately identifiable components that have been disposed of
or classified as held for sale and meet one of the following conditions:

- The component represents an independent main business or a major business area;

- This component is a part of a related plan that intends to dispose an independent main
business or a separate main operating area;

- This component is a subsidiary acquired exclusively for resale.
(5) Significant accounting judgments and estimates

As operating activities have inherent uncertainties, the Group need to make judgments, estimates
and assumptions upon report items that cannot be accurately calculated in applying the above
accounting policies. These judgments, estimates and assumptions are made based on historical
experiences of the management of the Group, taking other related factors into consideration. The
actual results may be different from the estimates of the Group.

The Group review the above judgments, estimates and assumptions periodically based on going
concern. If the changes of accounting estimates only affect the current year, the influence amount is
recognized in the current year. If the changes of accounting estimates affect both of the current year
and the future period, the influence amount is recognized in the current year and the future period.

(a) Important judgments in applying accounting policies

The Group made some important judgments in applying accounting policies, which have
significant influences on the amount of financial statements.

(i) Perpetual bond

According to the terms of the issue, the issued perpetual bond has no maturity date.
The Company has the right to defer interest payment and the option for redemption of
perpetual bond. The Company has no obligation to deliver cash or another financial
asset to another entity, or to exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with
another entity under conditions that are potentially unfavorable to the issuer, so the
perpetual bond is classified as equity instrument, meeting the qualifying conditions in
Note V22 to be recorded as equity instrument. Details are set out in Note VII45.
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V. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

27. Other significant accounting policies and accounting estimates (Continued)
(5) Significant accounting judgments and estimates (Continued)
(b) The key assumptions and uncertainties used in accounting estimates

As at balance sheet date, the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the next 12 months are as below:

(i) Progress of performance of engineering construction contracts

The Group determines to use input method to measure the progress of income of
engineering services contracts provided by the Group which require to be fulfilled in a
certain period, namely, determines progress of performance based on the proportion
of accumulatively actual cost in estimated total cost. Because of the nature of the
activity undertaken in engineering contracting services, the date at which the contract
activity is entered into and the date when the activity is completed usually fall into
different accounting periods. In the contract progress, the management of the Group
regularly reviews the transaction price and contract modification, contract costs in the
budget prepared for each contract, the progress of the contracts performance and
the accumulatively actual cost. If there are circumstances that there are changes in
the transaction price, the contract costs in the budget or the progress of the contract
performance, estimates are revised. These revisions may result in increasing or
decreasing in estimated revenues or costs and are reflected in consolidated income
statement in the current period.

(i) Credit loss provision

Under expected credit loss method, the Group makes a loss allowance against
amount of expected credit losses during the whole life of the contract assets and
accounts receivable that exclude significant financing component or do not consider
the financing component in the contract within one year arising from transactions
adopting the Revenue Standard. The management’s judgment and estimation are
required in the recognition of the credit loss provision. If re-estimations differ from
the original estimates, such differences will affect the profit and carrying amount of
account receivable and contract assets in the period in which the estimate changes.

As at 30 June 2019, the net book value of the Group’s accounts receivable is
RMB66,567,677,000 (As at 31 December 2018: RMB66,958,297,000), from which
the provision for credit losses of RMB12,991,374,000 has been deducted (As at
31 December 2018: RMB13,410,428,000), refer to Note VIl 4 for details. The net
book value of the Group’s contract assets amounted to RMB74,694,725,000 (As at
31 December 2018: RMB66,719,549,000), from which the provision for impairment
losses of RMB2,865,092,000 (As at 31 December 2018: RMB2,871,540,000) has been
deducted, please refer to Note VII 9(1) for details.
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V. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(CONTINUED)

27. Other significant accounting policies and accounting estimates (Continued)

(5) Significant accounting judgments and estimates (Continued)

(b) The key assumptions and uncertainties used in accounting estimates (Continued)

(iif)

(iv)

Useful lives and residual values of fixed assets

The useful lives of fixed assets are estimated based on historical experience of the
Group with similar assets used in a similar way. If useful lives of the fixed assets
are estimated to be shorter than previously estimated, the Group will increase the
depreciation rates accordingly, or dispose of those assets that are idle or technically
obsolete.

At the end of each year, the Group reviews and makes appropriate adjustment for
expected service life and expected net salvage value of fixed assets.

Impairment loss on assets

The Group assesses at the balance sheet date whether there is any indication that
an asset may be impaired, such as long-term equity investments, fixed assets,
construction in progress, right of use assets, intangible assets with finite life,
investment properties measured at cost model and other long-term assets. The
recoverable amount of the asset or assets group is the higher of the present value of
future cash flow estimated to be derived from the asset and the fair value less costs
to sell.

The Group estimates the recoverable amount on a series of assumptions and
estimations, which include estimated useful life of the asset, a reasonable expectation
of future market, projected future revenue and profit margin and the discount rate.
The Group performs test for impairment for assets with indication of impairment. The
Group estimated the present value of future cash flows with a pre-tax discount rate of
14.12% to 17.33% for the reporting period (31 December 2018: 14.12% to 17.33%).

If management revises the assumption of estimated future revenue and profit margin
in future cash flow calculation of an asset group or set of asset groups, and if the
revised revenue and profit margin is lower than current assumption, the Group would
correspondingly revise the estimated recoverable amount of long-term assets to make
a further judgment on whether additional impairment provision is necessary.

If management revises the assumption of estimated pre-tax discount rate in
future cash flow calculation, and if the revised discount rate is higher than current
assumption, the Group would correspondingly revise the estimated recoverable
amount of long-term assets to make a further judgment on whether additional
impairment provision is necessary.

If the actual revenue and profit margin is higher than management estimation or the
pre-tax discount rate is lower than management estimation, the Group should not
reverse the impairment losses on long-term assets in subsequent accounting periods.
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V. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

27. Other significant accounting policies and accounting estimates (Continued)
(5) Significant accounting judgments and estimates (Continued)
(b) The key assumptions and uncertainties used in accounting estimates (Continued)
(v) Tax

The Company and its subsidiaries are subject to income taxes and other taxes in
numerous jurisdictions in domestic provinces and certain overseas countries. The
ultimate tax effect of many transactions has uncertainty during normal business
activities. The Group shall make significant judgment on current year income tax
and land appreciation tax provisions in different areas and districts. Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts originally recorded, the
differences will impact on the current year income tax provisions in the periods in
which the differences arise.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary differences and tax losses are
recognized as management considers it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences or tax losses can be
utilized. In cases where the estimated amount differs from original estimation, the
difference would influence the recognition of deferred tax assets in the period when
the estimation changes. Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary differences
and tax losses should not be recognized if management considers it is not probable
to utilize the deductible temporary differences or tax losses to deduct taxable income
in future.

(vi) Retirement benefits

The Group establishes liabilities in connection with supplementary benefits paid to
certain retired employees. The amounts of employee benefit expenses and liabilities
are determined using various assumptions and conditions on discount rates, salary
growth rates during retirement, medical expense growth rates, and other factors.
Actual results that differ from the assumptions are recognized immediately and
therefore affect recognized other comprehensive income in the period in which such
differences arise. While management believes that its assumptions are appropriate,
differences in actual experience or changes in assumptions may affect the other
comprehensive income and balance of liabilities related to the supplementary
employee retirement benefit obligations.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

28.

Changes in significant accounting policies and accounting estimates
(1) Changes in significant accounting policies

Applicable |:| Not Applicable

Content and Reason of Changes in Accounting Policies

Approval Remarks

Procedures

Effect of New Standard for Leases on the Group

The Group adopted the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises No.21 —
Leases revised by the MoF in 2018 (hereinafter referred to as the “New Standard
for Leases”) since 1 January 2019 (“date of initial application”). The Group’s

accounting policies of leases (revised) are set out in Note V26.

For a contract that has existed as at the date of initial application, the Group
does not reassess whether it is, or contains a lease. For a contract entered into
or modified at or after the date of initial application, the Group assesses whether
such contract is or contains a lease under the definition of the New Standard for

Leases.

The Group acts as a lessor

The Group does not need any transitional adjustment to its lease as a lessor,
but does need to conduct accounting treatment in accordance with the New
Standard for Leases from the date of initial application. The New Standard for

Leases have no significant impact on the Group’s leases as a lessor.

The Group acts as a lessee

The Group adjusted amount of relevant financial statement items as at the date
of initial application on the basis of the accumulative effects arising from initial
application of the New Standard for Leases, without adjusting the information for

comparative period.

For finance leases existed before the date of initial application, the right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities are respectively measured by the Group based on the
previous carrying amount of assets held under finance leases and finance lease
payable at the date of initial application. For operating leases existed before
the date of initial application, the lease liabilities are measured at the present
value of the remaining lease payment, discounted using the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate (4.35%-5.00%) at the date of initial application. The right-of-use
asset is measured at an amount equal to the lease liabilities, adjusted by the

amount of any prepaid lease payments as necessary.

N/A

None
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V. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

28. Changes in significant accounting policies and accounting estimates (Continued)
(1) Changes in significant accounting policies (Continued)

Content and Reason of Changes in Accounting Policies Approval Remarks
Procedures

For operating leases existed before the date of initial application, the Group can
choose to use the following practical expedients on a lease-by-lease basis:

J operating leases with lease term ends within 12 months of the date of
initial application are accounted for as short-term leases

o initial direct costs are excluded from the measurement of the right-of-
use asset;
o for lease modifications before the date of initial application, the

accounting treatment is made by the Group on the basis of the ultimate
. N/A None
arrangements of such lease modifications.
The above practical expedients of operating leases before the date of the initial
application have no significant effects on the Group’s retained earnings at the
date of initial application.

At the date of initial application, the Group has made the following adjustments
upon application of the New Standard for Leases:

The Group recognized lease liabilities of RMB279,443,000 and right-of-use
assets of RMB333,065,000 as at 1 January 2019.
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V. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(CONTINUED)
28. Changes in significant accounting policies and accounting estimates (Continued)
(1) Changes in significant accounting policies (Continued)

Content and Reason of Changes in Accounting Policies Approval Remarks
Procedures

Based on the above, the effects of the application of the New Standard for
Leases on the relevant balance sheet items as at 1 January 2019 are as follows:

All amounts in RMB’000

31 December
ltems 2018 Adjustments RREUTERRLIE)

Current assets:

Prepayments 20,285,773 (11,156) 20,274,617 N/A None
Non-current assets:
Fixed assets 27,370,040 (131,623) 27,238,417
Right-of-use assets - 333,065 333,065
Long-term prepayments 269,670 (26,737) 242,933
Current liabilities:
Non-current liabilities
due within 1 year 14,772,502 45179 14,817,681
Non-current liabilities:
Lease liabilities - 202,207 202,207
Long-term payables 1,180,520 (83,837) 1,096,683
Reconciliation of lease liabilities recognized at 1 January 2019 to the significant
operating lease commitments in the financial statements for the year 2018:
All amounts in RMB'000
1. Operating lease commitments at 31 December 2018: 203,034
Lease liabilities measured by using incremental borrowing rate at
the date of initial application 173,022 N/A None
Less: recognition exemption - short-term leases 9,473
Lease liabilities recognized under New Standard for Leases that are
related to previous operating leases 163,549
Add: finance lease payable at 31 December 2018 115,894
2. Lease liabilities at 1 January 2019 279,443
Including: lease liabilities due within 1 year 77,236
lease liabilities due over 1 year 202,207
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V. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

28. Changes in significant accounting policies and accounting estimates (Continued)
(1) Changes in significant accounting policies (Continued)

Content and Reason of Changes in Accounting Policies Approval Remarks
Procedures

Effects of new standard for exchange of non-monetary assets on the Group

On 9 May 2019, the revised CASBE No.7 - Exchanges of Non-monetary
Assets(Cai Kuai(2019) No.8, hereinafter referred to as the New Standard for
Exchanges of Non-monetary Assets) was released by the Ministry of Finance
with the effective date of 10 June 2019. For transfer of non-monetary assets
incurred during the period from 1 January 2019 to the date of application of
the Standards, adjustments are made in accordance with the New Standard
for Exchanges of Non-monetary Assets. The New Standard for Exchanges of
Non-monetary Assets clarified: 1) the definition of exchange of non-monetary
assets(revised); 2) the applicable scope of the standard; 3) the time point to
recognize the asset received and to derecognize the asset surrendered and the
accounting treatment of the inconsistency between the time point to recognize
the asset received and to derecognize the asset surrendered; 4) the detailed
accounting treatment of exchange of non-monetary assets; and 5) the new
requirements of disclosures. The adoption of the New Standard for Exchanges
of Non-monetary Assets has no significant effects on the Group’s financial
statements for the current period.

N/A None

Effects of new Standard for debt restructuring on the Group

On 16 May 2019, the revised CASBE No. 72 Debt Restructuring(Cai Kuai(2019)
No.9, hereinafter referred to as the “New Standard for Debt Restructuring”)
with the effective date of 17 June 2019. For debt restructuring incurred
during the period from 1 January 2019 to the date of application of the
Standards, adjustments are made in accordance with the New Standard for
Debt Restructuring. The New Standard for Debt Restructuring clarified: 1)
the definition of debt restructuring (revised); 2) the applicable scope of the
standard; 3) the accounting treatment of debt restructuring; and 4) the simplified
requirements of disclosures. The adoption of the New Standard for Debt
Restructuring has no significant effects on the Group’s financial statements for
the current period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

28.

Changes in significant accounting policies and accounting estimates (Continued)

(1)

)

Changes in significant accounting policies (Continued)

Content and Reason of Changes in Accounting Policies

Effects of the revised format of financial statements on the Group

Since the preparation of the 2019 interim financial statements, the Group
adopted the Notice of the Revised Format of 2079 Financial Statements for
General Business Enterprise (Cai Kuai (2019) No. 6, hereinafter referred to
as the “Cai Kuai No.6 Document”) released by the MoF on 30 April 2019. Cai
Kuai No.6 Document revised the presenting items in the balance sheet, income
statement, cash flow statement and statement of changes in owners’ equity,
divided the line item of “bills and accounts receivable” into “bills receivable”
and “ accounts receivable”, divided the line item of “bills and accounts payable
“into “bills payable” and “accounts payable”, added line items of “receivables
at FVTOCI”, specified or revised the presenting contents of “other receivables”,
“non-current assets due within 1 year”, “other payables”, “deferred income”,
“other equity instruments”, “research and development expenses”, “interest
income” under “financial expenses”, “other income”, “non-operating income”,
“non-operating expenses”, “capital contributions from holders of other equity
instruments”, stipulated the reporting requirements of provision of loss for
items such as financial guarantee contracts, added line item of “income from
derecognition of financial assets at amortised cost” under the line item of
“investment income”, adjusted the presenting location of some accounts in the
income statement and clarified the presenting item of government grants in the
cash flow statement. The Group has restated the above changes in presenting
accounts of comparative period.

Approval Remarks
Procedures
N/A None

Changes in significant accounting estimates

During the reporting period, there were no significant changes in accounting estimate.
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VI. TAXATION

1. Major categories of taxes and respective tax rates

Applicable [] Not Applicable

Category of tax Basis of tax computation Tax rate
Value-added tax (“VAT”) VAT payable(VAT payable is imposed on the taxable 3%, 5%, 6%, 9%,
sales amount multiplied by the tax rate (output-VAT) 10%, 13% and 16%
less deductible input-VAT of current year) (Note)
City maintenance and Payment for VAT and consumption tax 1%, 5% and 7%
construction tax
(*CCT”)
Education surcharges Payment for VAT and consumption tax 3%
Enterprise income tax Taxable income 25%
(“EIT™)
Land appreciation tax Appreciation amount on the transfer of real estate 30% to 60%

Note:  According to the Announcement of the Ministry of Finance, the State Taxation Administration and the General
Administration of Customs on Relevant Policies for Deepening the Value-Added Tax Reform (Announcement of
the Ministry of Finance, the State Taxation Administration and the General Administration of Customs 2019 No.39),
business originally applicable to the VAT rate of 16% and 10% will be applicable to the rate of 13% and 9 %
respectively since 1 May 2019.

(1) The domestic entities subject to different enterprise income tax rates are disclosed in Note VI 2.

2) The foreign business entities subject to non-25% income tax rates

Enterprise
Subject of tax payment income tax rate
MCC Minera Sierra Grande S.A 35%
MCC Luba International (Private) Ltd. 35%
ENFI Zambia Ltd. 35%
China 19 MCC Group Namibia Co., Ltd. 35%
MCC International Venezuelan Ltd. 34%
China ENFI (Namibia) Ltd. 33%
China Metallurgical Construction Zimbabwe Co., Ltd. 33%
China First Metallurgical India (Private) Ltd. 32.45%
CISDI India Ltd. 31%
China ENFI Congo (DRC) Co. Ltd. 30%
MCC Australia Holding Pty Ltd. 30%
MCC Australian Gold Mines Ltd. 30%
MCC Mining (Western Australia) Pty Ltd. 30%
MCC Australia(Brisbane) Pty Ltd. 30%
MCC Shijiu Papua New Guinea Co., Ltd. 30%
China ENFI (Chile) SAS 28%
China First Metallurgical Construction Malaysia Co., Ltd. 24%
MCC Malaysia Overseas Ltd. 24%
MCC Real Estate Malaysia Ltd. 24%
MCC Construction Engineering (Malaysia) Co., Ltd. 24%
Shanghai Baoye (Malaysia) Co., Ltd. 24%
CCEPC Malaysia BHD 24%
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TAXATION (CONTINUED)

Major categories of taxes and respective tax rates (Continued)

The foreign business entities subject to non-25% income tax rates (Continued)

Subject of tax payment

Enterprise
income tax rate

MCC Tian Gong (Malaysia) Engineering Technology Co., Ltd.
MCC East Malaysia Sdn Bhd.

CISDI Engineering(America) Co., Ltd.

MCC-CISDI Engenharia do Brisal Ltd.

MCC Tian Gong (Kuampuchea) Engineering Technology Co., Ltd.
China 22MCC Group Russia Co., Ltd.

MCC Kampuchea Overseas Ltd.

MCC Constructing (Thailand) Ltd.

China Cambodia Development Construction Co., Ltd.

MCC International (Kuampuchea) Ltd.

Shanghai Baoye (Kampuchea) Co., Ltd.

China Nineteen Metallurgical Group Vietnam Co., Ltd.

China Jingye Engineering Corporation Ltd. (Singapore Branch)
MCC Real Estate Singapore Ltd.

MCC Potong Pasir Ltd.

MCC Real Estate Tampines Co., Ltd.

MCC Hong Kong Overseas Ltd.

Nan Hua International Engineering Ltd.

Xiong Hui Investment Ltd.

MCC Real Estate Hong Kong Co., Ltd.

Chinese Metallurgical Engineering Technology (Hong Kong) Co., Ltd.

MCC Holding (Hong Kong) Corporation Limited

MCC-CISDI Engenharia do Brisal Ltd.

MCC Tian Gong (Mongolia) Ltd.

MCC Vietnam Operation Co., Ltd.

MCC Vietnam Engineering Technology Co., Ltd.

China MCC International Economic and Trade (Hong Kong) Co., Ltd.
MCC 20 Indonesia Construction Co., Ltd.

MCC Huaye Duda Mining Co.,Ltd.

MCC Ramu NiCo Ltd.

Ramu NiCo Management (MCC) Ltd.

MCC Tongsin Resources Ltd.

MCC JCL Anak Mining Co., Ltd.

China Metallurgical Group Duda Mining Development Co., Ltd.
China Metallurgical Group Resources Development Co., Ltd.
China Metallurgical New Energy (Pakistan) Ltd.

24%
24%
21%
20%
20%
20%
20%
20%
20%
20%
20%
20%
17%
17%
17%
17%
16.5%
16.5%
16.5%
16.5%
16.5%
16.5%
15%
10%
10%
10%
8.25%
3%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
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VI. TAXATION (CONTINUED)

2. Tax incentive

Applicable [] Not Applicable

(1) Preferential Tax Policies for the Development of the Western Regions

According to the Circular of the MoF, the State Administration of Taxation and the General
Administration of Customs on Issues Concerning Preferential Tax Policies for the Development
of the Western Regions (“Caishui [2001] No.202"), Guoshui [2002] No.47 and Circular on Issues
Concerning Tax Policies for In-depth Implementation of Western Development Strategies (“Caishui
[2011] No.58")(hereinafter referred to as the “circular”), a series of tax policies to further support the
development of the western region are made clear. The above circular had been implemented since
1 January 2011. From 1 January 2011 to 31 December 2020, enterprise income tax may be levied
at a reduced tax rate of 15% on enterprises that are established in the western region engaging
in those industries with tax incentive. According to the regulation, the following subsidiaries of
the Company were approved by the local tax bureau to enjoy preferential tax policies for the
development of the western regions, and they need to submit application for applying relevant tax
incentive every year:

(a) MCC-SFRE Heavy Industry Equipment Co., Ltd. has been levied at a preferential tax rate of
15% from 2006 to 2020.

(b) China Metallurgical Construction Engineering Group Co., Ltd. has been levied at a
preferential tax rate of 15% from 2007 to 2020.

(c) Chongging CISDI Engineering Management Consultants Co., Ltd., CISDI Industrial Furnace
Co., Ltd., CISDI Engineering Co., Ltd., CISDI Equipment Co., Ltd., MCC Xi'an Electric
Furnace Institute Co., Ltd. and ENFI New Energy (Zhongwei) Co., Ltd. have been levied at a
preferential tax rate of 15% from 2011 to 2020.

(d) Chongging CISDI Construction Drawing Examination and Consulting Co., Ltd., and China
Metallurgical Construction Engineering Group Chongqging Steel Structure Co., Ltd. have been
levied at a preferential tax rate of 15% from 2015 to 2020.

(e) CISDI Group Chongqging Information and Technology Co., Ltd. has been levied at a
preferential tax rate of 15% from 2016 to 2020.

() MCC Chongqing Real Estate Development Co., Ltd., China Metallurgical Construction
Engineering (Ningxia) Co., Ltd., CISDI Chongging Environmental Consulting Co., Ltd. and
MCC (Guizhou) Construction Investment Development Co., Ltd. are levied at preferential tax
rate of 15% from 2017 to 2020.

(9) CISDI Technology Research Center Co., Ltd., CISDI Architectural & Municipal Design Co.,

Ltd., Tibet China Metallurgical Construction Co., Ltd. are levied at preferential tax rate of 15%
from 2018 to 2020.
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VI. TAXATION (CONTINUED)

2. Tax incentive (Continued)

2

Preferential Tax Policies for High-Technology Enterprises

The following subsidiaries of the Company have been identified as high-technology enterprises by
the provincial Department of Science and other related government authorities, these enterprises
can enjoy the related tax incentives of high-technology enterprises:

(a) Beijing Sida Jian Mao Science and Technology Development Co., Ltd., Northern Engineering
& Technology Corporation, MCC (Dalian), ACRE Coking & Refractory Engineering Consulting
(Dalian) Corporation, MCC Energy Conservation Environmental Protection Co., Ltd., MCC
Wuhan Research Institute of Metallurgical Construction Co., Ltd., Metallurgical Construction
Research Institute (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd., MCC TianGong Group Corporation Limited, China
MCC 20 Group Co., Ltd., CISDI Shanghai Engineering Technology Co., Ltd., and Hunan
Zhongye Changtian Heavy Industry Technology Co., Ltd. have been levied at a preferential
tax rate of 15% from 2016 to 2019.

(b) Shanghai Baoye Engineering Technology Corp.,Ltd., Central Research Institute of
Building and Construction Co., Ltd., China Jing Ye Engineering Technology Co., Ltd.,
Beijing Metallurgical Nuclear Technology Development Co., Ltd., China MCC 19 Group
(Fangchenggang) Structure of the Equipment Co., Ltd., China MCC 5 Group Co., Ltd.,
China First Metallurgical Group Co., Ltd., Beijing ENFI Environmental Protection Co., Ltd.,
Beijing ENFI Environmental Protection Technology Co., Ltd., MCC Huatian Engineering &
Technology(Nanjing) Co., Ltd., Huatian Engineering & Technology Corporation, MCC, MCC
Communication Construction Group Co., Ltd., WISDRI (Wuhan) Automation Co., Ltd., WISDRI
(Wuhan) Thermotechnical Co., Ltd., WISDRI Engineering & Research Incorporation Limited,
WISDRI City Environment Protection Engineering Co., Ltd., WISDRI (Wuhan) Informatology
Engineering Co., Ltd., Shen Kan Engineering & Technology Corporation, MCC, Central
Research Institute of Building and Construction Co., Ltd., MCC TianGong Tianjin Co., Ltd.,
MCC Huatian Energy Conservation Environmental Protection Research Institute Co., Ltd.,
Ceristar Electric Co., Ltd., CERI Phoenix Industrial Furnace Co., Ltd., CERI Seric Graphic Mdt
Info Tech Ltd., CERI Long Product Co., Ltd., CERI ZeYu Energy Environmental Protection
Engineering Technology Co., Ltd., CERI Eco Technology Co., Ltd., CERI Technology Co.,
Ltd., MCC Capital Engineering & Research Incorporation Limited, CERI Manufacturing
Executive & Managing System Co., Ltd., CERI Hua Yu Architectural Design & Research
Institute Co., Ltd., Zhong Ye Chang Tian International Engineering Co., Ltd., Hunan Changtian
Automation Co., Ltd., Hunan Zhongye Changtian Energy Conservation and Environmental
Protection Technology Co., Ltd., China ENFI Engineering Corporation, China silicon Co., Ltd.,
Panzhihua Tianyu Engineering Detection Co., Ltd., Beijing Chongjian Project Co., Ltd. and
Beijing Tianrun Construction Co., Ltd. have been levied at a preferential tax rate of 15% from
2017 to 2019.
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VI. TAXATION (CONTINUED)

2. Tax incentive (Continued)
2) Preferential Tax Policies for High-Technology Enterprises (Continued)

(c) Hunan Hetian Engineering Project Management Co., Ltd.,, MCC Southern Continuous
Casting Technology Engineering Co., Ltd., Shanghai Baoye Group Co., Ltd., Wuhan
Surveying Geotechnical Research Institute Co., Ltd. of MCC, MCC-SFRE Heavy Industry
Equipment Co., Ltd., Shanghai MCC Environmental Engineering Technology Co., Ltd.,
MCC Baosteel Technology Services Co., Ltd., Shanghai MCC 20 Group Co.,Ltd., Beijing
Yuanda International Project Management Consulting Co., Ltd., Beijing New Vision Building
Construction Technology Co., Ltd., Beijing Metallurgical Equipment Research Design Institute
Co., Ltd., China MCC 19 Group Co., Ltd., MCC 5 Group (Shanghai) Co., Ltd., Wuhan Yi Ye
Steel Structure Co., Ltd., MCC Huatian Nanjing Electrics Engineering & Technology, MCC
(Beijing) Transportation Science and Technology Development Co., Ltd., Beijing Jinwei
Soldering Material Co., Ltd., Ma’anshan MCC 17 Engineering Science & Technology Co.,
Ltd., CERI Colin Environmental Protection Technology Co., Ltd., MCC Shenkan (Qinhuangdao)
Engineering Design Research Institute Limited, Beijing Zhongshe Water Treatment Co.,
Ltd., Hebei Guopeng building materials Co., Ltd., Northwest Engineering and Technology
Corporation, MCC (formerly called: MCC Huatian Baotou Design Research Institute Limited),
MCC Chengdu Reconnaissance and Research Institute Limited, CISDI Electrics Technology
Co., Ltd., WISDRI Wuhan Steel Design & Research Co., Ltd., WISDRI Handan Wupeng
Furnace lining New Material Co., Ltd., MCC Tian Gong (Tianjin) Equipment Manufacturing
Co., Ltd., BERIS Engineering and Research Co., Ltd., Tianjin Xinbin Engineering Technology
Detection Co., Ltd., Fangchenggang Zhongyi Heavy Industry Co., Ltd., Shanghai Baoye
Building Decoration Co., Ltd., China 22MCC Group Xinjiang Equipment Manufacturing Co.,
Ltd., China 22MCC Group Co., Ltd., China 22MCC Group Equipment Manufacturing Co., Ltd.
and CISDI Engineering Co., Ltd. have been levied at a preferential tax rate of 15% from 2018
to 2020.

3) The other major preferential tax benefits

(a) According to the relevant regulation of the preferential tax policies about the projects of
environmental protection in clause 88 of Chapter IV of the Implementing Regulations of the
Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise Income Tax, the Order of the President
of the People’s Republic of China (“[2007] No.63") and the Order of the State Council No.512:

Companies including Liuan Water Corporation MCC, Xiaogan Zhongshe Water Co., Ltd.,
Beijing Zhongshe Water Treatment Co., Ltd., Fuzhou City Changle District MCC Water
Co., Ltd., Wuhan Urban Environmental Water Co., Ltd. and Zhanjiang MCC Environmental
Operation Management Co., Ltd. are qualified for a preferential tax policy that from the
tax year when the enterprise has obtained the first piece of revenue to the third year, the
enterprise income tax is exempted, and in the following 3 years, the enterprise income tax is
half exempted.

Among them, the preferential policy of Liuan Water Corporation MCC has come into effect
in 2014 and the applicable tax rate for the current period was 12.5%. The preferential policy
of Xiaogan Zhongshe Water Co., Ltd., Beijing Zhongshe Water Treatment Co., Ltd. and
Zhanjiang MCC Environmental Operation Management Co., Ltd. have come into effect in
2015 and the applicable tax rate for the current period was 12.5%. Fuzhou City Changle
District MCC Water Co., Ltd. and Wuhan Urban Environmental Water Co., Ltd. have come into
effect in 2016 and the applicable tax rate for the current period was 12.5%.
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VI. TAXATION (CONTINUED)

2. Tax incentive (Continued)

3) The other major preferential tax benefits (Continued)

(b)

According to the Item 3 of Article 27 of the Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Enterprise Income Tax as well as Article 87 of the Implementing Regulations of the Law of the
People’s Republic of China on Enterprise Income Tax, following examination and approval by
the tax authorities, Ejina Ken ENFI New Energy Limited has enjoyed the favorable corporate
income tax policy of “3-year tax exemption followed by 3-year tax 50%-reduction” since 2017.
Therefore, the applicable tax rate for this period was 0%.

According to the MoF and the State Administration of Taxation on issues concerning VAT,
Business Tax and Enterprise Income Tax Policies for the Promotion of the Development
of the Energy-Conservation Service Industry (“Caishui [2010] No.110"), qualified energy
conservation service companies implementing energy management contract projects that
meet the relevant provisions of the Enterprise Income Tax Law shall be exempted from
enterprise income tax from the first tax year when it obtains the first piece of revenue from
their production and business operation to the third year and followed by 50% reduction of
income tax rate of 25% from the fourth year to the sixth year.

Hunan Zhongye Changtian Energy Conservation and Environmental Protection Technology
Co., Ltd. and MCC Energy Conservation Environmental Protection Co., Ltd. have a number of
energy management contract projects. Each project is subject to income tax independently,
and shall be exempted from enterprise income tax from the first tax year when it obtains
the first piece of revenue from its production and business operation to the third year and
followed by 50% reduction of income tax rate of 25% from the fourth year to the sixth year.

According to the Notice of the MoF and State Administration of Taxation on /ssues Relevant
to Implementation of the List of Public Infrastructure Projects Enjoying Enterprise Income Tax
Preferences (“Caishui [2008] No.46"), if enterprises have engaged in public infrastructure
projects subject to conditions and technology standards provided in the List of Public
Infrastructure Projects Enjoying Enterprise Income Tax Preferences with approval since 1
January 2008, their income from investments and operations can be exempted from tax in the
first, second and third year and halved in the fourth, fifth and sixth year from the taxable year
of earing the first operating income.

MCC Huakang (Zhenjiang) New Energy Co., Ltd., as qualified for aforementioned policies,
enjoy 0% applicable tax rate for the year.

According to Cai Shui [2009] No.166 “Notice of Ministry of Finance, State Administration of
Taxation and National Development and Reform Commission on Publication of Catalogue
for Enterprise Income Tax Preferences for Environmental Protection and Energy and Water
Conservation Enterprises (Trial)“, where the enterprises obtain revenue from projects
satisfying “Catalogue for Enterprise Income Tax Preferences for Environmental Protection and
Energy and Water Conservation Enterprises”, they are entitled to the enterprise income tax
preference of “3-year tax exemption followed by 3-year tax 50%-reduction”.

Wuxi Xidong Environmental Energy Co., Ltd. is applicable to the above provisions and
subject to tax rate of 0.00% for the current period.
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VL.

TAXATION (CONTINUED)

2.

Tax incentive (Continued)

(3)

The other major preferential tax benefits (Continued)

®

According to the article Il of the Notice of the Ministry of Finance and the State Administration
of Taxation on Implementation of Inclusive Tax Exemption and Reduction Policies for Small
Low-Profit Enterprises (“Cai Shui [2019] No.13”): for small low-profit enterprises, the portion
of taxable income not exceeding RMB1 million is subject to 25% reduction and applies
enterprise income tax rate of 20%; the portion exceeding RMB1 million but not exceeding
RMB 3 million is subject to reduction of 50% and applies enterprise income tax rate of 20%.

In 2019, Industrial Construction Magazine Agency, Beijing Anhui Property Management
Co., Ltd., Beijing Jingqiu Energy saving Technology Development Co., Beijing Xinpeng
Energy Technology Co., Ltd., Beijing Xinguang Technology Co., Ltd., China Metallurgical
Construction Engineering Group Bengbu Construction Co., Ltd., Steel Magazine (Hubei) Co.,
Ltd., Chongging MCC Property Management Co., Ltd.,, MCC Refractory Materials Testing
Center, Shanghai Zhongye Baosteel Technology Occupation Skill Training Center, Dalian
China Metallurgical jiaonai dragon Instrument Co., Ltd., Chongging Tuoye Construction
Engineering Quality Inspection Co., Ltd., North Chixiao Modular House (Langfang) Co., Ltd.,
Shanghai Baosteel MCC 5 Dedusting Equipment Co.,Ltd., MCC 5 Group Shanghai Yuanzhu
New Building Materials Co.,Ltd., China MCC International Economic and Trade (Beijing)
Co., Ltd., MCC Real Estate Service Co., Ltd., Beijing MCC Capital Engineering & Research
Incorporation Limited, CERI Seric Graphic Mdt Info Tech Ltd., Shanghai ZhiDa Electronic Co.,
Ltd., Shanghai Baoding Environmental Engineering Technology Service Co., Ltd., Shanghai
Baoshan District Jiangyuan Training Center, Qingdao MCC Minggqin Real Estate Co., Ltd.,
Baotou Beilei Supervision Consulting Co., Ltd., Shanghai Yuanzheng Science and Technology
Co., Ltd., Hunan Changyuan Property Management Co., Ltd., Kunshan MCC Baosteel
Welding Material Co., Ltd., Inspection and Certification Co., Ltd. MCC, ACRE Coking &
Refractory Engineering Consulting (Shanghai) Corporation, Anshan Huatai CDQ Engineering
and Technology Co.,Ltd., WISDRI (Hunan) Engineering and Technology Co., Ltd., Xi'an
China Metallurgical new material Co., Ltd., Inner Mongolia Construction Investment Co., Ltd.,
MCC Rail Transit Co., Ltd., MCC Zhongyuan Construction Investment Co., Ltd. and Beijing
ENFI Property Management Co., Ltd. satisfy the criteria of small and low-profit enterprise
and are entitle to the tax preference, i.e. the portion of taxable income not exceeding RMB1
million is subject to 25% reduction and applies enterprise income tax rate of 20%; the portion
exceeding RMB1 million but not exceeding RMB3 million is subject to reduction of 50% and
applies enterprise income tax rate of 20%.

According to the circular Guoshui [2009]185 On the Issue of Enterprise Income
Tax Preferential Management of the Comprehensive Utilization of Resources and
Caishui[2008]117 Enterprise Income Tax Directory of Comprehensive Utilization of Resources
(2008 Edition), from 1 January 2008, enterprises use these resources as raw material for
the production of non-restricted and non-prohibited products which are in line with national
and industry standard products, their income is reduced to 90% included in the total taxable
revenue for that year.

China City Environment Protection Engineering Limited Company enjoyed the aforesaid
preferential policy in 2019.
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VI. TAXATION (CONTINUED)

2. Tax incentive (Continued)
3) The other major preferential tax benefits (Continued)
(h) According to the relevant regulation of Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise

Income Tax, the Implementing Regulations of the Law of the People’s Republic of China
on Enterprise Income Tax (“Order of the State Council No.512") and Circular on Issues
Concerning the Enterprise Income Tax Incentives on Enterprises That Recruit the Disabled
(“Caishui [2009] No.70”), enterprise could deduct all the salary payment for the disabled
employees and again claim additional 100% deduction of the aforesaid salary payment.

MCC Baosteel Technology Services Co., Ltd., Shanghai Baohong Industry and Trade Co.,
Ltd., China MCC 19 Group Co., Ltd., China MCC 19 Group Property Management Service
Co., Ltd., MCC TianGong Tianjin Co., Ltd. and China MCC 20 Group Co., Ltd. could deduct
all the salary payment for the disabled employees and again claim additional 100% deduction
of the aforesaid salary payment in 2019.

(i) According to the regulations of the Notice of the Ministry of Finance, the State Administration
of Taxation and the Ministry of Science and Technology on Improving the Policies for the
Weighted Pre-tax Deduction of Research and Development Expenses (“CaiShui [2018]
No0.99"), for the R&D expenses that are actually incurred by an enterprise and have been
included in the current loss and profit while intangible assets are not created, another 75% of
the amount of R&D expenses actually incurred in this year shall be deducted from the amount
of taxable income in addition to the deduction as prescribed to the extent of the amount
actually incurred for the period from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2020. The following
enterprises of the Group shall enjoy this preferential treatment upon the approval of the local
tax bureau.

BERIS Engineering and Research Co., Ltd., MCC Baosteel Technology Services Co., Ltd.,
China MCC 20 Group Co., Ltd., China MCC 19 Group Co., Ltd., China MCC 19 Group
(Fangchenggang) Structure of the Equipment Co., Ltd., China MCC 19 Group of Chengdu
Construction Co., Ltd., Panzhihua Tianyu Engineering Detection Co., Ltd., MCC TianGong
Tianjin Co., Ltd., MCC TianGong Group Corporation Limited, China MCC 5 Group Co., Ltd.,
MCC 5 Group (Shanghai) Co., Ltd., China First Metallurgical Group Co., Ltd., Wuhan Yi
Ye Steel Structure Co., Ltd., MCC Wuhan Research Institute of Metallurgical Construction
Co., Ltd., Huatian Engineering & Technology Corporation, MCC, MCC Huatian Engineering
& Technology(Nanjing) Co., Ltd., WISDRI (Wuhan) Automation Co., Ltd., WISDRI(Wuhan)
Informatology Engineering Co., Ltd., WISDRI Engineering&Research Incorporation Limited,
WISDRI (Wuhan) Wei Shi Thermotechnical Co., Ltd., WISDRI City Environment Protection
Engineering Co., Ltd., MCC Southern Continuous Casting Technology Engineering Co.,
Ltd., CISDI Shanghai Engineering Technology Co., Ltd., CISDI Engineering Co., Ltd., CISDI
Industrial Furnace Co., Ltd., CISDI Group Chongging Information and Technology Co., Ltd.,
CISDI Electrics Technology Co., Ltd., MCC Xi’an Electric Furnace Institute Co., Ltd., MCC-
SFRE Heavy Industry Equipment Co., Ltd., Zhong Ye Chang Tian International Engineering
Co., Ltd., Hunan Changtian Automation Co., Ltd., Hunan Zhongye Changtian Heavy Industry
Technology Co., Ltd. Hunan Zhongye Changtian Energy Conservation and Environmental
Protection Technology Co., Ltd., MCC Tian Gong (Tianjin) Equipment Manufacturing Co.,
Ltd., Kunshan MCC Baosteel Welding Material Co., Ltd., Shanghai MCC Environmental
Engineering Technology Co., Ltd., Hunan Hetian Engineering Project Management Co., Ltd.,
MCC Chengdu Reconnaissance and Research Institute Limited, Tianjin Xinbin Engineering
Technology Detection Co., Ltd., Shanghai MCC 20 Group Co., Ltd., Shanghai Baoye Group
Co., Ltd., Northwest Engineering and Technology Corporation, MCC (formerly called:
MCC Huatian Baotou Design Research Institute Limited), Shanghai Baoye Metallurgical
Engineering Co. Ltd., Shanghai Baoye Building Decoration Co., Ltd., Fangchenggang
Zhongyi Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. and WISDRI Urban Design and Construction Co., Ltd.
enjoy the preferential tax policy of additionally calculation and deduction of research and
development expenditures in 2019.
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TAXATION (CONTINUED)

2.

Tax incentive (Continued)

(3)

The other major preferential tax benefits (Continued)

o)

(k)

)

(m)

According to “Caishui[2015] No.78”, The MoF and the State Administration of Taxation on
issuing the Notice of the Comprehensive Utilization of Resources “Products and Services” of
Value Added Tax Preferential Directory, enterprises provide products and labor service using
the above resources can enjoy VAT refund policy.

Xiaogan Zhongshe Water Co., Ltd., Beijing Zhongshe Water Treatment Co., Ltd., Lanzhou
Zhongtou Water Corporation, Changzhou ENFI Water Co., Ltd., Laian Huatian Water
Corporation MCC, Shouguang Huatian Water Corporation MCC, Shouguang North Water
Corporation MCC, Chuzhou Huatian Water Corporation MCC, Tianchang Huatian Water
Corporation MCC, Huangshi Water Corporation MCC, Liuan Water Corporation MCC,
Ma’anshan Water Corporation MCC, Wuhan Urban Environmental Water Co., Ltd., Zhejiang
Chunnan Sewage Treatment Co., Ltd., Fuzhou City Changle District MCC Water Co., Ltd.,
MCC Xinglong Water Co., Ltd., China City Environment Protection Engineering Limited
Company, Wenxian Zhongtou Water Supply Co., Ltd., Qinhuangdao Funing District MCC
Water Co., Ltd., Wuxi Xidong Environmental Protection Energy Co., Ltd., Xiangyang ENFI
Environmental Protection Energy Co., Ltd., Dingyuan Water Corporation MCC, MCC
Xuancheng Water Co., Ltd., and MCC Qinhuangdao Water Co., Ltd. enjoyed the policy of “levy
and refund” of value-added tax refund of 70% for the sewage treatment services since 1 July
2015.

According to the MoF and the State Administration of Taxation on issues concerning VAT,
Business Tax and Enterprise Income Tax Policies for the Promotion of the Development of the
Energy-Conservation Service Industry (“Caishui [2010] No.110”), the taxable income earned
by qualified energy conservation service companies for implementing energy management
contract projects shall be temporarily exempted from VAT.

Hunan Zhongye Changtian Energy Conservation and Environmental Protection Technology
Co., Ltd. and MCC Energy Conservation Environmental Protection Co., Ltd. have a number of
energy management contract projects, which are exempted from VAT.

According to the Circular of the MoF, the State Administration of Taxation and the General
Administration of Customs on Issues Concerning Tax Policies for Encouraging the
Development of Software and Integrated Circuit Industries (“Caishui [2000] No.25"), MCC
ACRE Automation Co., Ltd. enjoyed the policy of “levy and refund” of value-added tax of
selling software products since 2010, with the refund rate of 10%.

According to the MoF and the State Administration of Taxation on issuing Concerning Value-
added Tax Policy on Software Products (“Caishui [2011] No.100"), the refund-upon-collection
policy shall be applied to the VAT part in excess of 3% of their actual tax burden of selling
software products.

CISDI Group Chongging Information and Technology Co., Ltd. enjoyed the policy of “levy and
refund” of value-added tax of selling software products from 2015 to 2019, with the refund
rate of 10%. CISDI Electrics Technology Co., Ltd. enjoyed the policy of “levy and refund” of
value-added tax of selling software products for long-term, with the refund rate of 10%.

Metallurgical Corporation of China Ltd.



Financial Statements and Review Report

VI. TAXATION (CONTINUED)

2. Tax incentive (Continued)
3) The other major preferential tax benefits (Continued)

(n) According to “Caishui [2013] No0.37” issued by the State Administration of Taxation,
the technology development business income of Beijing ENFI Environmental Protection
Technology Co., Ltd. was exempted from value-added tax in 2019. The income derived from
the operations of technology transfers of Zhong Ye Chang Tian International Engineering
Co., Ltd. was exempted from the value-added tax in 2019. The income derived from the
operations of technology transfers and the technology development business of Huatian
Engineering & Technology Corporation, MCC, and MCC Xi’an Electric Furnace Institute Co.,
Ltd. were exempted from value-added tax in 2019.

(0) According to the Circular on Preferential Policies on Tax Rate for Public Rental Housing
(“Caishui [2015] N0.139”) issued by the MoF and the State Administration of Taxation, Hebei
MCC Mingrun Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. was exempted from land use tax on the
enterprise’s public rental housing in 2019.

(p) According to the “Caishui [2010] No.42” issued by the MoF and the State Administration of
Taxation, Wuhu MCC Real Estate Group Co., Ltd. enjoyed the exemption from land use tax
(the annual amounts of land-use tax per square meter is RMB12-15 before), and the property
transfer book was exempted from stamp duty in 2019. China Metallurgical Construction
(Shenyang) Co., Ltd. enjoyed the exemption from land use tax in 2019.

(q) According to the “Caishui [2013] No.101" Tax Policy on Reconstruction of Shanty Towns
issued by the MoF and the State Administration of Taxation, China Metallurgical Construction
(Shenyang) Co., Ltd. enjoyed the exemption from local education surcharge and stamp duty
in 2019.

(r) According to the “Caishui [2008] No.48” issued by the MoF and the State Administration of
Taxation, if the enterprise purchases and actually uses the specially-purposed equipment for
environment protection, energy and water saving and safety production included in the list
since 1 January 2018, 10% of the invested amounts for the specially-purposed equipment
can be used to deduct the taxable amount; if it is not enough to deduct the enterprise’s
taxable amount, it can be carried forward to the subsequent years, but the period shall not
exceed 5 taxpaying years.

Xiangyang ENFI Environment Protection and Energy Co., Ltd. enjoyed the above preferential
policies from 2014 to 2019.

(s) According to the Tax Policies on Education (“Cai Shui [2004] No.39") issued by the MoF and
the State Administration of Taxation, MCC Capital Real Estate (Yan tai) Co., Ltd. enjoyed
preferential policies of exemption of deed tax, cultivated land occupancy tax, land use tax
and property tax for the land used by the school in 2019.

(1) According to the article VII of Announcement of the Ministry of Finance, the State Taxation
Administration and the General Administration of Customs on Relevant Policies for Deepening
the Value-Added Tax Reform [2019] No.39: from 1 April 2019 to 31 December 2021, the tax
payers of production and living service industry enjoys additional 10% deduction on the basis
of the deductible input VAT for the current period. Beijing ENFI Property Management Co.,
Ltd., Industrial Construction Magazine Agency., CISDI Group Chongging Information and
Technology Co., Ltd., and Qingdao Oriental Hotel Management Co., Ltd. MCC applicable to
this policy since 1 April 2019.
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VI. TAXATION (CONTINUED)

2. Tax incentive (Continued)
3) The other major preferential tax benefits (Continued)
(u) According to the Notice No.83 TT-BTC Announcement issued by Ministry of Finance of
Vietnam in 2016, the qualified science-and-technology enterprise enjoys enterprise income

tax exemption for 4 years or 50% reduction for 9 years. MCC Vietnam Operation Co., Ltd.
enjoys enterprise income tax exemption in 2019.

VIl. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Cash and bank balances

Applicable [] Not Applicable

All amounts in RMB'000

Items RVNILER LR 31 December 2018
Cash 21,163 18,910
Bank deposits 24,634,420 31,202,801
Other cash and bank balances 13,729,997 13,255,591
Total 38,385,580 44,477,302

Including: Total amount of deposits abroad 2,441,340 2,969,905

As at 30 June 2019, restricted cash and bank balances were RMB11,968,048,000 (as at 31 December 2018:
RMB11,326,300,000) (in Note VII 69), which mainly including deposits for issuing acceptance bills and
statutory deposit reserve at the central bank, etc.

2. Financial assets held for trading
Applicable [] Not Applicable
All amounts in RMB 000

RIS 31 December 2018

Items

Financial assets at FVTPL 1,124,150
Including: Currency funds 1,123,211

Equity instruments held for sale 939
Total 1,124,150

Applicable [] Not Applicable

The fair values of held-for-sale financial assets are based on their prices of publicly traded market on the
last trading day of the reporting period.
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VII. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

3. Bills receivable
(1) Bills receivable analyzed by category

All amounts in RMB'000

30 June 2019 31 December 2018
Provisions for Carrying Provisions for Carrying
ltems Book value credit losses amount Book value  credit losses amount

Bank acceptance bills 7,647,740 7,647,740 9,961,284 - 9,961,284
Commercial acceptance
bills 7,605,320 16,221 7,589,099 8,420,268 17,920 8,402,348

Total 15,253,060 16,221 15,236,839 18,381,652 17,920 18,363,632

2) Pledged bills receivable at 30 June 2019

Applicable |:| Not Applicable

All amounts in RMB'000

Items 30 June 2019

Bank acceptance bills
Commercial acceptance bills

Total 2,751,279

3) Bills receivable endorsed to other parties or discounted but not yet due at 30 June 2019

Applicable ] Not Applicable

As at 30 June 2019, bills receivable endorsed to other parties or discounted with recourse but not
yet due was RMB3,151,474,000 (as at 31 December 2018: RMB6,915,549,000), among which the
amount derecognized was RMB2,632,812,000 (as at 31 December 2018: RMB6,518,906,000). The
Group is of the view that the risk of not honoring the bills by the issuers upon maturity is remote
if the issuers have good credibility, substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
above endorsed bills receivable and discounted bills receivable have been transferred, the Group
derecognized these bills receivable from the financial statements. The amount not derecognized
was RMB518,662,000 (as at 31 December 2018: RMB396,643,000). The Group is of the view that the
Group retains nearly all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the above endorsed and discounted
bills receivable, including default risk, the Group didn’t derecognize these bills receivable from the
financial statements.

(4) As at 30 June 2019, the balance of impairment provision for the Group’s bills receivable is
RMB16,221,000 (as at 31 December 2018: RMB17,920,000). The provision for such credit losses
belong to the first stage, where the credit risk of the relevant assets has not increased significantly
since the initial recognition, and the provision for credit losses is confirmed based on the amount of
expected credit losses in the next 12 months. The reversed credit losses were RMB1,699,000 in the
current period.

Applicable [] Not Applicable

(5) Bills receivable with title restriction as at 30 June 2019 are set out in Note VII 69.
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VIl. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. Accounts receivable
(1) Aging analysis of accounts receivable was as follows:

All amounts in RMB'000

Aging RN 31 December 2018
Within 1 year 44,554,580 43,027,773
1to 2 years 11,236,623 13,172,158
2 to 3 years 6,399,372 6,222,088
3to 4 years 4,843,802 5,325,406
4 to 5 years 4,231,323 4,525,459
Over 5 years 8,293,351 8,095,841
Total book value 79,559,051 80,368,725
Less: provisions for credit losses 12,991,374 13,410,428
Carrying amount 66,567,677 66,958,297

Settlement of trade receivables generated through engineering and construction services is made in
accordance with terms specified in the contracts governing the relevant transactions.

2) Disclosed by method of determining provision for credit losses

Applicable [] Not Applicable

All amounts in RMB’'000

30 June 2019 31 December 2018
Book value Provision for credit losses Carrying Book value Provision for credit losses Carrying
Category Amount Ratio Amount Ratio amount Amount Ratio Amount Ratio amount

(% (%) (%) (%)

Accounts receivable for which provision for
credit losses is individually assessed (a/ 28,440,216 35.75 6,245,018 2196 22,195,198 EPRRIRWIR 347 6,383,621 237 23,489,632
Accounts receivable for which provision for
credit losses s collectively assessed on a
partfolio basis (4 51,118,835 64.25 6,746,356 1320 44372479 EEIREIP 6283 7,026,807 1392 43468665

Total 79,559,051 /12,001,374 /66,567,677 RGN /18410428 /66958207
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VIl. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. Accounts receivable (Continued)
(2) Disclosed by method of determining provision for credit losses (Continued)

(a) Accounts receivable for which provision for credit losses is individually assessed at the end
of the period.

Applicable |:| Not Applicable

All amounts in RMB'000

Accounts 30 June 2019
receivable Provision for Proportion of
(per entity) Book value credit losses provision Reasons
(%)
Party 1 3,420,818 1,330,634 The Group considered the
Party 2 1,653,083 - reasonable and supported
Party 3 1,274,051 509,620 information related to other
Party 4 578,767 578,767 party (including forward-looking
Party 5 535,960 326,802 information), then evaluated the
Others 20,977,537 3,499,195 anticipated credit losses and made

provision for credit losses.

Total 28,440,216 6,245,018

(b) Accounts receivable for which provision for credit losses is collectively assessed on a
portfolio basis at the end of the period

Applicable ] Not Applicable
All amounts in RMB 000

30 June 2019

Accounts Provision for Proportion of

Aging receivable credit losses provision

(%)
Within 1 year 33,006,614 671,558
1to 2 years 7,991,266 856,622
2 to 3 years 4,097,329 802,175
3to 4 years 1,840,161 844,731
4 to 5 years 1,270,594 898,012
Over 5 years 2,912,871 2,673,258

Total 51,118,835 6,746,356

Applicable ] Not Applicable
The Group considers the aging factor and groups accounts receivable accordingly. The

Group determines the expected credit loss and provision for credit losses based on the
historical experience of credit losses.
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VIl. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. Accounts receivable (Continued)
3) Provision for credit losses of accounts receivable

All amounts in RMB'000

Phase 2 Phase 3
Lifetime expected Lifetime expected
credit losses credit losses
Item (unimpaired) (impaired) Total
Provision for credit losses at 31
December 2018 7,550,929 5,859,499 13,410,428
Provision for the current period 13,461 7,288 20,749
Reversal for the current period (52,872) (22,637) (75,509)
Other changes (7,417) (356,877) (364,294)
Provision for credit losses at 30 June
2019 7,504,101 5,487,273 12,991,374
Book value at 30 June 2019 69,333,384 10,225,667 79,559,051

4) The top 5 largest accounts receivable collected by arrears at 30 June 2019
Applicable  [] Not Applicable
All amounts in RMB’000

As a percentage

Relationship with of total accounts

Name of entity the Group 30 June 2019 receivable

(%)
Party 1 Third Party 3,420,818 4.30
Party 2 Third Party 1,924,412 2.42
Party 3 Third Party 1,653,083 2.08
Party 4 Third Party 1,282,766 1.61
Party 5 Third Party 1,274,051 1.60

Tota 7 T 1201

(5) As at 30 June 2019, the Group’s assets and liabilities recognized for transfer of accounts receivable
and continuing involvement amounted to RMB14,600,000 (31 December 2018: RMB14,600,000) and
presented in other non-current assets and other non-current liabilities. For details, see Note VIl 24
and Note VIl 43.

Applicable [] Not Applicable

(6) Accounts receivable with title restriction as at 30 June 2019 are set out in Note VII 69.
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VIl. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

5.

Receivables at FVTOCI

Applicable [] Not Applicable

All amounts in RMB'000

Item RN OM M 31 December 2018

Bank acceptance bills 2,634 2,072,511

2,072,511

Total

Applicable |:| Not Applicable

(1) During the course of management of liquidity, part of the Group’s subsidiaries discount or endorse
part of the bank acceptance bills receivable before they are due and derecognize such discounted
or endorsed bank acceptance bills when substantially all the risks and rewards are transferred to the
counterparty. When managing the bank acceptance bills receivable, part of the Group’s subsidiaries
adopt the business model of which the objective is to both collecting contractual cash flows and
selling the financial assets. Therefore, such bank acceptance bills receivable are subsequently
measured at fair value through OCI. For method of determining the fair value, refer to Note XI3.

For the current period, the changes in fair value of such bank acceptance bills resulted in decrease
of RMB48,242,000 in other comprehensive income (Note VII166).

(2) The Group recognizes impairment provision for receivables at FVTOCI on the basis of the expected
credit loss. The closing balance of receivables at FVTOCI are attributable to phase |, i.e. the credit
risk of relevant assets hasn’t increased significantly since initial recognition and recognizes the
provision for credit losses at an amount equal to future 12-month expected credit loss. For the
current period, the Group didn’t make provision for credit impairment loss of the receivables at
FVTOCI.

Applicable ] Not Applicable

(3) As at 30 June 2019, the Group has receivable bank acceptance bills that has been discounted
or endorsed with recourse right but undue amounting to RMB8,532,390,000 (Amounting to
RMB5,565,592,000 as at 31 December 2018). As the acceptor is of good reputation, there is minor
risk that the acceptor can’t honor the receivables at FVTOCI at the maturity date. The Group believes
that the risks and rewards of ownership of such discounted or endorsed receivables at FVTOCI have
been transferred and derecognizes such receivables at FVTOCI.

(4) Receivables at FVTOCI with title restriction as at 30 June 2019 are set out in Note VII169.
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VIl. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

6. Prepayments
(1) Aging analysis of prepayments
Applicable ] Not Applicable

All amounts in RMB’000

30 June 2019 31 December 2018
As a As a
percentage of percentage of
total total
Aging Amount prepayments Amount prepayments
(%) (%)
Within 1 year 17,706,982 14,971,889 73.80
1to 2 years 1,831,109 E35 58775 6.68
2 to 3 years 1,017,752 1,317,531 6.50

Over 3 years 2,629,553 2,640,578 13.02

Total 23,185,396 100 20,285,773 100.00

As at 30 June 2019, prepayments aged over one year were RMB5,478,414,000 (As at 31 December
2018: RMB5,313,884,000), mainly including prepaid land lease payments and prepaid construction
costs to sub-contractors.

2) The five largest prepayments at 30 June 2019
Applicable D Not Applicable

All amounts in RMB’'000

As a
Relationship with percentage of
Name of entity the Group 30 June 2019 total prepayments

(%)

Party 1 Third Party 690,040
Party 2 Third Party 659,491
Party 3 Third Party 579,993
Party 4 Third Party 380,684
Party 5 Third Party 361,292

Total v 2,671,500
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VIl. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

7. Other receivables

(1)

)

3)

Other receivables analyzed by category

Items

All amounts in RMB'000

RVNILER LR 31 December 2018

Interests receivable 4,184 5,579
Dividends receivable 134,366 150,105
Other receivables 62,075,143 56,229,558
Total 62,213,693 56,385,242

Interests receivable

Applicable ] Not Applicable

Items

All amounts in RMB’000

<Nl 31 December 2018

Interests on term deposits

5,579

Total

5,579

Dividends receivable

(a) Presentation of dividends receivable
Applicable ] Not Applicable
All amounts in RMB’000
The name of investee RN 31 December 2018
Hebei Steel Luan County Sijiaying Iron Ore Co.,
Ltd. 104,392
Tianjin Tuanbo Urban Development Co., Ltd. 18,000
Tianjin MCC Heyuan Real Estate Co., Ltd. 17,097
Shanghai Zhihu Real Estate Co., Ltd. 8,392
Wuhan Zhonghe Engineering Technique Co.,
Ltd. 2,224
Wuhan Iron & Steel Group Finance Co., Ltd. =
Total 134,366 150,105
(b) As at 30 June 2019, dividends receivable aged over one year were RMB36,697,000 (31

December 2018: RMB36,697,000).
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VIl. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

7.

Other receivables (Continued)

4)

Other receivables

(a)

(b)

Aging analysis of other receivables

Aging

Within 1 year
11to 2 years
2 to 3 years
3to 4 years
4 to 5 years
Over 5 years

Total book value

Less: provisions for credit losses

Carrying amount

All amounts in RMB’000

IR 31 December 2018

45,225,628

9,646,917
4,917,650
3,652,887
2,093,933
2,130,025

40,639,613
8,401,696
3,662,883
4,714,761
1,808,413
2,043,503

67,667,040

61,170,769

5,591,897

62,075,143

4,941,211
56,229,558

Provision for credit losses of other receivables

All amounts in RMB’000

Phase 1 Phase 2 Phase 3
Future Lifetime Lifetime
12-month expected expected
expected credit losses credit losses
Items credit losses (unimpaired) (impaired) Total
Provision for credit
losses at 31
December 2018 1,822,012 1,219,994 1,899,205 4,941,211
Provision for the
current period 112,540 464,306 121,581 698,427
Reversal for the
current period (198) - (23,790) (23,988)
Other changes (23,753) - - (283,753)
Provision for credit
losses at 30 June
2019 1,910,601 1,684,300 1,996,996 5,591,897
Carrying amount of
other receivables
at 30 June 2019 58,377,139 4,569,483 4,720,418 67,667,040

m Metallurgical Corporation of China Ltd.



Financial Statements and Review Report

VIl. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Uo Other receivables (Continued)

(4) Other receivables (Continued)

(c)

(@)

(e)

Other receivables categorized by nature

Applicable

Nature of other receivables

] Not Applicable

Guarantee deposits
Loan receivables from related parties 31
Advance to employees

Receivables on disposal of investments

Others

All amounts in RMB'000

RVAILERNEE 31 December 2018

28,157,297 25,107,121

,532,476 28,877,721

457,979 356,862

2,704,572 2,704,672

4,814,716 4,124,493

Total

67,667,040 61,170,769

The top 5 largest other receivables at the end of the current period

Applicable

Name of entity

Relationship
with the Group

D Not Applicable

Nature of other
receivables 30 June 2019

Loan to related

Party 1 Joint venture parties 5,013,889
Loan to related

Party 2 Joint venture parties 3,122,907
Loan to related

Party 3 Joint venture parties 2,961,005
Loan to related

Party 4 Joint venture parties 2,588,971
Loan to related

Party 5 Joint venture parties 2,359,896

Total / / 16,046,668

All amounts in RMB 000
As a percentage

of total other
receivables

(%)

Within 1 year
Within 1 year

Within 1 year

Within 1 year

Within 1 year

As at 30 June 2019, there was no derecognized accounts receivable due to the transfer
of substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the accounts receivable to the
transferees whereas whose continuing involvement into transferred financial assets(as at 31
December 2018: nil).
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VIl. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

8. Inventories
(1) Categories
Applicable |:| Not Applicable
All amounts in RMB’'000

30 June 2019 31 December 2018

Provision for Carrying Provision for Carrying
ltems Book value  impairment amount Book value impairment amount

Raw materials 3,606,175 3,549,519 3,782,710 55,485 3,727,225
Materials procurement 100,850 100,850 141,134 - 141,134
Outsourced processing

materials 11,684 11,684 11,292 - 11,292
Work in progress 2,972,842 46,430 2,926,412 2,971,363 34,203 2,937,160
Finished goods 2,836,695 125,666 2,711,029 2,956,557 159,959 2,796,598
Other materials 685,160 6,672 678,488 653,412 6,678 646,734
Performance costs

of contract 43,032 43,032 82,823 96 82,727
Properties under

development (a) 35,415,508 103,041 35,312,467 34,911,011 103,041 34,807,970
Completed properties

held for sale (b) 13,330,021 419,241 12,910,780 12,881,648 424,167 12,457,481
Total 59,001,967 757,706 58,244,261 58,391,950 783,629 57,608,321

Note.: Inventories with title restriction are set out in Note VI169.

m Metallurgical Corporation of China Ltd.



Financial Statements and Review Report

VIl. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

8. Inventories (Continued)

(1) Categories (Continued)

(a) Details of the properties under development
All amounts in RMB'000
Project Estimated total
Commencement Estimated investment

Project name date Completion date amount 31 December 2018 30 June 2019
Nanjin Xiaguanbin River Project 2011-01-01 2020-04-30 16,728,279 7,736,723 8,179,117
Hengain Port Base Project 2015-03-01 2019-12-31 5,499,735 2,008,701 3,069,997
Tianjin Xinbadali District Qixianli Project ~ 2014-12-25 2020-05-31 8,488,610 1,768,199 1,997,103
Singapore Tampines Apartment Project

Block D 2015-10-01 2019-09-30 2,008,581 1,842,653 1,976,645
MCC 39 Street Project 2017-05-15 2023-12-31 2,639,749 2,211,208 1,957,783
MCC Xinglong New City Hongshijun 2017-12-20 2023-12-31 16,700,000 1,515,793 1,763,033
MCC Tongluo Town 2014-11-01 2020-12-31 3,500,000 2,336,422 1,645,364
Qin Hai Yun Villa Project 2011-08-08 2021-11-30 4,400,000 1,669,594 1,604,089
Guangdong, Zhuhai, Henggin New City

Headquarters Building II 2016-12-01 2019-11-30 9,309,169 1,224,790 1,261,843
Hong Kong Quanwan Project 2013-12-06 2019-12-31 1,439,810 1,145,704 1,224,195
Tangshan Fengrun Gengyang New City

Project 2010-03-01 2022-12-31 10,550,000 1,186,509 866,874
Renhe Xili 2019-03-01 2020-12-31 1,924,000 - 856,141
Yanjiao Headquarters Base Project 2019-10-31 2022-09-30 3,235,120 - 688,955
Baotou MCC Campus South Road

Community Project 2011-08-01 2019-12-31 4,100,000 1,010,315 685,148
MCC Riverside Project | & I 2013-12-31 2019-12-31 1,423,330 779,250 597,339
Changchengshili Spring Breeze Town 2018-03-03 2020-12-31 2,500,000 376,141 427,519
Anxinjiayuan Replacement Residence

Project 2017-09-12 2019-12-31 650,000 344,258 403,984
Zhenjiang Yucui Garden 2014-06-01 2019-09-01 1,317,242 308,704 396,141
Shanghai Jinshan District - MCC

Fengjunyuan Project Il 2015-12-31 2019-07-30 590,516 391,582 395,337
Hubei Huangshi City MCC Huangshi

Garden Project I! 20150101 2020-12-31 1,351,899 391,754 308,272
Baopan Lijingyuan Project 2018-05-28 2019-12-09 739,169 257,243 286,186

Qianhai Headquarter R&D Base
Commercial properties of Southern R&D

Center 2019-12-12 2024-06-12 2,174,280 266,200 274,584
MCC Shanghe Residence Project 2014-06-20 2019-12-31 867,232 240,519 266,396
Others / / 40,622,486 5,898,849 4,263,463

Total / / 142,659,197 34,911,011 35,415,508
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VIl. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

8. Inventories (Continued)
(1) Categories (Continued)
(b) Details of the completed properties held for sale

All amounts in RMB’000

Increase inthe  Decrease in the
Project name Completion date 31 December 2018 current period current period 30 June 2019

Shijiazhuang MCC Dexian Mansion Project  2019-06-18 473,519 2,254,487 334,983 2,393,083
Tianjin Xinbadali District Qixianli Project ~ 2019-06-26 1,742,388 54,768 443,765 1,353,391
Brazil Fluctuation Apartment Project 2018-10-30 2,091,640 34,016 1,186,556 939,100
Beijing Daxing District Jiugong Green Belt

Parcel A1 Project 2017-10-31 1,111,375 15,521 246,720 880,176
Qin Hai Yun Villa Project 2019-06-19 528,862 366,140 330,522 564,470
Baotou MCC Campus South Road

Community Project 2019-06-30 433,396 409,008 219,074 563,330
Nanjin Xiaguanbin River Project 2018-12-29 603,185 - 46,985 556,200
Dalian International Business City 2014-12-31 450,272 - 16,498 433,774
MCC Xinglong New City Hongshijun 2019-02-28 625,176 64,792 271,324 418,644
Tangshan Wutong Road Project 2012-10-31 451,02